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CITY OF OREM OREM 
/"'~$ a 

OFF1CE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

T 

December 12, 2017 

To: Mayor and City Council 

Subject: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

In our ongoing efforts to provide more comprehensive financial information regarding the 
City, the Administrative Services Department has now completed its thirtieth 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 

The report contains critical financial information regarding the City's activities over the 
past fiscal year. The report of Gilbert & Stewart CPA, PC, resulting from their annual 
independent audit is included as a part of this annual report. Responsibility for both the 
accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, 
including all disclosures, rests with City management. 

We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects and fairly sets forth the 
financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial 
activities of its various funds. Disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the City's financial affairs have also been included. 

The City concluded the year ended June 30, 2017, in sound financiaJ condition. The 
following is an overview of the City's financial condition. 

The City of Orem is located in north central Utah and is currently the fifth largest city in the 
state with a 2010 census population of 88,328 and an estimated population at June 30, 
2017, of 97,499. The local unemployment rate as of June 30, 2017, was 3.7% compared to 
4.5% nationally. The State unemployment rate is 3.9%. 

The City has been involved in active economic development over the past two decades 
attracting stable industries and organizations. This economic development activity has 
directly led to the creation of approximately 7,000 non-retail jobs and thousands of retail 
jobs. The City has recently completed an economic master plan. The plan shows the City 
can support and has demand for a significant amount of class "A" office space. 

Utah Valley University (UVU) continues to grow with current full-time equivalent student 
enrollment of 23,706 and just over 37,000 total students and projected enrollment 
estimated to exceed 46,000 by 2024. UVU is now the State's largest university. 
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Operating Revenues 

Sales Tax revenues grew 6.42% in Fiscal Year 2017. Sales taxes continue to be the City's 
single largest revenue source. Utility revenues are growing due to a rate structure that calls 
for a pay-as-you-go approach for system replacement and expansion for each utility. This 
will provide the necessary capital funding to build the master plan projects. 

Revenues for other service areas such as residential solid waste collection and street 
lighting are stable. Recreation Fund revenues continue to face competition from adjacent 
community facilities. Thus, the General Fund has had to subsidize the Recreation Fund by 
contributing $402,000 to it. 

Expenditures 

The City allocated $3,674,000 from General Fund reserves for general capital improvement 
projects. This was made possible by the City's growing economy resulting in revenue 
growth coupled with one-time building permit funds for one-time uses along with a policy 
change to set the City's reserve level at 15% of General Fund expenditure levels. 

The City's infrastructure is in stable condition and with the recently adopted utility master 
plans and accompanying funding plans, the City's infrastructure will remain sound. Within 
the last year, the City has been involved in several significant capital improvement projects. 
These projects include: 

• Continuing street maintenance plans of systematic preventative maintenance such 
as crack seals, seal coats, micro-surfacing, and overlays. 

• Ongoing replacement of old four- inch ( 4") water Jines. 
• Various building maintenance projects. 
• Construction of an "All together Playground" that meets the needs of all children 

regardless of abilities. 
• Construction of a dog park. 
• Construction of a splash pad. 
• Purchase of a new ladder fire truck. 
• Deployed high speed Wi-Fi at city parks. 

Additional capital funding is needed: 

• To construct additional intersection signals and upgrade existing intersections with 
double left turn lanes. 

• To upgrade existing traffic signal equipment that is nearing the end of its anticipated 
life. 

• To install street lights in the portions of the city previously served by special lighting 
districts. 

• To continue preventative road maintenance. 
• To improve transportation in the city through street improvements, trails, bike 

paths, mixed uses, and mass transit. 
• To purchase and install an automated water meter reading system. 
• For facility improvements/upgrades at the City Center, Senior Friendship Center, 

Fitness Center, Library, and all three fire stations. 

These projects will be funded over the next several years as opportunities for one-time 
monies, such as land sales, unanticipated revenue, grants, and other resources become 
available to the City. 
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The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not have been 
accomplished without the dedicated efforts of many individuals. In particular, the efforts of 
the Administrative Services Department staff who continue to upgrade and improve the 
City's accounting and financial reporting systems which improve the quality of information 
being reported to you; State oversight boards; and the citizens of the City of Orem. 

If you have questions regarding the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, please feel 
free to discuss them with Richard Manning, Brandon Nelson or me. 

Yours truly, 

~!.~~~~ 
City Manager 
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CITY OF OREM OREM ,.......~, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

T 

December 12, 2017 

James P. Davidson 
City Manager 

City of Orem, Utah 

The State of Utah requires that all local governments publish, within six 
months of the close of each fiscal yeru·, a complete set of financial statements 
vresented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) as prescribed in the Uniform Accounting Manual for Utah Cities and 
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants. This Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) of the City of Orem, Utah fo1· the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017, is hereby submitted to you, in accordance with these requirements. 

This financial repOl't has been prepru·ed acco1·ding to the guidelines set forth 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement 34. 
This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances 
of the City of Orem. Consequently, management assumes full 1·esponsibility 
for completeness and reliability of all information presented in this report. 
To provide a reasonable basis fo1· making these representations, management 
has established an internal control framework that is designed to both 
protect the assets of the City from loss, theft, or misuse and to allow for the 
compiling of sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's 
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal 
controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's internal control 
procedures have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from mate1·ial 
misstatement. To the best of management's knowledge and belief, this 
financial report is complete and reliable in all material 1·espects. 

Gilbert & Stewart CPA, PC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants 
have audited the City of Orem's financial records. The goal of the 
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the City of Orem for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017; are 
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosU1·es in the financial 
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded based upon the 
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion 
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that the City of 0Tem's financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2017, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent 
auditor's report is p1·esented as the first component of the financial section of 
this report. 

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a 
nanative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and 
should be read in conjunction with it. 

CAFR Highlights 

This section will highlight the changes in the CAFR from the previous year. 
The total government-wide net position increased by 5.59%. See MD&A 
section page 15. 

During the fiscal year the City refunded outstanding portions of Water & 
Storm Sewe1· and Sales Tax Revenue Bonds for a combined overall savings of 
$1.5 million in debt service costs. 

The City of Orem is a participant with the Utah Retirement System (URS). 
The URS controls the pension funds for all eligible governmental employees 
in the State of Utah (includes state, local, school, and/or special district 
employees). The URS sets the contribution rates they believe will achieve the 
needed e~unings to provide the plan's defined benefit payments. The City 
remits the prescribed payments to the URS with each payl'Oll. 

The City is required to show its proportion of any deficit or surplus. 
Accordingly, the City has taken its overall net pension asset and liability of 
$14,343,236, up from $12,587,204 in FY 2016, and allocated it 
proportionately among the appropriate funds (see pages 92·98 and 105 for a 
thorough explanation). 

Gene1·al Fund - Sales tax revenues grew by 6.42%. Sales tax revenues are the 
single largest source of city revenue. Total General Fund revenues increased 
by $2,503, 150 (4.66%). Expenditures increased by $1,809,155 (3.9%). This is 
due in large pai·t to increased personnel costs in salary and benefits. 

Water Fund - Water operating revenues increased by $2,210,752 (16.58%). 
The City has implemented a tiered water rate structure to comply with state 
law. The City is also pricing water to provide pay·as·you·go funding for 
system replacement. Expenses increased by $753,323 (7.66%). 

Water Reclamation Fund - Operating revenues increased by $1,720,847 
(33.44%). This increase is due primarily to how base rates are assessed to 
multi-unit facilities. Expenses increased by $6,848 (0.10%). 

Storm Water Fund - Operating revenues increased by $550,421 (15.95%). 
This reflects one full fiscal year with the additional $1.00 per equivalent 
service unit (ESU) that was increased near the end of the prior year. The net 
position of the fund increased 9.83%. Expenses decreased $80,660 (3.42%). 
This was primarily due to an adjustment in pension accruals. 
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Debt· The City ended the year with total outstanding debt of $47,459,120, of 
which $9,063,364 is backed by the full faith and credit of the City while the 
balance, $38,395,756, is backed by specific revenue sources such as sales 
taxes, franchise taxes, and utility revenues. This represents a total debt 
reduction of 10.64% over the previous yea1·. 

The City maintains favorable debt ratings of "AA+" from Fitch ratings and 
"AAn from Standard and Poors. The City is committed to maintain these 
high ratings through proper management practices. 

Additional and more detailed information regarding the City's overall debt 
can be found in the footnotes of this document {see pages 75·83). 

Statistical Section · The final section of the CAFR contains a wealth of 
comparative information about the City. This section has charts and tables 
on financial trends, revenues, debt, demographics, and gene1·al operating 
information. 

Several fascinating tables aTe found on pages 146·185 showing the various 
statistical and general financial data over time. 

Other Information 

Awards 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. This was the twenty· 
ninth consecutive year the City has 1·eceived this prestigious award. In order 
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report, the contents of which conform to 
program standards. This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe 
this current comprehensive annual financial report continues to conform to 
the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we will be 
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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GILBERT & STEWART 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
ESTABLISHED 1974 

Honorable Mayor and 
Members of City Council 
City of Orem, Utah 

INDEPENDENT AUDI'fOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Basic Financial Statements 

RANDELAHEATON, CPA 
LYNN A GILBERT, CPA 

JAMES A GILBERT. CPA 
BEN H PROBST, CPA 

RONALD J. STEWART, CPA 

SIDNEY S. GILBERT. CPA 
,11\MES E. STEWART, CPA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fond, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Orem, Utah (the City), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Respo11sibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor. 

Auditor's Respo11sibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptro!Jer General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in orde.r to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasqnableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audjt opinions. 

Opiniotts 
In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects; the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, a:nd the aggregate 
remaining fund 'inforrnation of the City of Orem, as of June 30, 2017 and the respective changes in financial 
position and where applicable, cash flows and the respective budgetary comparison for the general and major 
special revenue funds thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

AMERICAN FORK OFFICE 
85 NORTH CENTER STREET 
AMERICAN FORK, UT 84003 

(801) 75&,9666 
F'AX (801 )756-9667 
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Other Matters 
Required Supplemenla1y Informalion 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management' s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information. the OPEB schedule of funding progress, and 
the required supplementary information regarding pensions, as noted in the table of contents~ be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management' s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other lnfbrmation 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of f01ming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City' s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplemental information, and the 
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 

TI1e combining statements, budgetary comparisons, and capital assets as listed as supplemental information in 
the table of contents are the responsibility of management and were deJived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. fa our opinion. the combining statements, budgetary comparisons, and capital assets 
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied to the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Stahdards 

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30 2017, 
on our consideration of the City's internal control over tillancial reporting and on our tests of its compJiance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that repot1 is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial repo1ting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards 1n considering the City's internal control over financial rep01ting and compliance. 

t;ltl«t & SfaMtrt 
GILBERT & STEWART, CPA, PC 
Provo, Utah 
November 30, 20 17 
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City of Orem 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2017 

The City of Orem's management presents this overview and analysis of its 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This discussion 
and analysis focuses on significant financial issues, provides an overview of 
the City's financial activity, highlights significant changes in the City's 
financial position, and identifies material variances between the approved 
budget and actual spending. 

The City encom·ages readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional information furnished in the letter of transmittal 
and provided tll!'oughout this report. 

Financial Highlights 

• As of the end of the current fiscal year, the government-wide assets 
and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows by $262,687,697 (total net position). Of this amount, 
$51,259,510 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• Total government-wide net position consists of $191,683,821 in net 
investment in capital assets, $19,744,366 in restricted assets, and 
$51,259,510 in unrestricted assets. Total government-wide net 
position increased by 5.59%. 

• As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Citys governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $45,762,775. Of this 
amount, $12,829,323 (28.03%) is available for spending at the City's 
discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

• As of the end of the cun.·ent fiscal year, the City's governmental funds 
reported a decrease in total fund balance of $5,920,710 compared to the 
prior year's increase of $8,794,021. The changes to fund balance are 
discussed in greater detail later in this overview and analysis. 

• As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's enterprise funds 
1·eported an increase in total net position of $9,401,580 compared to the 
prior year's increase of $4,400,521. The changes to fund balance are 
discussed in greater detail later in this overview and analysis. 

• In October 2016, the City refunded the remaining $5,075,000 of 2008 
Water & Storm Sewer Bonds by issuing $4,380,000 in new 2016 Wate1· 
& Storm Sewer Refunding Bonds saving the City over $1.4 million in 
debt service costs. 

• In February 2017, the City refunded the remaining $2,805,000 of 2007 
Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds by issuing $2,898,000 in new 
2017 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds saving the City over $95,000 
in debt service costs. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The following discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City's 
basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise of 
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 
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This r,eport a lso includes other supplementary information in addition 1to the 
basic financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers 
with a broad overview of the City of Orem's finances, in a manner similar to a 
private-sector business. 

• The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's 
assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows, with the 
difference between the four Teported as net position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the City is improving Ol' deteriorating. 
Howeve1·, you will also need to consider other non-financial factors. 

• The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the 
City's net position changed during the fiscal year -reported. All 
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Thus all of the current year's revenues a nd expenses are 
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of 
the City that are p1·incipally supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to 
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and sin·vice 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of thei City 
includ1e the general government, public safety, redevelopment, highways and 
public improvements, parks, recreation and arts (which includes the library), 
and ec:onomic and physical development. The business-type activities of the 
City ilrlclude culinary water distribution, water reclamation (sewer), storm 
water operations, recreation (fitness center and outdoor pool), solid waste 
disposal, and street lighting. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts tlhat is 
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific 
activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-redated 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two 
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

• Governmental funds. These funds are used to account for essentially 
the same functions reported as goven1mental activities in the 
government·wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government·wide financial statements, gover·nment al fund financial 
statements focus on nea1--term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating the City's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is nanower than that of the 
government·wide financial statements, it is useful to compar1e the 
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information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for goveTnmen tal activities in the government· 
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the City's near term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and t he 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditurns, and changes 
in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains eleven individual governmental funds. 
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance 
sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditui·es, and ch anges in fund balances for the General, Debt 
Service, Capital Projects, and Redevelopment funds, which ar e 
considered major funds of the City. Data from the other seven 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 

• Proprietary funds. The City of Orem maintains two different types of 
proprietary funds. Enterpl"ise funds are used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type activities in the gove1·nment·wide 
financial sta tements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its 
Water, Water Reclamation, Storm Water . Recreation, Solid Waste, and 
Sti'eet Lighting activities. Internal service funds are an accounting 
device used to accumulate and allocate costs intel'nally among t he 
City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to 
account for servicing its fleet of vehicles, providing insurance, 
procm·ing a nd warehousing supplies and materials, and maintaining 
the City's technological needs. Because these services predominantly 
benefi t governmental rather than business·type functions, they have 
been included within goveTnmental activities in the government·wide 
:financial statements. 

Propl'ie tary funds pTovide the same type of information as the 
government·wide financial statements, only in more detail. The 
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for 
the Water, Water Reclamation, and Storm Water funds , which are 
considered major funds of the City. The Recreation, Solid Waste, and 
the Street Lighting funds are classified as non.major and are included 
in the combining statements within this report. Conversely, the foui· 
internal service fun ds ar e combined into a single, agg1·egated 
presentation in the p1·oprietary fund financial statements. Individual 
fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements within this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements 
provide additional information that is essentia l to a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund :financial statements. 
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Government·wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the 
City's financial position. As mentioned in the highlights section, assets 
exceeded liabilities and deferred in.flows by $262,687,697 at June 30, 2017. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net position (72.97%) is its investment 
in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, 
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure assets) less any outstanding 
debt related to the acquisition of those assets. The City uses these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

City of Orem's Total Net Position 

Govero.mental Business·type 
Activities Activities Total 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Current Assets $ 66,289,979 $ 73,116.533 $ 34,804,292 s 26,557,840 $ 101,094,271 $ 99,674,373 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets 151,887,214 144,697,510 85,577,890 85.850.535 237,465,104 230.548,045 
Other 9991306 l 165 174 4,350 ll ,361 1,003,656 11176,535 

'l'otal Assets 219,176,499 218,979,217 120.386.532 112.419.736 339,563,031 83 1.,398,953 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 9,399,380 7,099.731 2,984. 156 2.231,026 12,383,536 9,330,757 

Total Assets & Deferred 
Outflows of Resources s 228,575,879 $ 226,078,948 $ 123,370,688 $114,650,762 $ 351,946,567 $ 340,729,710 

Long·term Liabilities 
Outstanding s 36,207,469 $ 37,713,029 $ 29,725,696 s 31,478,132 $ 65,933,165 $ 69,191, 16 1 

Otlier Liabilities 8,019,456 8,798,035 3,962.806 3,021,734 11,982,262 11,819,769 

Total Liabilities 44,226,925 46,511,064 33,688,502 34,499.866 77,915,427 81,010,930 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 10,803.107 10,518,263 640.336 410,626 11,343,443 10,928,889 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 131,968,221 126,818,760 59,715,600 56,904.569 191,683,821 183,723,329 
Restricted 17,774,033 20,230,602 1,970,333 2,536,737 19,744,366 22,767,339 
Unrestricted 23,803,593 22,000,259 27,455,917 201298,964 51,259,510 42,299,223 

'rotal Net Position 173,545,847 169,049,621 89,141,850 79,740,270 262,687.69'7 248,789,891 

Total Liabilities, Deferred 

Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position s 228,575.879 $ 226.078,948 $123,370,688 $ 114,650,762 $ 351,946,567 $ 340,729,710 

A portion of the City of Orem's net position (7 .52%) represent resources that 
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The amount 
listed as unrestricted net position ($51,259,510) may be used to meet the 
City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, there were no funds reportin g a deficit 
in unrestricted net position. 
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Orem is able to repoTt 
positive balances in all three categories of net position, for the City as a 
whole, as well as for its separate business·type activities. 

Comparing the cunent fiscal year to the prior fiscal year, the City's net 
position increased by $13,897,806 (5.59%). Total r evenues increased by 
$7,335,541 (7.95%), primarily due to increases in charges for services of 
$4,900,290 (10.40%) and sales tax revenues of $1,344,973 (6.28%). Total 
expenses increased $5,849,523 (7.33%). Details related to these changes are 
described later in this section of the report under governmental and business· 
type activities. The following is a summary of the changes in net position: 

ReveoueH: 
Proi:ram Revenues' 

Charges for Services 
Operoting Grams and 

Contributions 
Capital Gran\$ and 

Contributions 
General Revenues, 

Sele:1 Taxes 
Pl'QPcrty TaxeR 
Other 'faxes 
OthPI' 

Total Revenues 

Expenses-
General Government 
Publw Safety 
Highways and Public 

lmprovementJS 
Parks, Recreauon & Ar ts 
1:conomic and Phyi;ical 

Development 
Redevclopmen1 
I ntere8t on Lonir'l'erm Debi 
Water 
Water Reclamation 
Storm Water 
Recreation 
Solid Waste 
Street Lightmg 

Tot.al Expenses 
Change in Net Position 

before Transfers 
Transfrrs ln (Out l 

Change 1n Net Po~1lion 
Net Position · Beginning 

Net Pos1l1on • Eod1ng 

City of Orem's Change in Net Position 

Governmental 

2017 2016 

S 17.681.009 S 16,975.986 

I , 196.663 

3, 171,938 

22.750,706 
9.[41,823 
8,775.289 

707.483 
63,423,911 

13.160,153 
23,678,262 

7.085.621 
9.47t.883 

950.630 
1,286,•198 
3,596,868 

59.129.916 

1.333.'l!:10 

2,i89.074 

21 ,405,733 
9.229,764 
8,875,761 

707,511 
61,317,325 

11.118,210 
21,750.059 

7,426,758 
8,704,800 

867. 172 
187.497 

3,624,749 

53,709,2-15 

Business-type 
Actn'llles 

2017 2016 

:) 34.353.297 S 30.158,030 

1.383.925 510 138 

403, I 13 243.2 12 
36,140.335 30,911,380 

Total 
2017 :.!016 

62,034.306 i 47. 134,016 

l , 196,6fi8 

4,665.863 

22,750,706 
9,14 l.823 
8,775,289 
1110,696 

99,564,246 

13,160,153 
23,578.262 

7,085.621 
9.471.88~ 

l ,333,4911 

3.299,212 

~1 .406 733 
9,229.764 
8,875.761 

950 723 
92,228,706 

I J,148,210 
21 750,059 

7.~26.758 
8,704.80() 

950.630 l:167 172 
1,286.'198 187,497 
3,596.8G8 8,624,719 

11,021,079 10.335,616 ll 021,079 10,336,616 
6,723.394 6 716,546 6,723.39-1 6,716.5-16 
2,371,647 2,160.540 2.371,647 2.460,540 
1,962.995 :.!.023. 758 1.962,995 2,023.758 
3,283.3 10 ::J 174,442 3.283.310 3,174.-142 
1,174,100 _ __:.l .;;:::396::.::..;,7.;.;70~ ___ 1.._.l..;.74,;,;.,1_00__ 1,396,770 

26,536,525 26.107,672 85,666.440 :::::19: .8:16: .9: 1::1 

4,293.996 7.608.080 9,603,810 1.803,708 13,897.806 12.411,788 
__ ..;;;20_2;;:.:;,230~ ---'4""03:;:.;. l;.;;.87.:... __ _.;;;<2_02-.2:.;;;30~) __ (:.:;<10:;;.;.:3;:._;, 1.;;..87~) ----- --...,.,,,-..,.,.,.-=,-

1.496,226 8,01 1,267 9,401.580 4,•100,521 13,897,806 12,411788 
169.049.6'.Zl 161,038,354 79. 740.270 75,339.749 248,789,891 236.378,103 

3 173.545,847 1690•19.621 S 89.141.850 S 79,740,270 S 262.687.697 S 248,789,891 
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of 
Orem's net position by $4,496,226 (2.66%). This is a decrease of $3 515,041 
from tlhe prior year. Total revenues increased by $2,106,586 (3.44%). Sales 
tax revenues increased $1,344,973 (6.28%) and charges for se1·vices rev(mues 
increased $705,023 (4.15%). Total expenses increased by $5,420,670 
(10.09%), primarily due to an increase in personnel costs of approximately 
$3,790,590 along with the addition of two new 1·edevelopment participation 
agreements totaling $1,000,000. 

The following gi·aph disp lays the governmental activities l'e:flected i][} the 
table '' City of Orem's Change in Net Position". Note that the graph doeis not 
includE~ general revenues of $41,375,301 because these revenues ru·c:! not 
specifo::: to a particular department. 

Program Expenses & Revenues - Governmental Activities 
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

$25,000,000 

Iii Expenses a Revenues 

$20,000,000 

$15,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$5,000,000 

$0 

Key eliemen ts affecting the change in governmental activities net position are 
as follows: 

• Total revenues increased by $2,106,586 (3.44%). 
• Charges for services revenues increased $705,023 (4.15%). 'While 

various fee types incl'eased by small amounts, the following revE~nues 
increased 1·elatively significant ly: public safety fees increaseid by 
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$234,270 (9.40%) primarily due to renegotiating our fire services 
agreement with the City of Vineyard, ambulance fees increased 
$47,588 (2.55%) due to a better collection mix (i.e. more commercial 
insm·ance collections) , cemetery lot sales and interment fees increased 
by $65,850 (8.81%) p1·imarily due to more lot sales than the prior year, 
and recreation fees increased $30,814 (8.06%) due almost entirely to 
increased participation in city softball leagues. 

• General r evenues increased by $1,156,532 (2.88%). The increase was 
due to sales tax revenues which increased $1,344,973 (6.28%). While 
no specific source was the cause of this inc1·ease, the City's strong retail 
base has continued to see the positive effects of Utah's bustling 
economy. Other general revenues decreased $188,441 (1.00%). The 
decrease in other general revenues was due, in part, to a decrease in 
redevelopment property tax increment collections as these 
redevelopment areas continue to expii'e. 

• Total expenses increased by $5,420,670 (10.09%). 
• Personnel costs across all expense categories increased, in total, by 

approximately $3,790,590 in the cm·rent fiscal year due to general 
salary and benefit increases (approximately $1,160,000), pensions costs 
($1,807,570), and other post·employment benefit costs ($823,020). 

• Redevelopment costs increased by $1,099,001 (586.14%). The inc1·ease 
was due primarily to entering into new participation agi·eements with 
two local vehicle dealerships totaling $1,000,000. 

The following graph displays the governmental activities revenues by source. 
The information reflected in this graph comes from the uCity of Orem's 
Change in Net Position'' table shown previously. 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

Property Taxes 
14.4 "o 

Capital Grants 
5.00% 

Operating 
Grants 

1.89% 

Services 
27.88% 
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BusinHss·type activities. Business-type activities increased the City1's net 
position by $9,401,580. The increase in net position represents a 11.79% 
increase for the current year. Total revenues increased by $5,228,955 
(16.92%) and total expenses increased by $428,853 (1.64%). As of t he end of 
the current fiscal yea1', all of the City's business-type activities reported a 
positive net position. 

The following graph displays the business-type activities for enterprise funds 
reflected in the table "City of Ol'em1s Change in Net P osition". 

Program Expenses & Revenues - Business-type Activities 
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

$18,000,000 

$16,000,000 

$14,000,000 

$12,000,000 

$10,000,000 
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$4,000,000 

$2,000,000 
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Ii Expenses I-' RevE?nues 

Key elements affecting the change in business·type activities net assets are 
as follows: 

• Business-type activities reported an incrnase in total Tevenues ovEn- the 
prior year of $5,228,955 (16.92%). Total revenues increased or 
decreased as follows : 
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o Water fund total operating revenues increased by $2,210,752 or 
16.58%. There was a 10.92% increase in base rates a nd a f5 .06% 
increase in watel' consumption. However, the majority of the 
1·evenue increase was due to a 
change in November 2016 to 
a tiered water use charge. 
This change was required due 
to a Utah State Senate bill 
passed in the 2016 General 
Session. The main intent of 
the bill was to encourage 
water conservation. Along 
with the change to a new 
tie1•ed structure, the City set 
its new Tier 1 rate 22.41% 
higher than the previous 
usage rate (from $0.58 to 
$0. 71 per thousand gallons) 
with Tiers 2·4 at even higher 
rates. The City intends to use 

Revenues by Source - Business-type Actlvltles 
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

Ct)otglb for 
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Service$­

Wa1e, 
Reclamalion 

236% 

Capi1a1 GRm on Sale 
Granls & 01 cap,tal 

Contobuhons Assets 
38% 0 8% \ l \lnroS1ncteo 
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0 .3% 
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W a1er 
• 3 3% 

the additional Tevenues from these higher wateT rates for ft1ture 
capital improvement needs rather than incuning addi1tional 
debt. All of these changes resulted in charges for services 
revenues increasing $1,824,655 or 16.01 %. The City also h:ad an 
increase in Equivalent Water Rights Impact Fee (E"VvRIF) 
payments from the Town of Vineyard related to construction in 
an area of Vineyard serviced by the City of Orem of 
approximately $204,000. 

o Water Reclamation fund total operating revenues increas,ed by 
$1,337,229 or 18.36%. This increase was due to a change in the 
sewer base rate which was changed from a "per connection'" rate 
to a "per living unit" rate. A change was also made for non· 
residential customers whereby a meter size multiplier using 
American Water Works Association (AWWA) guidelines is used. 

o Storm Water fund total operating revenues increased by 
$550,421 or 15.95%. The increase was due to a $1.00 rate 
increase in the "equivalent service units (ESU)" rate late in FY 
2016. Therefore, the prior fiscal year had only a portion of the 
year to reflect this price increase while the current fiscal year 
received the 1·evenue effect for the entire fiscal year. 
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The graph on the previous page displays the business-type activities 
revenues by source. The information r eflected in this graph comes from the 
'
1City of Orem's Change in Net Position" table shown previously. 

• Business-type activities reported an increase in total expenses from 
the prior year of $428,853 (1.64%). Total expenses increas,~d or 
decreased as follows: 

o Utility costs decreased by $391,727 (17.97%). Street lighting 
power costs decreased by $189,005 due to LED fixtures and 
bulbs being installed in all city-owned street lights. The fitness 
center entered into a contract for natural gas from a third-party 
provider which saved approximately $52,000. 

o Contracted Services costs increased by $866,901 (13.66%). The 
increase was due primarily to a third party paying the City's 
Jordanelle Reservoir water allotment in the prior fiscal year 
whe1·eas the City paid it in the cunent fiscal year. 

o Depreciation expense increased by $214,223 (4. 75%). Several 
large waterline projects were completed near the end of the prior 
fiscal year resulting in a full year of depreciation expense for the 
current fiscal year and a large amount of equipment 
(approximately $640,000) was purchased m the water 
reclamation fund. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City of Orem uses fund accounting to ensurEi and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 
The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near 
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In 
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the 
government's net resources available for spending at fiscal year end. 

As of the end of the current fiscal yeal', the City's governmental funds 
reportHd combined ending fund balances of $45,762,775. Of this total 
amount, $12,829,323 (28.03%) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is 
available for spending at the government's discretion . Unassigned fund 
balanc,e increased from the prior year by $1,355,186. The remaining fund 
balanc,e of $32,933,452 is "reserved" in one capacity or another indicating 
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been 
committed to pay for debt service, capital projects, or a variety of other 
purposes. 
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The General Fund is the chief ope1·ating fund of the City. At the end of the 
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was 
$12,829,323 and total fund balance increased to $23,018,026. As a measure 
of the gener al fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned 
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned 
fund balance represents 26.65% (prioT year was 24. 76%) of total General 
Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 47.81% (prior year 
was 46.57%) of total General Fund expenditurns. 

General Fund - Total fund balance increased by $1,439,804 in the curren t 
fiscal year (the prior year had a decrease of $424,009). Thus , there was a 
positive variance from the pri01· year of $1,863,813. The following elements 
were key factors cont ributing to t he total fund balance increase: 

• Increased total revenues of $2,503,150 are primarily due to sales tax 
revenues increasing by $1,250,600 (6.42%). While no specific source 
was the cause of this increase, t he City's strong retail base has 
continued to see the posit ive effects of Utah's bustling economy. The 
City's B&C road revenues increased by $405,805 (15.18%) due to the 
State of Utah's increase in the gas tax amount paid on each gallon of 
gas pw:chased. As men t ioned previously (see page 21), charges for 
services increased $375,528 (3.41 %) due to increased public safety, 
ambulance, cemetery, and recreation revenues. Miscellaneous 
revenues increased $444,736 (34.75%) due primarily to donations for 
the City's all-together playground project. 

• Total expenditures increased by $1,809,155 (3.90%). Capital outlays 
increased $301,043 (8.39%), general government expenditures 
inc1·eased $667, 112 (5.49%), and public safety expenditures increased 
$608,125 (2.88%). Details about these variances is as follows: 

o Capital outlay expenditures increased due to the addition of the 
All-Together Playground at City Center Park. 

o General Government expenditures increased as the result of 
higher personnel costs due to general wage and benefit increases 
and because the City payed an operational assessment to the 
Utopia Infrastructure Agency (UIA) of almost $400,000. 

o Public Safety expenditures increased as the result of higher 
personnel costs due to general wage and benefit increases. 

• Net tr ansfers had a positive variance from the prior year of $1,091,940. 
The positive variance was due primarily to transfers out of $3,674,000 
to the Capital Projects Fund in the current year while $4,886,317 was 
transfen ed out in the prior year. 

Debt Service Fu11d - Total fund balance is $1,123,241, all of which is to be 
used for t he payment of de bt service. There was a net increase in fund 
balance in the current year of $23,783 (2.16%) . The increase is due primarily 
to the receipt of the final Canyon River special improvement district 
assessment. 
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Capital P.roiects Fund- Total fund balance is $10,387,741, all of which is to 
be used for capital improvements and lru.'ge equipmen t purchases. There was 
a net :incr ease in fund balan ce in the cunent year of $1,134,022 (12.:25%) . 
The increase was due to a $3,674.000 transfer from the General Fund which 
is to h e used to improve several parks, streets, and intersections as w1:;ll as 
making improvemen ts to various city facilities including the city center, 
senior center, public works building, public safety buildings , and fitness 
center. This increase was offset by an increase in capital p it·oject 
expen dlitures for streets ($890,398), parks ($183,540) , parking lots ($492,,446), 
l)Ublic safety equipment ($244 ,667), various building improvem ents 
($80,940), and storage facilities ($142,568). 

Redevelopmen t Fund - Total fund bala nce is $6,232,300, all of which is to be 
used foT improvem ents in redevelopment areas of the city. There was a net 
decr ease in fund balance in the current year of $2,633,747 (29.71%)_ The 
decrease was due to the addition of two new pa rt icipation agreements 
totaling $1,000,000 and a couple of propertypuTchases totaling $1,530,777. 

Proprietary Funds 
The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information fou.nd in 
the government·wide financial statements, but in gTeater detail. 

Water Fund - Unrestricted net position at the end of the year am ounted to 
$13,171,133, an incr ease of $3,392)21 (34.69%). Total net position increased 
by $5) H9,408 (14.08%) <llll·ing the current fiscal year. Items affecting total 
net position of the fund are as follows: 

• Operating rnvenues increased by $2,210,752 (16.58%). Ther e was a 
10.92% increase in base r a tes and a 5.06% increase in water 
consumption. However , as mentioned previously (see page 23}, t h e 
majority of the revenue increase was due to th e change to a tiered rate 
structure as well as an increase in the usage charge. The City also had 
:an increase of approximately $204,000 in Equivalent Water Rjghts 
[mpact Fee (EWRIF) revenue from the Town of Vineyard rnlated to 
construction in an area serviced by the City. 

• Operating expenses incr eased by $753,323 (7 .66%) in comparison with 
1the prior year. The primary cause of this increase was due to a third 
jparty paying the City's J ordanelle Reser voir water allotment im the 
prior year wh ile the City paid it in the current fiscal year ($639,,493). 
Depreciation expense increased by $127,088 (6.39%) as two la1·ge 
projects from the prior year had a full year of depreciat ion expensE!. 

Water Reclamation Fund· Unrestricted ne t position at the end of the year 
amounted to $6,866,381, an inct ease of $1,720,847 (33.44%) . Total net 
position increased by $11893,363 (8.11 %) during the current fiscal yea r. 
Item s affecting total net position of the fund are as follows: 

• Operating revenues increased by $1,337,229 (18.36%). As m entioned 
]previously (see page 23), t he increase was due to a change in h ow t he 
sewer base rate is applied and billed . 
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• Operating expenses increased by $6,848 (0.10%) in comparison with 
the prior year. Depreciation expense increased $73,549 (4.51 %) due to 
a large amount of equipment purchases and contracted services 
increased $107,334 (20.80%) due to the City's participation in a Utah 
Lake Nuti·ient Study. These increases were mostly offset by per sonnel 
costs decreasing by $91,935 (4.22%) due primarily to adjustments in 
this funds pension accruals and supplies and maintenance costs 
decreasing by $69,175 (9.62%) primarily due to lower repairs and 
maintenance costs at the sewer t reatment plant. 

Storm Water Fund · Unrestricted net position at th e end of the year 
amounted to $5,192,545, an increase of $1,346,724 (35.02%). Total net 
position increased by $1,540,224 (9.83%) during t he current fiscal year. 
Items affecting total net position of the fund are as follows: 

• Operating r evenues increased by $550,421 (15.95%), due to a $1.00 
increase in the "equivalent service units (ESU)'' rate late in FY 2016. 
Therefore, the prior fi scal year had only a portion of the yeal' to l'eflect 
this price increase while the current fiscal year received the r evenue 
effect for the ent ire fiscal year. 

• Operating expenses decreased by $80,660 (3.42%) in comparison with 
the prior year. The decrease in expenses is primarily due to a decrease 
in personnel costs due to adjustments in this funds pension accruals. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Dur·ing the fiscal year, the General Fund's original budget was amended from 
an original budget expenditure total (including net transfer s) of $52,195,263 
to a final budget of $61,741,985, an increase of $9,546,722 (18.29%). The 
changes to the General Fund budget ar e briefly s ummarized as follows : 

• Various public safety gI'ants and donations received during the year 
totaled $399,730. 

• The lib1·ary received several grants during the year totaling $10,025. 
The All-together Playground p ark project added $128,8 14 in donations. 
Various other parks, recr eation, and arts grants and donations were 
added to the budget totaling $51,548. 

• Various capita l project, equipment, and other accounts were carried 
over from the prior yea1· and, therefore, were added to the budget in 
the current year. This increased the budget by $2;92 1,025. 

• Various ou tstanding purchases were carried over from the prior year 
and, t herefore , were a dded to the budget in the current year. This 
increased the budget by $282,145. 

• Various outstanding road projects were canied over from t he prior 
year and, therefore, were added to t he budget in the current year. This 
increased the budget by $870,289. A budget appropriation of surplus 
funds was added for $868,000 to p ay for a road reconstruction project. 

• The City transfened $3,674,000 to the Capita l Projects Fund. The 
transfer was done as an appropriation of surplus funds in order to stay 
within the State of Utah's General Fund fund balance limitation. 
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Several General Fund revenue and expenditure categories were significantly 
higher OT lower than their final budgeted amounts. These variances are 
briefly summaTized as follows: 

• Taxes and Special Assessment Revenues - Revenues - Actual amount 
was higher than the budgeted amount by $742,840 (2.16%). Sales tax 
r evenues exceeded budget for the current year by $713,979. Property 
tax collections exceeded budget for the current year by $152,140. 
Franchise taxes were lower than the budgeted amount by $155,890. 

• Licenses and Permits - Revenues - Actual amount was higher than 
the budgeted amount by $435,943 (31.59%). Almost all of the amount 
that exceeded budgeted revenues was due to building permit revenues . 
Actual revenues were higher than budgeted revenues because the City 
chooses to budget this revenue line item quite conservatively. E xcess 
funds are generally expected to be used for one-time items so the City 
is not reliant on these additional revenues for on-going item s in case of 
another economic downturn. 

• Charges for SeTvices - Revenues - Actual amount was higher than the 
budgeted amount by $1, 142,738 (17 .53%). Ambulance service revenues 
exceeded budget by $330,283 due to a better collection mix (i.e. more 
commercia l insurance payors) . Cemetery lot sales and burial fees 
exceeded budget $163,142; plan check, planning, and building permit 
fast track fees exceeded budget by $25'2,264, $31,937, and $13,685, 
respectively; and various Public Safety service r evenues exceeded 
budget by $234,880. 

• General Government - Expenditures - Actual amotmts were lower 
than budgeted by $2,517,624 (16.21 %). The City continued to withhold 
a por t ion of the operating expenses assessment due to t he Utah 
Infrastructure Agency (UTA) which resulted in unspent budget of 
$483,681. Various facility maintenance projects were not able to be 
completed leaving $196,530 in unspent budget funds. Wages and 
employee benefit costs were lower than budget by $190,916. 
Professional and technical services accounts were lower than budget by 
$377,808 as expected service costs were either delayed or determined 
to not be necessary. VaTious contingency accounts were not used and 
thus, were lower than budget by $854,446. 

• Public Safety - Expenditures - Actual amounts were lower than 
budgeted by $916,063 (3.87%). A portion of the variance, $229,910, is 
due to lower than expected regular pay, overtime, and fringe benefits 
as all positions a re fully funded even though employee turnover 
l'egularly occurs leaving gaps in positions being occupied. There was 
also $525,870 of vehicles and/or equipment t hat did not get purchased 
by the end of the fiscal year but was budgeted. 

• Highways a nd Public Improvements - Expenditures - Actual amounts 
were lower than budgeted by $2,602,022 (34.92%). Most of this 
variance can be attributed to various street overlay/reconstruction 
projects, slw·ry seal pl'Ojects, micro-surfacing, and street striping 
projects that were not completed by fiscal year end but are expected to 
be completed in the next fiscal year. 
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• Parks , Recreation, a nd Arts - Expenditui·es - Actual amounts were 
lower than budgeted by $821,959 (10.28%). Personnel costs were lower 
than budgeted by $200,179 due primarily to severa l positions being 
vacant fol' some of the fiscal year and difficulties in finding enough 
temporaTy workers to fill all of the City's open positions. There w ere 
a lso several budgeted equipment pm·chases and capital projects that 
had funds remaining totaling approximately $303,000. 

Capitau Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2017, amoun ts to $237,46.5,073 
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets indudes 
land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and 
equipment (including vehicles and office equipment) , infrastruetuxe, 
in tangibles, a nd construction in progress. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year includi3 the 
following: 

• Public safety pm·chased thirteen new vehicles totaling $448,772 and 
one new ambulance for the fu·e department for $156,767. The ]Police 
department purchased a new K9 dog, updated the r emainder of their 
E911 equipment, and replaced their main recording equipment for a 
total of $366,229. The fhe department purchased stretchers. 
extrication equipment, exhaust system, and various other equipment 
totaling .$231,756. 

• The parks division purchased three new vehicles totaling $99,4,04, a 
large gang mower for $79,963, and four new riding mowers totaling 
$50,361. They successfully completed the All-Together Playground at 
City Center P ark with current fiscal year costs totaling $664,801.. Due 
to the construction of this new playground, a new park storage facility 
was constructed ($142,568), the north parking lot was reconstructed 
($160,081), and the bathrooms were renovated ($104,743). They also 
completed the installation of new playground s tructures at Scent and 
Cascade parks at an additional cost of $81,520. A new splash pad is 
under construction with current fiscal year costs totaling $717,939. 
The City's first dog park was completed at a cost of $194,474. 

• Parking lot reconstructions at the City Center, Scera Park, Westmore 
Park, and Fire Station #1 were completed at a cost of $365,422. 

• Various road and traffic signal projects completed or add~~d to 
construction in procE)ss were approximately $2,048,592. Two new 
vehicles were ptu·chased by the streets division for $71,555 as well as a 
new street roller for $59,674. 

• The traffic division purchased a new vehicle for $41,690 as wi~ll as 
some traffic modeling software for $27 . 764. 

• The City also purchased a new hybrid vehicle fol' the City's vehicle pool 
for $23,294. 
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• Several facility projects took place in the current fiscal year at the 
public works building, public safety building, Fire Station #1, fitness 
center, city center, and library. These projects totaled $694,00H. In 
addition to these facility projects, the energy saving facility 
improvement projects completed by Siemens in the current fiscal year 
added approximately $5.2 million in capital assets. 

• The City purchased two pieces of property totaling $1 ,530,778. The 
property will be used for redevelopment opportunities tied t o economic 
development projects. 

• 'The water division had several waterline projects completed or added 
to construction in process totaling approximately $1,144,738. They 
purchased one new hydro excavator for $119,079 and a new dump 
truck for $145,113. 

• 'The water reclamation division had several sewer line projects 
,completed or added to construction in process totaling $583,436. They 
purchased one new vehicle for $39,366, a new loader for $14fi,695, 
BNR blowers for $298,766, and various other equipment totaling 
approximately $143,000. 

• 'The storm water division purchased a new sweeper for $258,836, a new 
ut ility vehicle for $15,433, and a new riding mower for $15,366. 'rhere 
were no storm water infrastructure projects in the current fiscal year. 

City of Orem1s Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation) 

Governmental 
Activilios 

Business·type 

Activities Total 
2011 io16 2017 2016 2011 2:016 ---

Land $ 65.145.972 S 63,445,925 $ 3,888,751 $ 3,888,751 $ 69,034,723 $ 67',334,676 

Buildingsiuid Syst.ems 13, 125,726 14.17 1,572 l, 146,890 1.342, 10'1 14,272,616 lf,,513,676 

l mprovemEmls other 
t.ban Builid111gs 

Machinery and Ectui])ment 
Infrastructure 
ConslructiQn w Progress 
lnlangibloi, 

Total Captial Asset.., $ 

13.521.937 

5,790,833 
52 117,031 

2,185,715 

151.887.214 

10.625,447 6,837,661 
5,201,108 3,512,371 

48,624 1131 68,438,120 

2,629,327 735,307 
1,018,700 

i . ]44.697,510 $ 85,577,890 

7. 146.441 20,359.598 l i',77 1,888 

3,336.079 9,303,204 8.537, 187 
67,525,199 120,555, 151 l lG,J 49,330 

1,6 15,077 2,92 1,022 4,. 244,404 

996.884 1,018,790 996,884 

~ 85,850,535 s 237.465, 104 $ 230,548,045 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found m t he 
footnotes to this financial report on pages 71-73. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current year, the City had total bonded 
debt outstanding of $38,051,000. Of this amount, $8,535,000 comprises debt 
backedl by the full faith and credit of the government and $29,516,000 is debt 
(i.e. revenue bonds) that is secured solely by specific revenue sources such as 
sales taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, water revenues, water 
reclamation revenues, and storm water revenues. 
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City of Orem's Outstanding Bonded Debt 
General Obligation an d Revenue Bond!l 

Gon'!rnmental 

Acti vi ties 
2017 20 16 

8.5.lf,.()()() s; 10.:mo.ooo 
3,578,000 5 245,000 

12, I 1:i.000 $ 15 ,•145,000 

s 

s 

n us m e~W l,YJJI' 

Aci iv,Lies 
20l i 20 l(j 

s 
25 93!! uuu 28.553.000 

25.938,000 $ 28,553.000 

Tow I 
20 17 2016 ---

$ 8.535,000 $ 10.200.000 

29 516.000 d3.';:J8.UUU 

$ 38051.000 $ .Ja,996,000 

The City's total bonded debt decreased by $1,665,000 (16.32%) during the 
curren t fiscal year. The City made its fina l payment on the 2004 General 
Obligation Road Refunding Bonds . The remaining 2008 Water & Storm 
Sewer Revenue Bonds were refunded by issuing $4,380,000 of new 2016 
Water & Storm Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds saving the City 
approximately $1.4 million . The remaining 2007 Sales Tax Revenue 
Refunding Bonds were refunded by issuing $2,898,000 of new 2017 Sales Tax 
Revenue Refunding Bonds saving t he City approximately $95,000. 

The Ciity of Orem maintain s an "AA+" r ating from Fitch Ratings and an "AA" 
1·ating from Standard & Poor's for a ll bond issuances. 

St ate statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt for gener al 
pm·poses a governmental ent ity m ay issue to 4% of its total t axable value. 
The current limita tion for the City is $313,847,899. which is significantly in 
excess of the City's ou tstanding gener al obligation debt for general purposes. 
In addlit ion .. state statu tes allow for an additiona l 4% to be used for water , 
sewer, or elect r ical projects. Thus, the ctu·ren i limitation fo1· general 
obligation debt for wate1·, sewer , ol' electrical projects is a lso $313,847,899. 
The Ciity curren tly h as no outstanding general obligation debt for these types 
of p1·oj ects . Thus, the resulting total debt limit is 8% of tota l taxable value or 
$627,6,95, 798. More detailed information can be found on pages 170· l 71. 

Additional information on the City's long·term debt can be found in t he 
footnotes to this financial report on pages 75·83. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

• The unemploymen t ra te for the City of Orem at June 30, 2017 was 
3.7%. The Cit y's unemploymen t r ate compares favorably tc:> t he 
national rate of 4 .5%. The City has a rela tively high technology based 
workforce comparative to othex a reas of the county and state which can 
be impacted (for good or bad) to a slightly higher degree than many 
other workfo1·ce groups in the economy. The table below provides 
current year comparative information as well as a historical 
perspective . (Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics). 
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HISTORICAL ANNUAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 

2013 2014 2015 2016 
5. 3% :l.9% 3.5% 3.9% 

!\.;!% 4.0% 3.6% ,1.9% 

5.2% 3.9% 3.8% -1.2% 

7.6% G.:m 5.5% 5.1% 

fil!.17 
:l.7% 

:3.6% 

3.9% 

'1.5% 

• The General Fund budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 
reflects a decrease of $858,920 or 1.47% in revenues, excluding 
appropriations of surplus, compared to the final actual revenues for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. The decrease in revenues is due 
primarily to a decrease in intergovernmental revenues (primarily 
grants). Budgeted expenditures increased by $588,055 or 1.00% over 
the final fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, expenditures. Most of this 
is due to the per sonnel cost increases and additional capital projects 
and acquisitions in next year's budget. 

• Economic trends in the region continue to compare favorably to 
national indices. Sales tax r evenues continue to increase in 
comparison to the prior year. Building permits continue to be good 
a lthough construction growth within the City has slowed. 'These 
revenue sources as well as others a re monitored very closely so the 
City can identify what fu ture spending may be able to be added should 
positive revenue trends continue. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 
2017-~!018 fiscal year. 

Request For Information 

This financial r eport provides a general overview of the City of Orem's 
finances for all those with an interest in the governmen t's finances. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests fo1· additional financial information should be addressed to: 

City of Orem 
Dil:ector of Administrative Services 
56 North State Street, Orem , UT 84057 
or via email at rbmanning@orem.org 
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Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities rota! 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equiva lents $ )6, 722,728 $ 27,803.455 $ 44,526, 183 
Receivnhles (Nei of Allowance for U ncollectiblesl 782.952 5.034,854 5,767,806 
Property a nd Other Taxes Receivabl~ 9,777.951 9,777 951 
Specia l Assessments Receivable 200.058 200,058 
lntergovernmeotal Receivables 269,779 269,779 
Investmen ts 16,643.769 16,643,769 
Inventory 418,842 418,842 
Not.es Receivable 182,290 182,290 
P repaid Expenses 52,517 52,517 
R.,stricted Assets, 

Cash and Cash Ectllil>alents: 

Debt Service 798,192 1,860,833 2,658, 525 
Capital Improvements 9.936,677 l!0,000 10,041>.67'7 
Other Purposes 2,308,321 2,308,321 

R~ce1vables: 

Debt Service 1,449.250 1,449,250 
Capital Improvement Projects 2,373.786 2,373 786 
Othet Pu,·posea 1,215.070 1,215.070 

Investments: 
Debt Serv10e 2,326,151 2,326. 151 
Capital lmprov1>n1ent Proiecta l,870,076 1,870,076 

Net Pension Assets 11,876 11,876 
Capital Assets: 

Non·dep1•cdahle Capital Assets 67,331,687 5,642,848 72,974,535 
Depreciable Capital Assets Cnetl 84,555,527 79,935,042 164,490,569 

Total Assets 219,176,499 120,386,532 339,563.031 

DE FERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Loss on Debt Rerundings 250,887 1.090,510 1,340.897 
Pensions 9,148.993 l,893.646 11,042.639 

To1:al Deferred Outflows of Re!i-OLu·ces 9,399,380 2,984.156 12,383,536 

Total Asset s & De(errctl Outflowa of ResollrCes s 228,575,879 s 123,370.688 $ 351,946,567 

LIABTLJTIES 
Accow1ts Payab le $ 1,771,159 $ 3,.001,984 $ 1,773,143 
Customer Deposits 2,985,240 77,518 3,062,75!! 
Accrued Liabilitiea 1,481, 164 275,396 l ,759,56() 
Unearned Revenues 1,492,289 397,780 1,890,06!;) 
Accrued Interest Payable 252.720 210, 128 41$2,848 
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 33,884 33,884 
Nonc1U'l'e nt Liabilities: 

Due wi1Juu One Vear 6,057,530 2,264,558 8,322,088 
Dlle in mQre than One Year 30, 149,989 27.461, 138 57,611,077 

Total Liabilities 44,226,925 38,688,502 77,9 15,4-27 

DEFERRED I NFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferr1;1d Reven1.1es · Prope,'ly Taxes 8 ,196, 951 8,196,951 
Pensions 2,606,156 540,336 3,146,•192 

Total Deferred l nflows of Resource;, 10,803,107 540,336 11.3113, 443 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Aasets 131, 968,221 59,715,600 191,683,821 
Restricted for : 

Debt, Service 3,124.343 l,Sfi0,338 4,984,676 
Capital Improvements 12,172,402 110,000 12,282,402 
Pension;; 11,876 11,876 
Comm unity Developmenl 2,465,412 2,465,412 

Unrestricted 23.803,593 27,455,917 51,259,510 
To~l Net Posi.tioo 179,545,847 89,141.850 262,687,697 

Tota.I Liabilit.ies, Deferred I nOows 
of Resources, and Net Position $ 228,575,879 s 128. 370,688 $ 351.946,567 

The notes to the financial statements a:re a n integral part of Uus statemant 
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Functions/Programs 
Primary Government: 

Governmental Activities: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Highways and Public Improvements 
Pru:ks, Recreation and Arts 

Economic and Physical Development 
Redevelopment 
Interest on Long-term Debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Water 
Water Reclamation 
Storm Water 
Recreation 
Solid Waste 
Street Lighting 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total Prima1-y Government 

City of Orem 
Statement of Activities 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Expenses 

$ 13,160,153 $ 
23,578,262 

7,085.621 
9,471,883 

950,630 
1,286,498 
3,596,868 

59,129,915 

11.021,079 
6,723,394 
2,371,647 
1,962,995 
3,283,310 

1,174,100 
26,536,525 

$ 85,666,440 $ 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and 
Services Contributions 

9,718,116 $ 

5,768,195 

2,008,377 
186,321 

17,681,009 

16,547,544 
8,619,099 
4,001,972 
1,617,278 
3,571,929 

995,480 

34,353,297 
52,034,306 $ 

General Revenues: 

Sales Taxes 
Property Taxes 
Franchise Taxes 
Vehicle Taxes 

10,237 
725,691 

31,025 
428,710 

1,195,663 

1,195,663 

$ 

$ 

Other Taxes & Special Assessments 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 

Transfers In (Out) 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

3,016 
40,699 

3,078,653 
49,571 

3,171,938 

1,210,975 
113,900 

59,050 

1,383,925 
4,555,863 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 

Change in Total Net Position 

Total Net Position - Beginning 

Total Net Position - Ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ (3,428,785) $ $ (3,428,785) 
(17,043,677) (17,043,677) 

(4,006,968) (4,006,968) 
(7,382.910) (7,382,910) 

(335,599) (335,599) 
(1,286,498) (1,286,498) 
(3,596,868) (3,596,868) 

(37,081,305) (37,081,305) 

5,737,440 5,737,440 
2,009,605 2,009,605 
1,689,375 1,689,375 
(345,722) (345,722) 
288,619 288,619 

(178,620) (178,620) 

9,200,697 9,200,697 
(37,081,305) 9,200,697 (27,880,608) 

22,750,706 22,750,706 
9,141,823 9,141,823 
7,894,110 7,894,110 

671,984 671,984 
209,195 209,195 
603,500 285,761 889,261 
103,983 117,352 221,335 
202,230 (202,230) 

41,577,531 200,883 41,778,414 
4,496,226 9,401,580 13,897,806 

169,049,621 79,740,270 248,789,891 
$ 173,545,847 $ 89.141.850 $ 262,687,697 
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City of Orem 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Fund.s 
June 30, 2017 

Other Total 
Debt Capital Governmental Governmental 

General Service Projects Rede'l'elOJ!ment Funds Funds 
ASSE'l'S 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 411,877 $ 1,098,718 $ 10,553,665 $ $ 880.131 $ 12,94•!.386 
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Unaolleot.ililea) 732.952 732.952 
Property Twces Receivable 5,132,701 5,132,701 
Other Taxes Receivable ~645,250 4,645,250 
Special Assessments Receivable 200,058 200.058 
lnte1•governmental Receivables 220,624 49,155 269,779 
Notes Receivable 182,290 182,290 
lnvestment.s 16,643,769 )6,643,769 
Prepaids 51,517 l.000 52,517 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents· 

Debt Service 773,664 24,528 798,192 
Capital Improvement Projeota 1,418.086 6,224,800 2,292,791 0,935,677 
Other Purposes 172,205 32,500 2,103.616 2.808,321 

Restricted Receivables: 
Debt Service l ,449,250 1,449,250 
Capital fmpl"()vement Projects 758,786 1,615.000 2,373,786 
Other Purposes 1.183,852 1, 188,852 

Restricted r nvestments: 
Debt Service 2,326,151 2,326, l51 
Capital [mprovemenL Projects 1.,870,076 l ,870,076 

'T'otal Assets $ 35.357,716 $ 2.572.491 $ I 0.55'1.666 $ 7,872,300 $ 6,691,835 $ 63,049,007 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $ 891,032 $ $ 4,13/:l $ $ 837,663 $ 1.732,881 
Customer Deposits 2,960.240 2/i,000 2,985.240 
Accrned Liabilities 1,568,771 344,121 1,912,892 
Unearned Revenues 1,306,418 l62.788 23,083 1,492,289 
Liabilities Payable from ResLrict.ed Assets 33,884 38.884 

Total Liabilities 6,760,345 l66,924 25,000 1,204,867 8,157, 136 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Revenues · Property Taxes 5, 132,701 1,449,250 1,615,000 8,196,951 
Deferred Revenues· Receivables 446,644 485.501 932 145 

TolaJ Deferred I oDows of Resources 5,679.345 1,449,250 l.615,000 485,501 9,129,096 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 51,517 1,000 52,517 
Restricted 7 . .292,91L 24,528 6,232,300 4, 159,901 17,'709.640 
Assigne-d 2.S44,275 1,098,713 10,386.741 8<11 ,566 15,171,295 
Unassigned 12Jl29,323 12,829,323 

Total Fund Balances 23,-018,0ll6 1.123.241 10,887,741 6,232,300 5.001,467 45,762,775 

Tot.al Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
ReSQurces, and Fund Balances $ 35,357.716 $ 2.572,491 $ 10,554,665 $ 7.872.300 $ 6,691,835 $ 68,049,007 

Amounc.s reporte<l for governmental activitie• in the Statement of Net Pos,tioo aro different bocause: 
Capit11l WIS<lt.& used in governmental funds ru,e nol financial reso~,:es. 151,887,214 
Net Pension Assets and Deferred Outflow,; of Resoure,,s are not avail,ihlo financial resources and are out 

reportA!d in I.he governmental funds. 9,411.256 
Other re.stritLed assets are not available financial resou:rces atid are not reported in thi, governmental fund,. 31,218 
Certain revenue is unearned in governmental fuuds but not i.n the Statement of Net Position because it 

qualifies for -recogni ti.on under the er.onom.ic Te.SOUTOeS measu rem en t f0<:us. 932,145 
lntemal service fund., are used by manag,,ment to charge the cost of fleet nutnagmnent. self·insurance, 

purchasing/warehousing. and information technology. The current assets and liabilities of internal 
servico funds are includod in govomrncntal activities in lhe Stateli!Mt of Net Poailion. 3,609,088 

l,ang-term liabilities. including bonds payable, compet1Sated absences, and pensions, are not due and payable 
in the current period.. (35,730,402) 

Othet financial obligations not due and payable in ,he current period. 601,4-79 
interest payable on long-rerm obligati.ons do oot require current tin.ancial resolltees and are not 

reported in the governmental funds. (252,720) 
Deferred ln1lows of Resol,U'(los related to pen.,ions do not requit'G cuneni, financial resoui'<:es and are not 

tepotk'd in the governmental funds. (2,606', 156) 

Net P9,'!ftion of Governmental Activities s ·113,545,847 

The notes to the financial staU1ment.s are an integral part of this statement 
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City of Orem 
Statement of Revenues, Eiqienditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Other Total 
Debt Capital Governmental Governmental 

General Service Projects Redevelol!ment Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Taxes and Special Assessments $ 36,186.708 $ 1,951,781 $ s 1.637,856 $ 2,028,527 $ 40,804,822 
Licenses and Permits 1,815,943 1,815.943 
IntergoverrunentaJ 3,938,893 428,710 4,867,601 
Chaiges for Services 7,662,2911 282,512 7,944,803 
Fines and Forfeitures 1,699.609 1,699,609 
Charges for Services - Othet• F1rnds 3,739,141 3.739.1,11 
Investment Earnings 401,342 10, 177 86,501 104,716 602,736 
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,724.369 404,666 94,760 30,709 2,254,504 

Total Revenues 56, 168,294 1,961,908 404,666 1,819.117 2.875.174 68.229,159 

EXPENDITURES 
Cuneot: 

General Government 12.810,872 l2,810,872 
Public Safety 21,752,7H 21.752.711 
Highways and Public Improvements 3,029,415 3,029,415 
Parks, Recreation and Arts 6,336,46l 1,256,633 7,593,094 
Economic and Physical Development 209.792 229,221 1123.1165 862,478 
Redevelopment 1,195,421 l.)95,421 

Debt Service: 
Principal Retirement 3.450.873 65.000 8,516,873 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 3,47-5,024 43.916 8,518,940 
Bond Issuance- Costs 35,650 35,650 
Capital Leases - Principal 109,494 109,4.9,1 
Capital Leases - lnterest 4,540 4,540 

Capital Outl-ay 3.889,806 2,688.786 1.708.718 6,822,414 15.109,224 
Total Expenditu.res 

E)(cess (Deficie1\cy) of Revenues 
48.142,591 61961,547 2,918,007 2,904,139 8.611,428 69,537,712 

over (under) 8x1)enditures 8,025,703 (4,999,639) (2,5l3.34t) (1,085,022) (5. 736,254) (6,308,553) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from Asset Disposals 97,005 6,976 103,983 
Issuance of Bonds 2,898.000 2,898,000 
Payment to Bond Refunding Agent (2,861,199) (2,861.199) 
Tuansfers Iu 3,lal.488 4,986,621 3.674,000 65.386 11.857,495 
Tuansfers Out (9,814,392) (33,615) (1,548,725) (213,704) (11,610,486) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (6,585,899) 5,023,422 3.647.363 Cl:548, 725) (148,3185 387,843 
Net Change. in Puud Balances 1,439,804 23.783 1.134,022 (2,633.7475 (5,884,572) {5,920,710) 

Fund Balance - Beginning 21,578.222 1,099,458 9,253.719 8,866,047 10,886.039 51,683.4.85 
Fund Balance - Eodin_g s 28,018,026 $ 1,123,241 :S 10.387, 741 s 6.232,300 $ 5.001,467 $ 45.'762,775 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of thi$ statement 
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City of Orem 
Reconciliation of The Statement of Revenues , 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
To The Statement of Activities 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Amounts reported for Governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
di.ffe1·ent because: 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds report. capital outlays as expenditw·es. However, in the 
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital Asset Purchases Capitalized 
Depreciation Expense 

The issuance of long·term debt provides cunent financial resources to 

governmental funds, while the payment of the principal of long·tel'm debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 

Issuance of Long·term De ht recorded as a long·term liability 

Principal Payments 1·ecorded as a reduction of the long·term liability 

Govel'nmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar 
items when debt is fu·st issued, whereas these amounts are amortized 
in the Statement of Activities. 

Bond Refundings · Loss on Defeasance 

Amortization of Bond Refundings · Loss on Defeasance 
Amortization of Bond Premiums (Discounts) 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not .require the 

use of current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as 
expenditurns in the governmental funds. 

Compensated Absences 
Interest Expense 

Pension Expense 
Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Expense 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not }'.)l'Ovide cw-rent financial 

resources a1·e not reported as revenues in the fonds. 
Special Assessment Revenues 

Charges for Services Revenues 
Pension Revenues • Nonemployer Contributions 

Internal service funds a1·e used by management to charge the costs of fleet 
m.anagement, purchasing/warehousing and self-insurance to individual 

funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is 
reported with governmental activities. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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$ 13,803,202 

(6,631,393) 

$ (2,898,000) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

6,430,367 

56,199 
(35,350) 

148,690 

14,422 
(151,078) 
(279,994) 

143,506 

(136,240) 

(77,962) 

304,971 

$ (6,920,710) 

7,171,809 

3,532,367 

169,539 

(273,144) 

90,769 

(274,404) 

$ 4,496,226 



City of Orem 
General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original. Final A.mounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Taxes and Special Assessments $ 34,443,868 $ 34,443,868 $ 35,186,708 $ 742.840 

Licenses and Permits 1,380,000 1,380,000 1,815,943 435,943 

Intergovernmental 3,362,500 3,815,826 3,938,891 123.065 

Charges for Services 6,524,971 6,519,553 7,662,291 1,142,738 

Fines and Forfeitures 1,328,000 1,530,000 1,699,609 169,609 

Charges for Services · Other Funds 3,716,443 3,739,141 3,739,141 

Investment Earnings 295,500 295,500 401,342 105,842 

Mis.cellaneous Re.venues 1,118,981 1,254,327 1,724.369 470,042 

Total Revenues 52,170,263 52,978,215 56,168,294 3,190,079 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government: 

Legislative 396,814 394,414 359,113 35,301 

Executive 4,215,695 4,575,719 3,050,523 1,525,196 

Administrative Services 3,979,148 3,995,238 3,628,244 366,994 

Development Services 3,832.413 4,162,805 3,711,734 451,071 
Legal Services 1,070,997 1,120,997 1,027,318 93,679 

Other · Unclassified 1,258,188 1,281,568 1,236,185 45,383 
Total General Government 14,753,255 15,530,741 13,013,1)7 2,517,624 

Public Safety: 
Police 13,609,498 14,904,683 14.,649,451 255,232 

Fire 8,302,777 8,796,595 8,135,764 660,831 

Total Public Safety- 21,912,275 23,701,278 22,785,215 916,063 
Highways and Public Improvements:, 

Administration 562,352 556,622 536,880 19,742 

Maintenance & Engineering 4,979,254 6,893,776 4,311,496 2,582,280 

Total Highways and Publiclmpl'ovements 5,541,606 7,450,398 4,848,376 2,602,022 

Pa1·ks, Recreation and Arts 6,646,393 7,994,016 7,172,057 821.959 
.Economic and Physical Development 218,754 268,614 209,792 58,822 

Debt Service: 
Capital Leases - Principal 109,494 109,494 109,494 

Capital Leases · Interest 4,540 4,540 4,540 

Total Debt Service 114,034 114,034 114,034 

Total Expenditures 49,186,317 55,059,081 48,142,591 6,857,668 

Excess of Revenues over E"-1>endit.ures 2,983,946 (2,080,866) 8,025,703 10,106,569 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Proceeds from Asset Di$_posals 2.5,000 31,000 97,005 66,005 

Transfers In 3,172,748 3,131,488 3,131,488 

Transfers Out (6,181,694) (9,814,392) (9,814.,392) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,983,946) (6,651,904) (6,585,899) 66,005 

Net Change in Fund Balance (8,732.770) 1,439,804 10,172,574 

Fund Balance - Beginning 21,578,222 2 1,578,222 2 1,578,222 

Fund Balance - Ending $ 21,578,222 $ 12,845,452 $ 23,018,026 $ 10,172,574 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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City of Orem 
Redevelopment - Special Revenue Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Property Taxes $ 1,429,924 $ 228,988 $ 228,988 $ 
Pl'operty Taxes- · Tax lncl·ement 240,000 1,408,868 1.408,868 
Investment Earnings 84,063 86,501 2,438 
Miscellaneous Revenues 94,760 94,760 

Total Revenues 1,669,924 1,721,919 1,819,117 97,198 
EXPENDITURES 

Current : 
Redevelopment 71,650 6,863,407 1, 195,421 5,667,986 
Capital Outlay 2,065,504 1,708,718 356,786 

Total Expenditures 71,650 8,928,911 2,904,139 6,024,772 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over (undel') Expenditui·es 1,598,274 (7,206,992) (1,085,022) 6,121,970 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 
T1·ansfers Out (1,598,274) (1,598,174) (1,548,725) 49,449 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,598,274) (1,598,174) (1,548,725) 49,449 

Net Change in Fund Balance (8,805,166) (2,633,747) 6,171,419 

Fund Balance · Beginning 8,866,047 8,866,047 8,866,047 

Fund Balance · Ending $ 8,866,047 $ 60,881 $ 6,232,300 $ 6,171,419 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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City of Orem 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Furnia 
J une 30, 2017 

B usinesa·type Activitiea • Enterpriae Pwida 
Wat.er Water 

Water Water Reclamation Reclamation Storm Water Storm Water 

Fund Fund Fun d Fund Fund Fund 

Curren t Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year 

ASSETS 

Current Asset<,: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13,254. 158 s 10,051,13i s 6,829.62' $ 4,984,934 $ 5, l24.6S.1 $ S.658.134 

Accounts Receivable (Net or Allowance for 

Doubtful AcmunW 3,086,088 1,765,759 1,032,524 817,125 402,178 377,698 

lnvv.nt.orios 
Reatricted Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

Debt Service 1,562,883 2,210,592 297,500 238,000 

Capital Improvements 1 10,000 88,000 

Total Current Assets 17,90S,o?9 14,027,485 8,269,648 6 ,127,859 ·5,526,709 3,935.827 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Asseta: 

Land 570,209 570,209 3,278,720 3,278,720 

BuildlngB and Systems 778,267 778,267 3.099,453 3.099,453 679.293 679,293 

Improvement<, other than Buildings 9, 190.916 9,175,916 2,028,934 2 ,013,926 115,667 105,667 

Machinery and Equipment 2,593,306 2,261,071 5,272,441 5,060,005 2,659,552 2,499.282 

Infrastructure 53.876.553 49,955.975 44.061,559 44.018,001 16,721,4 16 16,662,866 

Con.truction in Pr<>gl'8$ 1.688,050 785,307 27,027 

lntangil>hra 997,276 975,370 21,614 2J.514 

Lesa Accumulated Depreciation (26,564,221) (24,449.717) (28,888,447) (27, 406,258) (7.835.432) (7,197,862) 

Total Capital Assets <Net of Accumulated 

Deprecio.tion> 40,872,097 40.284,932 26,8 79,456 27,882,863 16,640,730 16,048,980 

Net PeMion Aasete 28 77 22 

Total Noncurrent Assetll 40,872,097 40.284 .9"55 26,8 79,466 27,382,440 15.640,780 16,049,002 

Total Assets 58,716,176 54.312,440 35, 149,104 33,510,299 21,167,439 19,984.,829 

DEFER.RED OUTPWWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Losl! on Uebt Refundi.ngs 870.152 491,880 220,358 247,760 

Pensions 764,3Sfi 580,662 646,202 540,967 283,573 231,614 

Total Deferi,,d Outflow• of Reaources 1,684,487 1,072,042 646,202 540,967 503,931 •!79,874 

Total Assets & Defemd Out.fl.ows of Resource.a $' 60,409.663 $ 55,384,482 s 85,795,306 s 84,051,266 s 21, 671,870 $ 20.464,203 

LlABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounta Payable $ 2,210,o95 '$ 1,532,222 $ 44.2,589 $ 88,956 $ 36,991 $ 3~.780 
Customer Depoeit• 77,518 74,850 

Accrued Liabilities 79,380 72,387 76,925 65,837 28,914 25, 173 
Aoorued Vacation Leave 95,507 95, 209 51,073 71,466 60,695 51,227 

Claima and Judgmen t& 

Unearaed Revenue 78.977 66,992 

Accrued fntereat Payable 1.72,684 224,842 37.444 41,128 
Capital Lcasu Payable · CUJTent Port.ion 

Bonds Payable · Current Portion 990,780 986,392 594,000 594,000 390,131 ~8 1,4 16 
Total Current Liabilities 3,704,941 3,052,394 1,204,587 819,158 5M.L75 533.724 

None~ Liabilitiea: 

Accrued Vacation Leave 5,027 5,0ll 4,794 8,761 3,195 2,696 
Cla ims and Judgment& 

Capital Leases Payable · Long-term PorUon 

Bonds Payable · Long·~rm Portion 13, 192,321 14,214,462 8,325,000 8,919,000 3,460,568 3,850,699 
Net Penaion Liability 996,163 879,116 842,200 818,856 369,583 350,625 

Total Noru:urrent Liabilities 14, 193,511 15,098,589 9,171,994 9,741,617 3,833,348 4,204,020 

T-J Liabilities 17,898,452 1.8.150,983 10,376,581 10,561,376 4,387,521 4,737;744 

DEFERREDI~LOWS OF RESOUROES 

Pensions 218.097 159,793 18~ .. 388 148,9 17 80,915 63,749 
Total Deferred Inflows of Re&ourcee 218,097 159,793 184,388 148.917 80,915 68,749 

NET POSlTlON 

Net In vestment in Capital Assets 27,559, 148 26,084,079 17,960,466 17.869,363 12.010,389 11,816,867 
Restricted (or Dobt Service 1,562,833 2,2 10,692 297,600 238,000 

Reatricted for Capital lmprovemenui 110,000 88,000 
Reatricted for PeMions 23 77 22 
Unreatrlcted 18,171.133 9.779,012 6,866,381 5.145.534 5,192,545 3,84 5,821 

Total Net Posit.ion il!,298,114 37,073,706 25,234,337 23,34-0,974 17,202,934 15,662.710 

Total Liabilitieo. Deferred Inflow• of Resourcos. 

& Net Poeition $ 60,409,663 $ 55,384,482 $ 85,795,806 $ 3 4,051,266 $ 21,671,S?O $ 20,464,203 

The notes to the fin,e,nciaJ atatementll are a.n integral part or lhia •tatement 
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Governmental 

Other Other Activitiee 
Enterprise Enterpri8e Internal 

Funds Funds Total Total Service Funds 

CWTen~ Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year 

$ 2,595,142 $ 1,981, 582 s 27,80S,46f> $ 20.575.684 s 3,778.842 

514,064 496,353 5,034,854 3,456,930 

118,842 

1,860,833 2,448.592 

110,000 88.000 

s. 109,206 2,477,885 34,808,642 26,569.056 4,197,18'1 

39,822 39.822 3,888,751 3,888,751 

4, 126,955 4,125,955 8.682.968 8,682,968 150,000 

1,911,903 1,895.601 18.247.420 13,191.110 

105,748 105,748 10.631,0•l 7 9,926,106 382,832 

l,709,S40 1,518,150 116,368.868 1 l 2,154,492 
735,307 1,615,077 

1,018,790 996,884 

(6,707,16 1) (5,551,016) (68.995,26U (64,604,853) (22S.813) 

2,185,607 2,134,260 86,677.890 85.850.535 259.019 

23 HG 
2,185,607 2, 134,288 85.677.890 85,850.680 259,019 

5.294,813 4,612,168 120,386,532 112.H9,736 4.456,203 

1,090.510 739.140 
199,536 Ia8,643 1,893,646 1,49! ,S86 853,704 

199.536 138,643 2.984',166 2,231.026 858. 704 

$ 5,494,349 $ 4,750.811 g 123.370,688 $ IM,650,762 $ 6,309.907 

312,309 $ 1339, 112 $ 3.001,984 $ 1,995,070 $ 38,328 

77.5l8 iM,350 

90,117 77,665 275.396 240.'152 72,751 

42,372 '12,126 289.647 260,027 152,784 
328,333 

318,803 378,900 397,780 415,892 

210,128 265,970 

1,000 
1,97•1,911 1,961,808 

763,661 837,698 6.227,364 5,243,569 588,146 

2,280 2,217 l5.246 13.685 ll,'188 
1,086,895 

2,1.807 

24,977,889 26,984,161 

260,057 209.854 2.468,003 2,258.451 l.112,639 

262,287 212,071 27,461.188 29,256,297 2,235.829 

1,025,948 1,049,764 33.688,602 34,499.868 2.823,975 

56,936 38, 167 540,336 410,626 243,597 

56,936 38,167 540,886 410.626 243,597 

2.185,607 2,184,260 59.7l5.600 56,904,569 233,2 ti 
1,860,833 2.448,592 

110.000 88.000 

23 145 

2,225,Sti8 1,528,597 27,465.917 20,298,964 2.009,123 
4,411,465 3,662.880 89, IH,850 79, 7,10,270 2,242.335 

s 5,494,349 s 4.750.SU $ 123,370,688 s 114,650,762 $ 5,309,907 
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City of Orem 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Businees·type Activities • Enterprise Funds 
Water Water 

Water Water Reclamation Reclamation Storm Water 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Current Yea:r Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for Services iii 13,225,1.70 $ 11,400,515 s 7,858,574 $ 6,437. 198 $ 3,944.772 

Other Revenues 2,322.374 Ul36,277 760,525 844, 672 57,200 

Total Operating Revenues 15,547,544 13,336.792 8,619.099 7.281.870 4,001.972 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personnel Services 2, 172.584 2,108,339 2,087,285 2 ,l79,220 726,348 
Supplies and Maintenance 713,247 722.234 650,143 7 19,318 174,988 

Administrative Fee l , 131,-\.56 1,176,268 666,216 661,251 276,321 
Utilities 586,867 718,139 699.567 716,223 6,017 
Contract Services 3,471,770 2.731,676 623,392 516,058 189.487 
Equipment Lease and Rentals 46,009 51,673 6,958 18.688 9,000 

Insurance 156,240 156,240 115,080 l 15,080 46,680 
Charges in Lieu of Property Tax 71,787 71,787 52,665 52.665 29,316 
Depreciation Expense 2, 114,504 1,987,416 1,703,885 1,630,336 751,842 

Miscellaneous t27,588 114,957 118,203 107,707 64,911 
1'ota.l Operating Expenses 10,592,052 9,838.729 6,723.394 6,716.5'16 2,274,910 

Operating Income (Loss) 4 ,955,492 3,498,063 1,895,705 565.324 1,727,062 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
AND EXPENSES 
Investment Earnings 143,794 95,963 64,461 37,082 t\5,750 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets 33,525 23,220 39,470 44,059 44.357 

Bond Issuance Costs (100,101) 

1uterest Expense (328,926) (496.887) (96,737) 
Total Nonoperating Revenues & Expenses (251,708) (377,704) 103,931 81,141 (6,630) 

lncome <Losa) before Transfers 
and Contributions d.703,784 3, 120,359 1,999,636 646,465 1,720.432 

Contributions from Developers l.210,975 811 ,000 113,900 79,000 59,050 
Transfers lo 146,858 149,440 

Transfers Out (842,209) (805,321) (220,173) (200,261) (239,258) 
Change in Net Position 5.219.408 2,775..178 1.893.363 525,204 1,540,224 
Total Net Position · Begio:ning 37,073,706 34,298,228 23,340,974 22,815,770 l5.662,710 
Total Net Position • Ending $ 42.293,114 $ 37,073.706 :s 25,234,387 $ 23.340,974 $ 17,202,934 

The notes to the fina.ucial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Governmental 
Other Other Activities 

Storm Water Enterprise Enterprise Internal 
Fund Funds Funds Total Total Service Funda 

Prior Year Current Year Pt:ior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year 

s 3,446,886 $ 6,091,248 $ 6.015,208 $ 31,119,764 $ 27,299.807 $ 4,762,700 
4,665 93,434 72,609 3,233,533 2,858.223 8,316 

3,451,551 6,184,682 6,087,817 34,353,297 30,158.030 4,771,016 

788,124 1,4-23,104 1.424,637 6.409,321 6,500,320 2,019,794 
161.555 351,223 361,062 1,889,601 1,964,169 2,967.164 
288.74.9 261.142 263.226 2.335, 135 2,889,494 

6.370 496,097 739,543 1,788.548 2,180.275 
236,749 2,927,644 2,860,909 7,212,298 6,345,392 

9,000 680,181 685,181 742,148 764,542 
46,680 25,000 25,000 343,000 343,000 
29,316 153,768 153,768 

738,633 156.145 155.768 4,726.376 4,512,153 15,393 
60,394 99.869 79,644 410,571 362,702 

2,355,570 6,420,405 6,594,970 26,010,761 25,505,815 5,002.351 
1.095,981 (235,723) (507,153) 8,342,536 4,652,215 (231.335) 

25.033 31,756 17,855 285,761 175,933 
117,352 67.279 1.760 

(100,101) 
(104,970) (425,663) (601,857) 
(79,937) 31,756 17,855 (122.651.) (358,645) 1,760 

1,016,04'! (203,967) (489,298) 8,219.885 4,293.570 (229.575) 

120.138 1.383,925 510,138 
1,102,000 835,000 1.24-8.858 984,44-0 

(236,505) (149,448) (145,540) (1,451,088) (1,387,627) (44,829) 
899,677 748,585 200,162 9,40 1,580 4,,lQ0,52 1 (274,404) 

14,763.033 3.662,880 3,462,718 79,740,270 75,339.749 2,516,739 
$ 15,662,710 $ 4,411,465 $ 3,662,880 $ 89,141,850 $ 79.740.270 $ 2,242,335 
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City of Orem 
Stat.ement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

B usiness·type Activities · Enterprise Funds 

Water Wate-i-
Water Water Reclamation Reclamation 
Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Cur rent Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from Customers and Users $ 14, 227,215 $ 12,966,613 $ 8,403,7,()0 $ 7,220,018 
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 

Payments to Suppliers U,480.482) (4,188,531) (1,l}lZ,375) (2,336,364) 
Payments for Personnel (2,173,576} (2,044,411) (2,101,399) (2,048,620) 
Payments for Interfund Services Used (1,131,456) tl.176,268) (666,216) (661,251) 

Net Cash Provided <Used) by Operating Activities 6,441,701 5,557,403 3,723,710 2.173,783 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING AC'1'IVIT1ES 

Transfers In 146.858 149,440 
Transfers Out. (842,209) (805,321) (220,173) (200,261) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Activities (695,35l) (655,881) (220,173) (2Q0,261) 

CASH FLOWS l"ROM CAPITAL & RELATED FINANCING ACTM TIES 

Acquisition of Capital Assets (1,490,694) (2,467,733) (1,212.753) 0 .136,528) 
Proceeds f«>m Sa1<,i; of Capital Assets 33,525 23,220 165,145 171,102 
Proceeds /'rom Bonds lssued 5,083,707 
Proceeds from Capital Le{!Ses 

Gain (Lo~ on Bond Refunding (459,268) 
Bond Issuance Costs (100,101) 
Principal paid on Outstanding Debt (6,032,280) (908,675) (594,000) (594,000) 
Interest paid on Outstanding Debt (369,768) (486,142) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital an d Related Financing Acti\lities (3,334,879) (3,839,330) (1,641,608) (1,559,426) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 
Investment Earnings 143,794 95,963 64,461 37,082 

Net Caslt Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 143,794 95,963 64,461 37,082 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,555.265 1.158, 155 1,926,390 451,178 
Casb and Cash Equivalents · Beginning of Year 12,26),726 ll, 103,5Z1 5,310,734 4.859,556 
Cash and Cash Equivalents· End of Year 14,816,991 $ 12,261,726 $ 7,237,124 $ 5,310,734 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

P rovided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income (Loss) 4,955,492 $ 3,498,063 $ 1,895.705 $ 565,324 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income CLoss) to Net Cash 

Provided (Used) by Ope_rating Activit ies: 

Depreciation Expense s 2,114,504 $ 1,987,416 $ 1,703,885 $ 1,630,336 
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables (1,320,329) (370,179) (215,399) (61,852) 
Uncrease) Decrease in Inventory 

U:ncrease) Decrease in Prepaids 

(Increase) Decrease in Pension Assets (183,650) (412,428) (105,158) (408,297) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Pizyahle 677,873 892,758 353,633 (90,625) 
Increase <Decrease) in Customer Deposits 3,168 (3,943) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 6,993 19,678 11,588 12,127 
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue 11,985 (10,640) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vacation Leave 311 6,020 20,641 11,823 
Increase. (becrease) in Pension Liabilities I 75,351 450,658 58,815 514,947 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims and J udgments 

Total Adjustments 1,486,209 2,059,340 1,828,005 1,608,459 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 6,441,701 $ 5,557,403 $ 3,723.710 $ 2,173,783 

Nonca.sh Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities: 

Contributions of Capital Assets -from Developers $ 1.210,975 s 811,000 $ 113,900 $ 79,000 

The notes to the financial statem en ts a re an integral part of t his statement 
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Other Other 'Governmental 
Storm Water Storm Water Enterprise Enterprise Total Total Activities 

Fund Fund Funds Funds Current Prior Intemal 
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Year Year Service Funds 

$ 3,977.487 $ 3,400,750 $ 6,166,971 $ 6,072,306 $ 82,775,873 $ 29,659,687 $ 

4,771,016 
(518,188) (584,029) (4,664,674) (4,754,278) (11,575,719) ( J J.868,197) (2,398,589) 
(728,453) (733,401) (1,404,361) (1,373,743) (6,407,789) (6,200,175) (l ,974,472) 
(276,321) (288,749) (26 1, 142) (263,226) (2,335,135) (2,389,494) 

2,454,525 1,794,571 (168,206) (318,936) 12,456,730 9,206,821 397,955 

I, 102,000 835,000 1,248,858 984,44-0 
(239,258) (236,505) (149,448) (145,540) (1,451,088) (1,387,627} (44-,829) 
(239,256) (236,505) 952,552 689,460 (202,230) (403,187) (44,829) 

(299.635) (655,397) (207,492) (84,269) (3,210,574) (4,343,927) (33,287) 
59,450 258.120 194,322 1,760 

5.088.707 

26,287 
(459,268) 

(100, IOU 
(368.720) (858,325) (6,995,000) (1,861,000) (480) 

(85,715) (96,096) (455,483) (582,238) 
(694.620) (l, 109,8 18) (207,492} (84-, 269) (5,878,599) (6,592,843) (5,720) 

45,750 25,083 31,756 17,855 285,761 175,933 
45,750 25,083 31,756 17,855 285,761 175,933 

1,566,397 478,281 6 13,610 304. no 6,661.662 2 ,386,724 347,406 
8,558,134 8,084,853 1,981,532 1,677.422 23,112,126 20,725,402 3,430,986 

$ 5,124,531 $ 8,558,184 $ 2.595.142 $ l ,981,582 $ 29,778,788 $ 23,112,126 $ 3,778,342 

s 1,727,062 $ l.095,981 $ (235,723) $ (507. 158) $ 8,31l2,536 s 4,652,215 $ (231,335) 

$ 751,842 $ 738,633 s 156,145 $ 155,768 $ 4,726,376 $ 4,512.153 $ 15,893 
(24,4811) (50,801) (17,711) (15,511) (l,577,92,1) (,J98.3 4S) 

(27,067) 

16,384 
(51,987) (174,545) (60.870) (106,554) (401,616) (1,101,824) (167,717) 

2,211 (48,965) (26,803) (37,929) 1,006,914 220.289 29,82 1 
3,168 (8,948) 

3,741 5,845 12,622 19,592 34,944 56.742 8,849 
(60,097} 31,844 (48,112) 21,204 

9,967 8,788 259 4,472 31.181 31.103 84,134 
36,124 215, IS5 68,972 186,535 339,262 1,317,275 128,905 

540,588 
727,463 698,590 72,517 188.217 4,1 14,194 4,554,606 629,290 

$ 2,454,525 s 1,794,57 J $ (163,206) $ (3 18,936) $ 12,456,730 $ 9,206,821 $ 397,955 

s 59,050 $ 120,138 $ $ $ 1,383,925 $ 510,138 $ 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Reporting Entity 

The basic financial statements of the City of Orem (the City) have been 
prepa1·ed in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard· 
setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The City of Orem was incorporated in 1919 and covers app1·oximately 18.66 
square miles. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of 
government. As requiI·ed by GAAP, the City and its component units 
(entiti.es for which the City is considered to be financially accountable) 
present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Repo1·t (CAFR). The City is 
considered to be financially accountable for an organization if the City 
appoints a voting majority of th e organization or there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to 01· impose specific 
financial burdens on the City. The City is also considered to be financially 
accountable for an organization if the organization is fiscally dependent (i.e., 
it is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates or charges, or issue 
bonded debt without approval from the City). 

The component units discussed below ai·e included as part of the City's 
reporting entity as blended component units within its governmental funds. 

• The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Orem (RDA) was established 
to prepare and carry out plans to improve, rehabilitate and redevelop 
blighted areas within the City. The RDA is governed by a board of 
trustees composed of the Mayor and members of the City Council. 
Although it is a legally separate entity from the City, the RDA is 
reported as if i t were part of the primaty government because of the 
City's ability to impose its will upon the operations of the RDA. The 
RDA is included in these financial statements as the Redevelopment 
Agency Special Revenue Fund. Separate financial statements are not 
issued fo1· t he RDA. 

• The City of Orem Foundation is a nonprofit charitable foundation . The 
Internal Revenue Se1'Vice (IRS) gave the City permission to form and 
opei-ate the trust as an approved section 50l(c)3 charitable foundation. 
This enables donors broader charitable donation capabilities since all 
donations may be fully tax deductible. Although it is a legally separate 
entity from the City, the City of Orem Foundation is reported as if it 
were part of the primary government because of the City's ability to 
impose its will upon its operations, its board of directors is 
substantively the same as the City's, and all of its services are for the 
benefit of the City. It is included in these financial statements as the 
Orem Foundation Trust Special Revenue Fund. Separate financial 
statements are not issued for this entity. 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 301 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

A. Reporting Entity (continued) 

The component unit discussed below is included as part of the City's 
reporting entity as a ble1ided component unit within its proprietary funds. 

• The Special Service Lighting District of the City of Orem (SSLD) was 
established to pU1·chase, install, and maintain street lights, poles, and 
fixtures within the City. The SSLD collects fees to pay for the street 
lighting system and the electl·icity to operate it. The SSLD is governed 
by a board of directo1·s composed of the Mayor and members of the City 
Council. Although a legally separate entity from the City, the SSLD is 
reported as if it were part of the primary government because of the 
City's ability to impose its will upon the operations of the SSLD. The 
SSLD is included in these financial statements as the Street Lighting 
Fund. Separate financial statements are not issued for the SSLD. 

B. Government·wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government·wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on all activities 
of the City and its component units. For the most paTt, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, 
which notmally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and chai·ges for support. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement 
Presentation 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct 
expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct 
expenses are those which are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment. Prngram revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services 01· privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that 
are restTicted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function ox segment. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among progl.'am revenues are reported instead as general Tevenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds a1'e 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The 
government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 
proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement 
Presentation (continued) 

the year fo1· which they are levied. Grants and similar items a:re recognized 
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. 

The use of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as 
assets in the government·wide financial statements, rather than reported as 
expenditures. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as liabilities in the 
government-wide financial statements, rather than an "other financing 
source''. Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt of the City are reported as a 
reduction of the related liability, rather than an expense in the government· 
wide financial statements. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current 
financial resoU1·ces measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are 1·ecognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current pei-iod or soon enough thereafter (within sixty 
days) to pay liabilities of the current pe1·iod. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incuned, as under accrual accounting. However, 
debt-service expenditures, as well as expendituxes related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, and earned but unreimbursed state, 
federal, and other grants associated with the current fiscal period ai·e all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and therefo1·e have been recognized as 
revenues of the cul'l'ent fiscal period. Property taxes are measurable as of the 
date levied (assessed) and are recognized as revenues when they become 
available. Available means when due, or past due, and received within the 
current period or collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities 
of the current period. All other revenues are considered to be measurable 
and available only when the City receives cash. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It 
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except 
for those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

• The Debt Se1-vi.ce Fund is used to account for all general obligation 
debt of the City of Orem. Operating transfers are made from the 
General Fund to service the debt payments made by this fund . The 
source of fund revenue for reti1·ing the general obligation debt is 
principally the power of the City to levy general property tax; however, 
certain debt is serviced by sales and franchise tax revenues. 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement 
Presentation (continued) 

• The Capital P1·ojects Fund is used to account for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities and equipment of the City of 
Orem (other than those financed by proprietary funds) as well as the 
use of resoU1·ces for the improvement, rehabilitation, or construction of 
roads (including sidewalks and intersections) and parks. 

• The Redevelopment Fund (see Redevelopment Agency of the City of 
Orem on page 49) is a special revenue fund used to account for the 
preparation and implementation of plans to improve, Tehabilitate, and 
redevelop blighted a1·eas within the City. The fund 1·eceives the 
majority of its revenues from general property taxes levied against 
properties that lie within each RDA project's boundaries. 

The City repo1·ts the following major proprietary funds: 

• The Water Fund accounts fol' the activities of the City's water 
production, t r eatment, and distribution operations. 

• The Water Reclamation Fund accounts for the City's sewer collection, 
treatment, and maintenance operations. 

• The Stonn Water Fund accounts for the ope1·ation and maintenance of 
the City's storm water system. 

The City reports the following internal service funds: 

• The Self-insurance Fund accounts for the insurance activities of the 
various funds throughout the City. 

• The Fleet Maintenance Fund accounts for the costs of operating and 
maintaining vehicles and equipment owned by the City. 

• The Purchasing/Warehousing Fund accounts for the centralized 
purchasing and warehousing operations of the City. 

• The Information Technology Flind accounts for the technological needs 
of the City primarily related to computers, netwol'lrs, servers, softwal'e 
p1·ograms, and phones. 

The effect of interfund activity has, generally, been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this are payments to 
the General Fund by various enterprise funds for providing administrative 
and billing se1·vices. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct 
costs and program 1·evenues reported for the various functions concerned, 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non· 
operating items. Operating Tevenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and deliveTing goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the 'Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

l, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement 
Presentation (continued) 

revenues of all enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
Tevenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non· 
operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and um·estricted resou1·ces are available for use, it is 
the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resoul'ces 
as they are needed. 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position/Fund Balance 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and other 
financial institutions, and deposits in other types of accounts or cash 
management pools that have the general characteristics of demand 
deposit accounts. City policy allows for the investment of funds in the 
following types of investments (in compliance with the State of Uta.h's 
Money Management Act): 

• Time certificates of deposit with federally insured 
depositories. 

• Investment in the Utah Public Treasurer's Investment 
Fund (PTIF), 

• Open·end managed money market mutual funds . 
• Qualified repurchase agreements with qualified 

depositories, certified dealer·s, or certified depositories. 
• Other investments allowed by the State of Utah's Money 

Management Act. 

Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measu.rement and Application. The 
Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Fund (PTIF), Zions Bank 
Institutional Liquidity Management Fund (ILM), and Moreton Asset 
Management Fund all operate in accordance with state laws and 
regulations. 

Cash equivalents are defined as short·term, highly liquid investments 
that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near 
maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value 
because of changes in inte1·est rates. Investments with maturities of 
three months OT less when purchased meet this definition. 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position/Fund Balance (continued) 

2. Receivables a.n.d Pa vables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
anangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year ai·e referred to 
as "due to" or "due from'' other funds. 

In the Water, Water Reclamation, Storm Water, Solid Waste, and 
Street Lighting funds , the City 1·ecords utility r·evenues billed to 
customers on a monthly basis. Unbilled service accounts receivable at 
fiscal yearend have been accrued as Tevenues and receivables. 

3. Inventories a.n.d PI·epaid Items 

Inventories of materials and supplies in the PuTchasing/W are housing 
internal service fund consist principally of materials used to repair the 
transmission, distribution, collection and treatment systems of the 
City's proprietary type services. These inventories are valued at cost 
and accounted for on a first-in, first-out basis (FIFO). The inventory of 
mate1·ials and supplies are charged to both enterprise and 
governmental fnnds when they are used/consumed by the specific fund. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to futui·e 
accounting periods and ai·e recorded as prepaid items, using the 
consumption method, in both government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 

4. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets are primarily comprised of cash and receivables 
restricted for future payments of principal and interest on debt service, 
unexpended portions of bonds issued fo1· capital construction purposes, 
and unexpended taxes and/or appropriations collected for very specific 
uses under state law. 

5. Net Pension Assets 

The Net Pension Assets of the City were determined by Utah 
Retirement Systems (URS) actu~rial valuations and roll·forwards 
using generally accepted actuarial procedures and were based upon 
actual historical contributions and census data provided to URS. Net 
Pension Assets rep1·esent the net difference between assets of the plan 
and the actuarially determined liabilities. 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position/Fund Balance (continued) 

6. Capital Assets 

The City's capital assets, which includes prope1·ty, plant, equipment, 
and infrastructure assets (i .e. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar 
items), are reported in the applicable gove1·nmental or business·type 
activities columns in the gove1·nment·wide financial statements. 

The City defines capital assets as assets with an individual cost of 
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. 
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at 
acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repaixs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets 

Infrastructm·e 

Buildings and Systems 

Machinery, Equipment, & Vehicles 

Furniture and Equipment 

lmp1·ovements other than Buildings 

7. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Years 

33 - 50 
25 - 33 t;3 

5 • 20 

5 • 20 

5 · 10 

These deferred amounts represent a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
1·esources (expense/expenditure) until that time. 

8. Compensated Absences 

For governmental funds, vested or accumulated vacation leave and 
compensatory time·off are not expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources and are t hus excluded as a 
liability in each fund's balance sheet and as an expenditure in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance. 
These balances would only be reported in a governmental fund's 
financial statements as a liability and expenditure if they have 
matm·ed (are due) . 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position/Fund Balance (continued) 

8. Compensated Absences (continued) 

For p1•oprietary funds, vested or accumulated vacation leave and 
compensatory t ime·off is recorded as an expense and a liability of those 
funds as the benefits accrue to the employees. 

The government-wide financial statements reflect the entire amount of 
vested and./01· accumulated vacation leave and compensato1J7 time·off 
for all governmental and proprietary funds and ai·e thus recorded as a 
liability in the Statement of Net Position and as an expense in the 
Statement of Activities. 

Employees are limited to two years of accumulated vacation leave. 
Employees earn twelve days of sick leave per year. While sick leave 
may be accumulated without limitation, no benefits accrue to the 
employees. Therefore, no liability exists and the costs of accumulated 
sick leave are charged to expenditures only when used. 

9. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows 
of resources and defened inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Utah Retirement Systems (URS) Pension Plan and additions 
to/deductions from URS's fiduciary net position have been determined 
on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this pul'J)ose, 
benefit payments (including 1·efunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

10. Long·term Obligations 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, 
long·term debt, net pension liabilities, and othe1· long·term obligations 
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net 
Position. Bond premiums, discounts, and losses on bond refundings 
are deferred and amortized over the life of the applicable debt. In the 
fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond 
premiums and discounts during the current period. The face amount 
of debt issued is reported as other financing sources while discounts on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Bond issuance 
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, 
are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position/Fund Balance (continued) 

11. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

These deferred amounts represent an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. 

12. Fund Balance I Net Position 

Fund Balance 
In the governmental fund financial statements, classifications 
comprising a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City 
is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts in these funds can be spent. 

Net Position 
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, 
classifications are based upon the accessibility of the underlying 
resources. Restricted items, while generally expendable, are legally 
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. 

13. Contributions from Developers 

Contributions from developers in the proprietary fund financial 
statements arise from outside contributions of capital assets, or from 
grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital 
acquisition and construction. 

E. Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and 
e>..'J)enses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the Governmental Fund 
Balance Sheet and the Government·wide Statement of Net Position 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total 
governmental fund ha.lances and net position of governmental activities as 
reported in the government·wide Statement of Net Position. This difference 
primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the Statement of Net 
Position versus the cur1·ent financial resources focus of the governmental 
fund balance sheets. 

Capital Related Items 
When capital assets used in governmental activities are purchased or 
constructed, the cost of these capital assets are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. However, the Statement of Net Position includes these 
capital assets among the assets of the City as a whole. 

Cost of Capital Assets 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Net adjustment to inc1·ease fund balance 
- total gove.J.'Ilmental funds to arrive at 
net position - gove:mmental activities 

Long-term Liability Transactions 

$ 276,047,062 
(124,159,848) 

$ 151,887,214 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities ai-e not 
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as 
fund liabilities in the governmental fund financial statements. All liabilities 
(both current and long-term) ai·e reported in the Statement of Net Position. 

Long·term liability balances at June 30, 2017 were as follows: 
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June 30, 2017 

2. Reconciliation of Government·wide and Fund Financial Statements 
(continued) 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the Governmental Fund 
Balance Sheet and the Government·wide Statement of Net Position 
(continued) 

Long·term Liability Type 

General Obligation Bonds 
Capital Leases 

Less: Internal Service Funds · Current Portion 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 
Notes Payable 
Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds 
Special Improvement District Bonds 
Bond Premiums Deferred 
Compensated Absences 

Less: Internal Se1·vice Funds· Current Portion 
Net Pension Obligations 
Net OPEB Obligations 
Claims and Judgments 

Less: Internal Service Funds · Current Portion 
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance -
total governmental funds to arrive at 
n et position -governmental activz'ties 

$ 8,535,000 
6,893,313 

(1,000) 
2,898,000 

869,779 
525,000 
155,000 
630,227 

1,972,014 
(152,734) 

11,887,107 
431,801 

1,410,228 
(323,333) 

$ 35,730,402 

B. Explanation of differences between Governmental Fund Operating 
Statements and the Statement of Activities 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balance -
total governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental 
activities as reported in the government·wide Statement of Activities. One of 
these differences is explained here in greater detail. 

The second element of the reconciliation states that ''the issuance of long· 
term debt provides cui·rent financial resources to governmental funds, while 
the payment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial 
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any 
effect on net position." 
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June 30, 2017 

2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
(continued) 

B. Explanation of differences between the Governmental Fund Operating 
Statements and the Statement of Activities (continued) 

The details of t his difference are as follows: 

Debt issued oi- incun·ed: 
Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds 

Subtotal 
Principal payments: 

General Obligation Bonds 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 
Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds 
Capital Leases 
Notes Payable 
Special Improvement District Bonds 

Subtotal 
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
balance - total governmental funds to arrive at 
changes in net position of gove1·nmental activities 

3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

A. Budgetary Information 

$ (2,898,000) 
(2,898,000) 

$ 1,665,000 
3,930,000 

625,000 
109,494 

90,873 
10,000 

6,430,367 

$ 3,532,367 

Prior to the first regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May, the 
City Manager and appointed Budget Officer, submits to the City Council a 
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 
1st. The operat ing budget includes proposed expenditures and the proposed 
sources of revenues. 

Between May 1st and June 2211d, the City Council reviews and adjusts the 
proposed budget. On or before June 22°d, a public hearing is held and the 
budget is legally adopted through passage of an ordinance. unless a property 
tax increase is proposed. If a property tax increase is proposed, a hearing 
must be held on or before August 17th, which does not conflict with other 
taxing entities that have proposed a property tax incr·ease. At this time the 
final balanced budget is adopted. 

The City Manager, in conjunction with the Budget Officei- and the 
appropriate department head, has the budget authority to transfer budget 
appropriations within a nd between any divisions of any budgetary fund. 
However, the "fund level" is the legal level of control and t he City Manager 
must obtain approval from the City Council to increase revenues or 
expenditures for any fund . 
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June 30, 2017 

3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (continued) 

A. Budgetary Information (continued) 

An individual department is composed of several divisions. Budget transfers 
may be made between divisions within a fund as long as they are in the same 
department. However, they may not transfer from one fund to another fund 
without City Council approval. 

The City Council (administrators of the legal level of control), by resolution, 
have the authority to transfer budget appropriations between individual 
budgetary funds. A public hearing must be held to increase the total 
appropriations of any one governmental fund type; however, after the 
original public hearing, operating and capital budgets of proprietary fund 
types may be inc1·eased by resolution without an additional hearing. 

Annual budgets for the General Fund, all Special Revenue Funds, Debt 
Service Funds, and Capital Projects Funds were legally adopted by t he City 
and are prepared on the modified-accrual method of accounting. Although 
Utah State law requires the initial prepa1·ation of budgets for all City funds 
(both governmental and proprietary), it only requires the reporting of actual 
versus such budgets for governmental funds. 

Tax Revenues 
Property taxes are collected by the Utah County Treasurer and remitted to 
the City in two to three installments in December, January, and a final 
settlement generally in March of the new calendar year. Taxes are levied 
and are due and payable on November 1st and delinquent after November 
30th of each year at which time they become liens if not paid. An accrual of 
lmcollected cul'rent and prior year's pl'operty taxes beyond those received 
within 60 days after the fiscal year end has not been made, as the amounts 
are not deemed to be material. 

Sales taxes ai·e collected by the Utah State Tax Commission and remitted to 
the City monthly. An accl'ual has been made for all taxes received by the 
State for the period ended June 30 and thus are due and payable to the City. 

Franchise taxes are charged to va1·ious utility companies doing business 
within the City including telephone, cable television, gas utility, and elect1·ic 
utility companies. The fees are remitted on a monthly, quartel'ly, or annual 
basis. An accrual has been made for all fees due and payable to the City at 
June 30. 
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4. Detailed Notes for all Funds 

A. Deposits and Investments 

The City's deposit and investment activities are governed by the Utah Money 
Management Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7). The State of Utah Money 
Management Council has the responsibility to advise the Utah State 
Treasurer about investment policies, promote measures and rules that will 
assist in strengthening the banking and credit structure of the State of Utah, 
and 1·eview the rules adopted under the authority of the Utah Money 
Management Act that relate to the deposit and investment of public funds. 

The Money Management Act requii·es deposits be in a qualified depository. 
The Act defines a qualified depository as any financial institution whose 
deposits are insur·ed by an agency of the federal government and which has 
been certified by the State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting 
the requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money 
Management Council. 

Deposits 
The City's deposits (including cash on hand) at June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

Cash on Hand & On Deposit 

CashonHaud 

Cash on Deposit · Checking 

Cash on Deposit · Pay1:oll 

Total Cash on Hand & On Deposit 

Custodial CJ"edit Risk 

$ 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

38,446 

2,620,917 

78,180 

2,737,543 

The custodial credit 1·isk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure , the City's deposits may not be recovered. Deposits in the bank in 
excess of t he insured amount are uninsured and uncollate1•alized. Deposits 
are not collateralized noT are they required to be by state statute. The City 
has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for these deposits. As of 
June 30, 2017, $3,109,409 of the City's bank balance of $3,280,042 is exposed 
to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollate1·alized. The carrying 
amount of the deposits at June 30, 2017, is $2,737,543. 

Investments 
The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as 
appropriate investments and the conditions for making investment 
transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted only through 
qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of investment 
securities. 

The Act autho1·izes investments in both negotiable and non-negotiable 
deposits of qualified deposito1·ies and permitted negotiable depositories; 
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June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

A. Deposits and Investments (continued) 

Investments (continued) 
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is 
classified as "first tier" by two nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations; bankers' acceptances; obligations of the United States 
Treasw·y including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage 
derivative products, issued by U .S. government sponsored en terprises (U.S. 
Agencies) such as the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), and Federal National Mortgage 
Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of 
political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations and 
variable rate securities rated ''A'' or higher, or the equivalent of "A'1 or higher, 
by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares or 
certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Money 
Management Act; and the Utah State Public Treasurers' Investment Fund. 

Fafr Value of Investments 

The City measures and records i ts investments using fair value measw·ement 
guidelines established by generally accepted accounting principles. These 
guidelines recognize a three·tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows: 

• Level 1: Quoted p1·ices for identical investments in active markets; 
• Level 2: Observable inputs other t han quoted ma1·ket prices; and, 
• Level 3: Unobservable inputs. 

At June 30, the City had the following recurring fair value measurements: 

Investments by Fair Value Level 

Debt Securities: 

Utah Pu blic Treasurer's 

Investment Fund 
Zions Bank Inst. Liquidity 

Management Fund 

Moreton Asset 

Management Fund 
UMB Money Market Fund 

Total Debt Securities 

Total Investments by Fair Value Level 

'l'otal Investments Measured 
at Fair Value 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fair 

Value 

54.759,397 

12,180,659 

10,359,625 

341,478 

77,641,159 

77,641,159 

77,641,159 
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12,180,H59 

10,359,625 
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City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

A. Deposits and Investments (continued) 

Investments (continued) 
Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted 
in active markets for those securities. Debt and equity securities classified in 
Level 2 are valued using the following approaches: 

• Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund-Application of the June 30, 
2017, fafr value factor) as calculated by the Utah State Treasurer, to 
the City's ending balance in the Fund. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. 

The City's policy for managing interest rate risk is to comply with the State's 
Money Management Act. Section 51 ·7· l l of the Act requires that the 
Temaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of 
availability of the funds to be invested. The Act limits the remaining term to 
maturity on all investments in commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, fixed 
rate negotiable deposits, and fixed rate corporate obligations to 270-365 days 
or less. The Act further limits the remaining term to maturity on all 
investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury; obligations issued by U.S. 
government sponsored enterprises; and bonds, notes, and other evidence of 
indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State of Utah to five (5) years.In 
addition, variable rate negotiable deposits and variable 1·ate securities may 
not have a remaining term to final maturity exceeding three (3) years. 

The City's investments at June 30, 2017, are presented below: 

Investment Type 

Debt Securities: 

Utah Public Treasurer's 

lnvestment Fund 

Zions Bank Inst. Liquidity 

Management Fund 

Moreton Asset 

Management Fund 

UMB Money Market Fund 

Total Debt Securities 

$ 

$ 

Fair 

Value 

54,759,397 

12,180,659 

10,359,625 

341,478 

77,641,159 

Less 

Than I 

$ 54, 759,397 

2,300,795 

4,080,972 

341,478 

$ 61,482,642 
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$ 16,158,517 $ 

$ 

$ 
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June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

A. Deposits and Investments (continued) 

Investments (continued) 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterpa1·ty to an investment 
will not fulfill its obligations. The City follows the Money Management Act 
as previously discussed as its policy for reducing exposui·e to investment 
credit risk. 

The City's debt investments ratings at June 30, 2017, are presented below: 

~ual itl: Rall'n!!!! 
Fair 

lnvestment 'f,l:'.Ee Value AAA J\ A A UnJ'ated 
Debt Secu rities: 

Utah Public Treasuter 's 
Investment Fund $ 5,4,759,397 $ $ $ $ :$4,769,397 

Zions Bank In.~~- T.1qu1d lty 
Management Fund 12,180,659 6,42'6 ,908 867,030 -t.,839,954 46,267 

Moreton Asset 
Management. Fund 1 0,359,625 3,457.99 1 312.129 6.589.505 0 

UMB Money Ma1•ket Fund 341,,178 341,478 

Total Debt Secul'it;es $ 771641.159 $ 9,884,899 $. 1,179,659 $ 11,-1-29,4,59 $ 05. 147, 142 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure 
of the counterparty, t he City will not be able to recover the value of the 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. The City does not have a formal policy for custodial credit r isk. 

Most of the City's investments at June 30, 2017, were with the Utah Public 
Treasurer's Investment Fund (PTIF) and therefore, are not categorized as to 
custodial credit risk. The investments in the Zions Bank Institut ional 
Liquidity Management F und (ILM) have custodial credit risk exposm·e. Of 
the $12,180,659 invested in the ILM Fund, none of the related securities are 
uninsured or unregistered. The investments in the Moreton Asset 
Management Fund have custodial credit risk exposure. Of the $10,359,625 
invested in the Moreton Asset Management Fund, none of the Telated 
secui·ities are uninsured or unregistered. 

Additional information regarding the Utah PTIF, Zions Bank ILM Fund, and 
Moreton Asset Management Fund is available in footnote 4.B. of th ese notes 
to the financial statements. 

The investment in the UMB Money Market Fund represents the amount held 
in a debt related trust fund. 
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4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

A, Deposits and Investments (continued) 

Investments (continued) 

Concentration of Credit Risk (continued) 

The City's policy for reducing this risk of loss is to comply with the Rules of 
the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council 
limits investments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate 
obligations to between five percent (5%) and ten percent (10%) depending 
upon the total dollar amount held in the portfolio. The Money Management 
Council limitations do not apply to secu1·ities issued by the U.S. Government 
and its agencies. Most of the City's investments at June 30, 2017, were with 
the Utah PTIF and therefore, are not categorized as to concentTation of credit 
risk. 

There are no amounts invested directly in Zions Bank securities either as 
corporate notes Ol' as secu.rities within the ILM Fund. There are no amounts 
invested directly in Moreton securities either as corporate notes or as 
securities within the Mo1·eton Asset Management .Fund. 

Additional information regarding the Utah PTIF, Zions Bank ILM Fund, and 
Moreton Asset Management Fund is available in footnote 4.B. of these notes 
to the financial statements. 

B. External Investment Pools and Managed Investment Funds 

Exte1·nal Investment Pools 

Pubh'c Treasurer's Investment Fund (PTIF) 

The City invests in this external investment pool which is administered by 
the Treasurer of the State of Utah. State agencies, municipalities, counties, 
and local governments within the state are allowed to invest in the PTIF. 
There is no required participation and no minimum balance or 
minimum/maximum transaction requirements. 

The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The 
PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act, Chapter 
51·7, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended. The Act establishes the 
Money Management Council which oversees the activities of the State 
Treasurer and the PTIF. The Act details the investments that are 
authorized, which aTe high·gTade securities, and therefore, thel'e is very little 
credit risk except in the most unusual and unforeseen circumstances. 

Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of 
Utah and participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on 
investments. 
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June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

B. External Investment Pools and Managed Investment Funds (continued) 

External Investment Pools (continued) 

The PTIF allocates income and issues statements on a monthly basis. The 
PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The 
participants' balance is their investment deposited in the PTIF plus their 
share of income, gains and losses, net of administl'ation fees, which are 
allocated to each participant on the ratio of each pa1·ticipant's share to the 
total funds in the PTIF. 

Twice a year, at June 30 and December 31, the investments are valued at fair 
value to enable participants to adjust their investments in this pool at fair 
value. The Bank of New York and the State of Utah separately determine 
each security's fair value in acco1·dance with GASB 31 (i.e. for almost all pool 
investments the quoted market price as of June 30, 2017) and then compare 
those values to come up with an agreed upon fair value of the securities. 

As of June 30, 2017, the City had $54,502,187 invested in the PTIF which 
had a fair value of $54,759,397 for an unrealized gain of $257,210. 

The following table shows statistical infol'mation about this investment pool: 

Investment Type 
Corporate Bonds and Not.es 
Money Market Accounts and Certificates of Deposit 
U.S. Government Securities 

Total 

Managed Investment Funds 

Investment 
Percentage 

88.62 % 

U.38% 
0.00 % 

100.00 % 

Zions Bank Institutional Liquidity Management Fund aLM) 

The City invests in this managed investment fund which is administered by 
the Investment Management and Capital Markets Division of Zions 
Bancorporation. The I'equil'ed minimum balance is $5,000,000. There are no 
minim um/maxim um transaction requirements. 

The ILM is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The ILM 
is a registered investment advisor and is certified by the Utah Money 
Management Council. The Utah Money Management Act details the 
investments that are authorized, which are high·g:rnde securities, and 
therefore, the1·e is very little credit risk except in the most unus.ual and 
unforeseen circumstances. 

Deposits in the ILM are not insUI·ed or otherwise guaxanteed by Zions Bank. 
The ILM issues statements on a monthly basis. It operates and reports on an 
amortized cost basis. The ILM balance is the City's investment plus income 
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4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

B. External Investment Pools and Managed Investment Funds (continued) 

Managed Investment Funds (continued) 

and gains less losses and ad.ministration fees. 

As of June 30, 2017, the City had $12,234,537 invested in the ILM which had 
a fail- value of $12,180,659 for an unTealized loss of $53,878. 

The following table shows statistical information about this fund: 

1ovestment Type 
Corporate Bonds and Notes 
Money Market Accounts and Certificates of Deposit 
U.S. Government Secui·ities 

Total 

Moreton Asset Management Fund 

Investment 
Percentage 

46.86 % 
0.38 % 

52.7G % 
100.00 % 

The City invests in this managed investment fund which is administe1·ed by 
the Moreton Advisors group. The rnquired minimum balance is $5,000,000. 
The1·e are no minimum/maximum transaction rnquirements. 

The Moreton Asset Management Fund is not registered with the SEC as an 
investment company. The Moreton Asset Management Fund is a registered 
investment advisor and is certified ·by the Utah Money Management Council. 
The Utah Money Management Act details the investments that are 
authorized, which are high·grade securities, and therefo1·e, there is very little 
credit risk except in the most unusual and unforeseen circumstances. 

Deposits in the Moreton Asset Management Fund are not insured or 
otherwise guaranteed by Moreton. The Moreton Asset Management Fund 
issues statements on a monthly basis. It operates and reports on an 
amortized cost basis. The Moreton Asset Management Fund balance is the 
City's investment plus income and gains less losses and administration fees. 

As of June 30, 2017, the City had $10,3621 167 invested in the Moreton Asset 
Management Fund which had a fair value of $10,359,625 for an unrealized 
loss of $2,542. 

The following table shows statistical information about this fund: 

Inv,estment Type 
Corporate Bonds and Notes 
Money Market Accounts and Certificates of Deposit 
U.S. Government SeclU'ities 

Total 
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Investment 
Percentage 

66.62 % 
0 .51 % 

32.87 % 
100.00 % 



June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

C. Customer Deposits 

Enterprise fund deposits are deposits the City requires from residential or 
business customers who are receiving a utility connection but have a 
banki·uptcy on 1·ecord o.r have had their water turned off (or about to be 
turned of:O for a third time in a twelve month period of time. The deposit is 
refundable after one year of satisfactory payment history. 

D. Loans Receivable · CDBG and EDA Loans 

The City uses monies from the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) program to create housing rehabilitation and business development 
loans. Additional funds from the Economic Development Agency (EDA) and 
t he Utah Revolving Loan Fund are used to supplement the business 
development loan program. The principal balance of the loans at June 30, 
2017, as summarized below, has been shown in the government·wide 
Statement of Net Position as follows: 

E. Receivables 

Rousing Rehabilitation Loans 
Business Development Loans 

Total 

$ 182,290 
303,211 

$ 485,501 

All 1·eceivables ai·e expected to be collected within one year except for 
$138,088 of special assessments in the General Fund, $4,350 of receivables in 
the Water Reclamation Fund, and $849,342 of notes receivable in the 
nonmajor funds. 

Governmental funds report deferred revenues in connection with receivables 
for 1·evenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of 
the current period. Governmental funds also report unearned revenues when 
revenue recognition is delayed in connection with resources that have been 
received, but not yet earned. 

As of June 30, 2017, the various components of deferred and unearned 
revenues repoTted in the governmental funds were as follows: 

Property Taxes Receivable 

Accounts and Notes Receivable 

Donations and Other Funds to be Used fur Specific Prngrams 

Grant Money Used in Revolving Loan Programs 

Special Assessments not yet Due 

'l'otal Deferred & Unearned Revenues fo~· Governmental Funds 
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Unavailable Unearned 
$ 8,J 96,951 $ 8, 196,951 

24-6,586 

1,492.168 

485,501 

200,058 
$ 9,129,096 $ 9,689,119 



City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
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4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

E. Receivables (continued) 

Receivables as of June 30, 2017, for the government's individual major funds, 
as well as nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including the applicable 
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

Allowance for Net Total 
Receivables Uncollectibles Receivables 

Governmental Activities 

General: 
Property Taxes $ 5,132,701 $ $ 5,132,701 
Other Taxes 4,645,250 4,645,250 
Special Assessments 200,058 200,058 
lntergovernmental 979,410 979,410 
Accounts 1,769, 130 (1,036, l 78) 732,952 

12,726,649 (1,036,178) 11,690,371 
Debt Service : 

Property Taxes 1,449,250 1,449.250 
Notes Receivable 21 ,.536,207 (21,536,207) 

22,985,457 (21,536,207) 1.449,250 
Redevelopment: 

Property Taxes 1,615,000 1,615,000 

Nonmajor Funds: 

Other Taxes 364,303 364,303 
Intergovernmental 80,373 80,373 
Not.es Receivable 1,232,798 (230,959) 1,001,839 

1,677,474 (230,959) 1,446,515 

Subtotal - Govenunental Activities 39,004,480 (22,803,344) 16,201 , 136 

Business-t,n!e Activities 
Water: 

Accounts 3,106,581 (20,493) 3,086,088 

Water Reclamation : 

Accounts 1,040,970 (8.446) 1,032,524 

Storm Water: 

Accounts 406,240 (4,062) 402,178 

No.nmajor Funds: 

Accounts 519, 144 (5,080) 514 ,064 

Subtotal · BusinesS'type Activities 5,072,935 (38,081) 5,0 34.854 

Totals $ 44,077,415 $ (22,841,425) $ 21,235,990 
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F. Capital Assets 

Governmental activities capital asset activity for the year ended ~Tune 30, 
2017, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Govurnmental Activities 

Capital Assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 63,445,925 $ 1,700,047 $ $ 65,145,972 

Construction in Proiress 2,629,327 10,532,128 (10,975,740) 2,185,715 

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciat.ed 66,075,252 12,232,175 (10,975,740) 67,331,687 

Capital Assets, being de,preciated: 

Buildings and Systems 32,814,607 142,568 32,957,175 

Improvements other than Buildings 30,113,287 4,103,955 34,217,242 

Mi,1chinery and Equipment 20,551,673 1,659,619 (90,042) 22,121,250 

Infrastructure 112,745,796 6,673,912 119,419,708 

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 196,225,363 12,580,054 (90,042) 208,715,375 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings and Systems (18,643,035) (1,188,411) (19,831,'M9) 

Improvements other than Buildings (19,487,839) (1,207,466) (20,695,305) 

Ms,chinery and Equipment (15,350,565) (1,069,894) 90,042 (16,330,417) 

Infrastructure (64,121,666) (3,181,0ll) (67,302,677) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (117,603,105) (6,646,785) 90,042 (124, I 59,848) 

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, ne.t 78,622,258 5,933,269 84,555,527 

Gove,rnmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 144,697,510 $ 18,165,444 $ (10,975,740) $ 151,887,214 
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F. Capital Assets (continued) 

Business·type activities capital asset activity for the year ended ,June 30, 
2017, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Busilness·type Activities 

Capiltal Assets, not being depreciated 

Land $ 3,888.751 $ $ s 3.888.751 

ln1tang1bles 996,884 21,906 1,018,790 

Co,nstruction in Progress 1,615,077 i , 193,72•1 (3,073, .!94) 735.307 

Tota.I Capital Assets, not being depreciated 6,500,712 2,215,630 (3,on,49,1) 5,642,848 

Capiital Assets, being der>reciaced: 

Bu,ild.ings and Systems 8 ,682,968 8,682.968 

1.mprovemems other than Building 13,191,110 57,704 (1,394) 18,247.420 

Machinery and Equipment 9,926,106 963,046 (258,105) 10,631.047 

T n.frast1·ucture l l 2,154,492 4,431,613 (217.237) 116,368,868 

Totail Capital Assets. being depreciated 143,954,676 5,452,363 (476,736) 148,930,303 

Les,i Accumulated Depreciation for : 

Buildings and Systems (7,340,864) (195,21'1) (7,536.078) 

T1111provements other than Buildings (5. 793,302) (617,851) 1.394 (6.409, 759) 

Machinery and f!:qu1pment (6,590,027) (645,986) 117,337 (7,118,676) 

ln:frastructLU·e (44,880,660) C'l,267,325) 217.237 (47,930,748) 

Tota11 Accumulated Depreda~ion (64,604,853) (4,726,376) 335,968 (68,995,261) 

Totatl Capital Assets. being depreciated, net 79,:349,823 725,987 (140,768) 79,935,042 

Busuness· type Activities Capital Assets. net $ 85,850,535 $ l,941,617 $ (3,214,262) $ 85,5771890 

-72-



City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

F. Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/prog1:ams of the primary 
government as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

General Government 

PubLic Safety 

Tughway and Streets 

Pai·ks, Rect·eation and Arts 

Redevelopme.nt 
Econom 1c and Physical Development 

Depreciation 

Expense 

$ 235,538 

1,034.,952 

3,676.814 

1,606,729 

91,077 

86,282 

Capital assets held by the government's internal 

service funds are charged LO various functions 

bal:led on their usage of the asset"'8 15,393 

Subtotal· Governmental Aclivihes 6,646,785 

Business·cype Activities 

Water 2,114,504 

Water Reclamat.ion 1,703,885 

Storm Water 751,842 

Recreation lll .807 

Street Lighting 44,338 

Subtotal· Busmess·Lype Activities 4,726,376 

Total Depreciation Expense $ 11,373,161 

Construction Commitments 
The City has active construction p1·ojects as of June 30, 2017. The projects 
include street construction in areas with newly developed housing, widening 
and construction of existing streets and sidewalks, water, water reclamation, 
and storm water system improvements, and new construction and 
imp1·ovements to various public facilities. At year-end. the City's 
commitments with contractors and others are as follows: 

Spent·to- Remaining 

~ Date Commitment 

Water Systems Improvements $ 859.142 $ 1,927,626 

Street Construction and Improvements 1.709,665 4,812,000 

Pubhc Facility Construction & lmprovcments 25,000 718.066 

Park and Recreation Impl'ovements 853,684 1,532,068 

Water Heclamation 1mprovament.\! 436,687 463,313 

Storm Water Improvements 1,506,000 

Total $ 3,884.178 $ 10,959,068 

-73-



City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

G. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

The composition ofinterfund balances as of June 30, 2017, is as follows: 

Interfund Transfers 
Transfers between funds occur primarily to finance programs accounted for 
in one fund with resources collected in other funds in accordance with 
budgetary authorizations. Fiscal year interfund transfers are as follows : 

ln Out 

Major Fund,;; 

Gene ral ,f; 3, 131 ,488 $ H,814,392 

Debt Service Fund •l ,986,621 

Capital Projects Fund ~.674,000 33.6 15 

Redevelopment Fund 1,548,725 

Water Fund 146,858 842,209 

Water Reclamation Fund 220,173 

Sto1·m Water Fund 239.258 

Nonm ajol' Governmental Funcjs 65,386 213.704 

Nonmajor Enterprise funds l ,102.000 149.448 

Internal Service Funds 44.829 

$ l!l, 106,353 s 13,lOG.353 

H. Jointly Governed Organizations 

The City in conjunction with other governmental entities, jointly governs 
several mganizations. Each organization's board is compl'ised of one member 
from each part icipating entity. A brief description of the City's relationship 
with each organization follows: 

Utah Risk Management Mutual Association (URMMA) - The City provides 
for its general liability risks and worker's compensation thi·ough a joint 
protection agreement with URMMA. During the year ended June 30, 2017, 
the City paid premiums of approximately $249.000 to URMMA. 

North Pointe Solid Waste Special Service District (NPSWSSD) - The district 
is a component unit of Utah County and represents thirteen cities in the 
northern part of the county. NPSWSSD was created to process and dispose of 
municipal solid waste. The City disposes of its solid waste through an 
agreemen t with NPSWSSD, which operates a solid waste transfe1· station. 
The City is represented on the NPSWSSD board and has voting rights 
related to the operations and financing of NPSWSSD. NPSWSSD has a 
se1·vice contract for the ultimate disposal of waste at a landfill located in an 
adjacent county. During the yeai· ended June 30, 2017, the City paid solid 
waste t ipping fees of approximately $994,000 to NPSWSSD. The City's 
waste, by weight, represents approximately 25% of all of the solid waste 
processed by NPSWSSD. 
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H. Jointly Governed Organizations (continued) 

North Utah Valley Animal Services Special Se1·vice District (NUV AS) · The 
Utah Count-y Board of Commissioners ("The Commission) created the district. 
The Commission delegated all powers to manage the district to an 
Administrative Control Board which has three members appointed by the 
Commission and a member from each of the fourteen paTticipating cities. 
Each participating city delivers stray, homeless, endangered, injm·ed or other 
animals to the district's shelter facility. NUVAS is cha1·ged with identifying 
and/or locating the animal's rightful owner. Personnel of the district also 
evaluate, house, treat and/or humanely dispose of any animal brought to 
them by the City. NUVAS also handles all licensing and licensing Tenewals. 
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the City paid participation fees of 
approximately $136,000 to NUVAS. 

Utah Telecommunication Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA) - UTOPIA 
was formed under the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act by its eighteen 
founding cities, of which, the City of Orem is a member. This agency has the 
assignment to design, finance, build, operate and maintain a fiber·to·home 
and fiber-to·business fiber optic communication network. UTOPIA will build 
the infrastructure but private companies will deliver the services over the 
network. During the yea1· ended June 30, 2017, the City paid UTOPIA 
approximately $14,000 in customer service fees. The City also paid 
$3,039,032 in pledge funds into a debt service reserve fund which was used to 
pay UTOPIA debt obligations for the fiscal year. A corresponding long-term 
note receivable was also increased by this amount. See footnote 5.B. lOther 
information, contingent liabilities) for additional infOI'mation. 

Utah Infrastt·ucture Agency (UIA) - UIA was formed under the Utah 
Interlocal Cooperation Act by its nine member cities, of which, the City of 
01·em is a membel'. This agency was organized to provide fo1· the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of telecommunication and cable television lines 
to a customer's p1·emises using a demand utility model. During the year 
ended June 30, 2017, the City forwarded Contract Utility Enhancement 
(CUE) agreement receipts of approximately $122,000 to UIA and paid 
approximately $8,800 in customer setvice fees. 

I. Capital Leases 

The City has entered into certain lease agreements under which the related 
equipment will become the property of the City when the terms of the lease 
agi·eement are met. All City lease contracts contain a fiscal non·funding 
clause that allows the City Council the option of terminating the lease 
agreement at the end of any fiscal year. In the opinion of City management, 
the likelihood of this clause being exercised is remote. 

The following is a schedule, by year, of future minimum lease payments of all 

-75-



City of Orem 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

I. Capital Leases (continued) 

capital leases as well as the present value of the net nummum lease 
pa~rments as of June 30, 2017: 

Year ending June 30, 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

202~1·2027 

.202$0 2032 

2033·2037 

Total minimuim lease payme nts 

Leas: Amount representing interest 

Present value of net u1inim-urn lease payments 

Governmental 

Activities 

$ 817,142 

594,777 

553,453 

55:.3,384 

555.293 

2,780,623 

2,2!33,830 

7,057 

8,095,559 

(l,20i,246) 

$ 6,893.313 

Equipment and related accumulated depreciation under capital leases is as 
follows : 

Cost of Equipment 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Difference 

J. Long·term Debt 

Geineral Obligation Bonds 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 6,822.542 
(248,568) 

$ 6.573,974 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for t he acquisition 
and construction of major capital prnjects. All general obligation bonds 
issued are for governmental activities. The 01·iginal amount of general 
obligation bonds issued in prior years was $16,485,000. 

Geue1·al obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and 
credit of the government.. 

GeJneral obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

Purpose Interest Rates 
Governmental activities: 

2009 Road Construction-Refunding 2.75% to 5.00% 
2014 Road Construction-Refunding 0.25% to 3.00% 

Total 
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Amount 

$ 665,000 
7,870.000 

$ 8,535,000 
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J. Long·ter m Debt (cont inued) 

General Obligation Bonds (continued) 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above re.fleeted general 
obligation debt is as follows: 

Year Ended Governmental Activities 
June 30, Princi12al Interest Totals 

2018 $ 1,225,000 $ 223,200 $ 1,448,200 
2019 1,250,000 193,425 1,443.425 
2020 940,000 157,175 1,097,175 
2021 965,000 128,600 1,093,600 
2022 1,000,000 99,125 1,099,125 

2023·2027 3,156,000 127,563 3,282,563 
Totals $ 8,535,000 $ 929,088 $ 9,464,088 

_$m3cial Assessment Bonds 
Sp~~cial assessment bonds are generally issued to provide funds for the 
construction of streets, sidewalks, water lines, sewer lines, aiad other 
infrastructure in new commercial or residential construction developments. 

Tht3se bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the property owners 
benefitted by the construction. I n the event a deficiency exists because of 
unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time a debt service payment 
is due, the government must provide resources to cover the deficiency un til 
other resources (fOI' example, foreclosure proceeds) are received. The City has 
a first lien priority in all of these projects. 

Tht:! City has the following special assessment bonds outstanding at June 30, 
2017: 

Northgate Village SID Bonds-Series 2010 
In November of 2010, the City issued Northgate Village special 
improvement district bonds of $1,915,000 through private 
p lacement for the improvement of property. The terms of the 
bond contract require principal and interest payable annually 
commencing November 2011 and continuing th rough November 
2025. The interest rate is fixed at 7 .75%. Outstanding p1·incipal 
at June 30, 2017, is $155,000. 
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J. Long-term Debt (continued) 

SpHcial Assessment Bonds (con t inued) 
SpE~cial assessment bonds cu1Tently outstanding at June 30, 2017, are as 
follows: 

Purpose Interest Rates Amount 
Governmental Activities: 

Pl"Operty Improvement · ln.&·astructure 
'I'otal 

7.75% $ 155,000 
$ 155,000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above reflected special 
assessment bonds is as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

2018 
2019 
2020 
202] 
2022 

2023·2027 
Totals 

Revenue Bonds 

Governmental Activities 
P1·incipal Interest 

$ l 5,000 $ 11,858 
10,000 10,850 
15,000 9,842 
15,000 8.758 
15,000 '7,595 
85,000 16,353 -----'---

$ 155,000 $ 65,256 

'l'otals 
$ 26,858 

20,850 
24,842 
23,758 
22,595 

101.353 
$ 220,256 

All of the City's water and storm sewer/water, water quality, franchise tax, 
and sales tax revenue bonds are payable solely by a pledge and assignment of 
their associated revenue sources. For additional information regarding the 
City's pledged-revenue coverage, see the table on pages 172·173. 

Thi~ City has the following revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2017: 

Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds - Series 2005 B 
In March of 2005, the City entered into an agreement to issue 
1·evenue bonds through the Utah State Department of Drinking 
Water of $3,000,000. The proceeds of the bonds were used for 
the completion of improvements to the city's water and storm 
water systems. The terms of the bond contract requii·e principal 
payable annually commencing in July 2006 with interest 
payable semi-annually in January and July tlu:ough July 2m~6. 
The interest rate is fixed at 1.48%. Outstanding principal at 
June 30, 2017, is $1,459,000. 
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J. Long·term Debt (continued) 

Revenue Bonds (continued) 

WateT QualitvRevenue Bonds -Series 2010 
In February of 2010, the City entered into an agreement to issue 
$11,889,000 in revenue bonds through the State of Utah's 
Department of Environmental Quality. The proceeds of the 
bonds were used to construct and expand facilities at the Water 
Reclamation Plant. The bond contract terms require principal 
payable annually beginning in February 2013 and continuing 
through February 2032. Payments on the bonds are paid foom 
sewer charges to customers. The interest rate is fixed at 0.00%. 
Outstanding principal at June 30, 2017, is $8,919,000. 

Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2010 
In Ma1·ch of 2010, the City issued franchise tax revenue 
refunding bonds of $4,375,000 through private placement. 'I'he 
proceeds were used to pay the 1·emaining outstanding princi1pal 
balances of the Series 2000 and Series 2007 lease revenue 
bonds. The bond contract requires principal payable annuaLlly 
commencing in March 2011 with inte1·est payable semi·annuailly 
in March and September thi·ough March 2018. The interest rate 
varies between 2.13% and 5.13%. Outstanding principal at June 
30, 2017, is $525,000. 

Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds- Series 2013 
In July of 2013, the City issued revenue refunding bonds of 
$12,801,000 through private placement. The proceeds w•3re 
placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating 
rnsources for future debt service payments of the Series 2005A 
water and storm sewer revenue bonds. The terms of the bond 
cont1·act require principal payable annually commencing in J ·uly 
2014 and interest payable semi-annually in January and July 
thTough July 2025. The interest rate is fixed at 2.18%. 
Outstanding principal at June 30, 2017, is $11,180,000. 

Water and Storm Sewei·RevenueRefundingBonds-Series 2016 
In October of 2016, the City issued revenue refunding bonde1 of 
$4,380,000 through a public offering. The proceeds were placed 
in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources 
fo1· future debt service payments of the Series 2008 water BLnd 
storm sewer revenue bonds. The terms of the bond contract 
require principal payable annually commencing in July 2019 
and interest payable beginning in January 2017 and payable 
semi-annually through July 2028. The interest rate varies 
between 2.00% and 4.50%. Outstanding principal at June 30, 
2017, is $4,380,000. 
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J. Long-term Debt (continued) 

Revenue Bonds (continued) 

Sales Tax Revenue RefundingBonds - Series 2017 
In Februa1·y of 2017, the City issued sales tax revenue refundi:ng 
bonds of $2,898,000 through a public offering. The proceeds 
were placed in a trust account and used to pay the remaining 
outstanding principal balance of the Series 2007 sales tax 
revenue refunding bonds. The terms of the bond contract 
require principal payable annually commencing in April 2018 
with interest payable semi-annually in April and Octobel' 
through April 2023. The interest rate is fixed at 1.94%. 
Outstanding principal at June 30. 2017. is $2,898.000. 

Revenue bonds currently outstanding at June 30, 2017, are as followH: 

PmEose Interest Rates Amount 
Governmental Activities: 

Recreation Projects 1.94% $ 2,898,000 
Street Lighting 2.13%-5.18% 525,000 

3,423,000 
Business-type Activities: 

Water 1.48%·4.50% 13,271.464 
Wastewate1· Treatment 0.00% 8,919,000 
Storm Water 1.48%·4.50% 3,747,536 

25,938,000 

Total $ 29,361,000 

Annual debt service requil'ements to maturity for the above reflected revenue 
bond debt is as follows: 

Year Ended Governmenta l Activities Business-type Activities 

June 30 , Principal Interest Principal Interest Totals 

2018 $ 1.756,000 $ 85.342 $ 1.873,000 $ 424.594 $ 4.138,936 

2019 459,000 32,340 1,974,000 3 96,704 2,862, 044 

2020 352,000 23,435 2 ,053,000 366,955 2 ,795,390 

2021 360,000 16,606 2,057,000 336,417 2,770,023 

2022 243,000 9.622 2 ,084,000 305,551 2.642,173 

20!23·2027 253,000 4,908 10,727,000 1.004,835 11.989, 743 

20!28· 2032 5,170,000 66,225 5 ,236,225 

Totals $ 3.423,000 $ 172,253 $ 25.938,000 $ 2,901,281 $ 32.434,534 
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J. Long·term Debt (continued) 

Revenue Bonds (continued) 

Current Year Advance Refunding 
In 2016) the City issued $4,380,000 of water and storm sewer Tevenue 
refunding bonds. The funds were placed in a trust for the purpose of 
generating resom·ces to pay all of the remaining outstanding principal 
balance of the Series 2008 water and storm sewer revenue bond.s. As a 
result, $5,075,000 of the Series 2008 water and storm sewer Tevenue bonds 
was removed from the governmental activities column of the Stat,ement of 
Net Position. The Temaining outstanding principal balance of the refunded 
bonds will be paid by the trust and will be extinguished by July 2018. The 
reacquisition p1·ice exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by 
$4B3, 118. This amount is shown as a deferred outflow of resources and is 
being amortized over the remaining life of the 1•efunded debt. The refunding 
was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next twelve 
years by $1,715,890 and resulted in an economic gain of $1,420,324. 

Current Year Refunding 
In 2017, the City issued $2,898,000 of sales tax revenue refunding bonds. 
Th(3 funds were placed in a trust for the purpose of paying a .U of the 
remaining outstanding principal balance of the Series 2007 sales tax revenue 
refiunding bonds. As a result, $2,805,000 of the Series 2007 sales tax revenue 
refunding bonds was Te.moved from the governmental activities column of the 
Stmtement of Net Position_ On April 15, 2017. the remaining outstanding 
principal balance for the refunded bonds were "called" and paid by the trust. 
Thius, as of June 30, 2017, there was no outstanding principal balance 
l'emaining on the Series 2007 sales tax revenue refunding bonds. The 
reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by 
$5fi,199. This amount is shown as a deferred outflow of resources and is 
being amortized over the remaining life of the refunded debt. The refunding 
was undertaken to !'educe total debt service payments over the next six yeru·s 
by $98,237 and rnsulted in an economic gain of $95,219. 

Notes Payable 

HUD Section 108 Loan 
In November of 2005, the City entered into a loan agreement 
with the DepaTtment of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) in the amount of $1,320,000 to promote. facilitate, a:nd 
encoui·age industrial and business development within the City. 
The terms of the loan agreement 1•equire principal payable 
annually commencing in August 2006 and interest payable 
semi·annually in February and August through August 2025. 
The interest rate is variable. Outstanding principal at June 80, 
2017, is $754,930. 
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J . Long-term Debt (continued) 

Notes Payable (continued) 

Mine1· Property Long·term Note Pa vable 
In June of 2000, the City entered into a 1ong·term note payable 
with Dea n and Blanche Miner in the amou.nt of $391,000 for the 
purchase of property for a new softball and soccer complex. The 
te1·ms of the note require principal and interest payable monthly 
commencing in May 2001 and continuing through April 2021. 
The interest rate is fixed at 6.00%. Outstanding principal a t 
June 30, 2017, is $114,849. 

Notes payable currently outstanding at June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

Purpose 
Govern mental Activities: 

HUD Section 108 Loan · 
Economic Devel opment 

Land Purchase · Park 
Total 

Interest Rates 

Variable 
6.00% 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

754,930 
l14,849 
869,779 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above reflected notes 
payable is as follows: 

Year Ended Governmental Activities 
June 30, PrinciEal Interest Totals 

2018 $ 97.469 $ 43,946 $ 141,4 15 
2019 104,163 38,446 142,609 
2020 105,962 32,710 138,672 
2021 107,255 26,745 134,000 
2022 80,000 21,788 101,788 

2023-2027 374,930 40,556 415,486 
Totals $ 869,779 $ 204,191 $ 1,073,970 

Changes in Long-term Liabilities 
Changes in bonds payable, deferred items, capital leases, and compensated 
absences during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, are as follows: 
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Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

J . Long·term Debt (continued) 

Changes in Long·term Liabilities 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Gt)vernmenta1 Activities 

Bonds Payable: 

General Obligation Bonds $ 10,200,000 $ $ (1,665,000) $ 8,535,000 $ 1.226.000 

Special Assessment Bonds 165,000 (10,000) 155,000 15,000 

Revenue. Bonds 5,080,000 2,898,000 (4,566.000) 3,423,000 1,756,000 

Plus Issuance Premiums 778,917 (148,690) 630,227 124,832 

Total Bonds Payable 16,223,917 2,898,000 (6,378,690) 12,743,227 3,120,832 

N1>tes Payable 960,652 (90,873) 869,779 97,469 

Ciipital Leases G,977,000 26,287 (109,974) 6,893,313 526,494 

Compensated Absences l ,902,302 348,666 (278,954) 1,972,014 1,870,103 

Net Pension Liabilities 10,347,717 1,539,390 11,887,107 

Ot,her Long·term Liabilites 1,301.441 1,076,409 (535,821) 1,842,029 442,632 

Government.al Activities 

Long·term Liabilities $ 37,713,029 $ 5,888,752 $ (7,394,312) $ 36.207,469 $ G,057.530 

Business·trne Activities 

Bonds Payable: 

Revenue Bonds $ 28,553,000 $ 4,380,000 $ (6,995,000) $ 25,938,000 $ 1,873,000 

Plus Issuance Premiums 392,967 703,707 (81,878) 1,014,796 101.911 

Total Bonds Payable 28,945,9G7 6,083,707 (7,076,878) 26,952,796 1,974,911 

Compensated Absences 273,712 46,227 (15,048) 304,891 289,647 

Not Pension Liabilities 2,268,451 209,562 2,468,003 

Busmess·type Activities 

Long·term Liabilities $ 31,478,130 $ 6,339,486 $ (7,091,926) $ 29.725,690 $ 2,264,558 

Compensated Absences 
City employees earn vacation based upon th e employee's years of service. 
Employees, upon termination, may be paid up to 336 hours 01f earned 
vacation. Amounts of vacation vested and not paid have been accrued as a 
liability at June 30, 2017. The General Fund has typically been used in prior 
years to liquidate this liability for governmental funds. 

While an employee may accumulate an unlimited number of sick h ours, these 
ho,us are not paid out upon termination. 
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4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

K. Equity Classification 

Government·wide and Prop1·ietarv Fund Financial Statements 
Equity is classified in the gove1·nment·wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements as net position and is displayed in three components: 

1) Net Investment in Capital Assets - consists of capitatl assets 
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated dep:reciation 
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes, or othe1· borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those capital assets. 

2) Restricted Net Position - resources with constraints placed on their 
use either by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other gove1·nments, ~>r (b) are 
imposed by law thi·ough constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

3) Unrestricted Net Position - consists of all other resources that do 
not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment i:n capital 
assets" as defined above. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
Equity is classified in the governmental fund financial statements as fund 
balance. Governmental fund balances ai·e further classified as 
Nomspendable1 Restricted, Committed, Assigned, or Unassigned. 

1) Nonspendable Fund Balance - this classification includes amounts 
that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable 
form, or (b) are legally or contractually required to be matintained 
intact. 

2) Restricted Fund Balance - this classification includes amounts that 
a1·e restricted by enabling legislation. Other amounts are also 
reported in this classification if they are (a) externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments, or (b) are imposed by law through constitutional 
p1·ovisions or enabling legislation. 

3) Committed Fund Balance - this classification includes amounts 
that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal action (ordinance) of the City Council, which is 
the City's highest level of decision making authority. It also 
includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing 
1·esources are specifically committed for use in satisfyiJC1g those 
contractual requirements. 
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4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued.) 

K. Equity Classification (continued.) 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

4) Assigned Fund Balance - this classification includes amounts that 
are constrained by the City's intent to use the funds for specific 
purposes, but are neither 1·estricted no1· committed, as established 
by the City Manager. The City Manager rnceived the authority to 
place constraints on city funds through an ordinance created by the 
City Council. It also includes all remaining amounts that a1·e 
reported in governmental funds (other than the Genen1.l Fund) 
which have specific purposes and that are not classified iln one of 
the previous classifications. 

5) Unassigned Fund Balance - this classification is generally the 
residual classification for the General Fund. However, it may be 
necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance for other 
governmental funds if expenditures incuri·ed for specific :purposes 
exceeds the amounts restricted, committ ed, or assigned for those 
purposes. Thus, this classification is normally a positive amount 
within the General Fund and represents fund balance thalt has not 
been restricted, committed, or assigned for any specific purposes. 

When restricted and um·estricted resources a1·e available, it i s the City's 
accounting policy to use restricted resoul'ces first. 

When committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use, it 
is t;he City's accounting policy to use committed resolll'ces first, followed by 
assigned resources. and then unassigned resources as they are needed. 

ThB City has not formally adopted any minimum fund balanoe policy. 
However, the State of Utah does require the City to maintain 5% of the 
current fiscal year's actual revenues as a minimum fund balance. The City is 
cognizant of and adheres to this requirement. 

The following page provides greater detail of the fund balance classifications 
and categories for all governmental funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2017. The governmental fund balance classifications and categoriHs at the 
end of the current fiscal year ai·e as follows: 
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4. Detailed Notes for all Funds (continued) 

K. Equity Classification (continued) 

5. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

Debt. Capital Redeve lop· NonmaJor Tot.al 
General Service Projects meot Governmental Governmental 

F1md Fund Fund Fund ll\tnds I F1mds 
Fund Balances: 
~onspendabte: 

P repaids s 5 1,5J 7 $ $ 1,000 s s s 52,517 
51.517 1,000 52,;, 17 

"Restricted: 
Cll\ss "C" Hoads ,t,()13,064 ,t ,013,064 
l:topia OSR Plec:lge 3,099,8 15 3 ,099,8 15 
Task Force l -17,205 147,205 
Econ. Dt>v. Re. Agrmnts 32,500 32,500 
Pat:ks, Rec., & ,\ rt.s 1.878,235 1,878.236 
La nd Acquisition 22,345 22.345 
Civic Audiloriwo l,7ll,U2 1,7 11, 142 
Debt Se,•vice 24,528 24,528 
Capital Improvements 25.000 6.,199,800 201,051 6.425,85 l 
OHlllr PurpOl$l'N 7,827 347,128 354,955 

7.292.911 24.528 6,232,300 -I, 159,901 17.709,640 
\S!ligned: 

Vehicles J3 I,657 331,657 
Fi.re Equipment :M2,300 2J. l ;J7 263,~7 
Polir.e Eqwpment 92.77 1 Dl .4'21 184, 192 
Libra1'Y Media Fu r1ds 187,47 J 187,471 
Economic Dev. Punds 487,529 187,529 
City Center Imp. 3,43 1 054,4::IU 957,870 
Community Promotlon 568,081 568.081 
StreerlSt1:eet Light I mf). 4,574,470 4,674,470 
Park Improvements 1.889,578 1.889.578 
D1>bl Se rv,ce 1,098.7 13 1.098.713 
Capital lmp1·ovemen1.s 213.131 Z,855,696 3,339 J,072, 166 
Other Purposea 1,285,985 270.146 1,556, 13 1 

2,S.44,275 1,098.713 10,386,741 84 1.566 15, 171,295 

Unassigned 12,829,323 12.829.328 

Total F und Balances $ 23,0 18,026 :S 1. 123,241 $ 10,387,741 $ 6.232,300 ~ s,001.,t67 $ 45,762,775 

1 Sec pages I J 2· 11 3 for a breakdown by incliv1dual fund 

Other Information 

A. Risk Management 

The City is ex'I)osed to various risks of loss related to t orts; theft of, damage to 
and destruction of assets; enors and omissions; injuries to employees; and 
natural disasters . The City maintains a Self-insurance Fund to account for 
and finance its uninsm·ed risks of loss. Under this progTam, the Self­
insurance Fund provides coverage up to $600 ,000 for each worker 's 
compensation claim. Third party insuTance provides coverage for claims 
above $600,000. The Self-insurance fund also p rovides coverage up to 
$15,000 for general liability and $10,000 for pl'Operty damage. The City is 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

A. Risk Management (continued) 

insured through the Utah Risk Management Mutual Association (URMMA) 
for liability and claims in excess of coverage provided by t he Self-insurance 
Fund for liability and property claims. While URMMA pays for any liability 
and property claims exceeding the deductible amount, these claims are 
repaid by the City thrnugh a five yeru· recapture program. Thus, each year 
the City pays its annual premium plus a recapture component. As of June 
30, 2017, the outstanding recapture program liability is $898 030. This 
liability is presented in the changes in long-term liabilities table {page 83) as 
part of the icother long-term liability" amount. 

The City is insured by Safety National Insurance Company for worke1·'s 
compensation claims in excess of covel'age provided by the Self-insurance 
Fund. Only one claim has exceeded this coverage in the past five fiscal years. 
All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to t he 
Self-insurance Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior 
and cunent year claims. As of June 30, 2017, the estimated 1·eserves liability 
is $512.198. This liability is presented in the changes in long-term liabilities 
table (page 83) as an "other long-term liability". The activity in worker's 
compensation claims (all retained risk) for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2017 is as follows: 

Year ended June 30, 2016 2017 
Claim liability, beginning of year $ 170,455 $ 178,14.5 
Claims incmnd during the year 110,111 265,600 
Changes in estimates of claims of prior periods 165.018 430.284 
Payments on claims during the year (267,439) (361,831) 
Claim liability, end of year $ 178,145 $ 512,198 

B. Contingent Liabilities 

Amounts received or receivable from gi·ant agencies are s ubject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any 
disallowed claims including amounts already collected, may constitute a 
liability of the applicable fund. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may 
be disallowed by the grant.or cannot be determined a t this t ime, although the 
City expects such amounts, if any, to be immate1·ial. 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these 
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's counsel 
the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the 
financial condit ion of the City. 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

B. Contingent Liabilities (continued) 

Utah Telecommunication Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA) 
The City is a member of UTOPIA, an interlocal, nonprofit agency. UTOPIA 
was formed under the Utah Interlocal Cooperation Act by its eighteen 
founding cities, of which the City is one of the eleven pledged membe1·s. This 
agency has the assignment to design, finance, build, operate and maintain a 
fiberto·home and fiber-to-business fiber optic communication network. 
UTOPIA will build the infrastructure. but private companies will deliver the 
services over the network. UTOPIA acts as the wholesaler, not the retaile1·. 

In July 2004, UTOPIA issued an $85,000,000 revenue bond. In June 2008, 
UTOPIA issued $185,000,000 in new revenue bonds to pay and cancel the 
2004 rnvenue bonds, pay and cancel other related debt, pay outstanding 
unfunded construction commitments, provide two years of capitalized interest 
and LOC payments, provide approximately $10,000,000 in operational and 
construction funds, and to pay the costs of issuing the 2008 bonds. 

In December 2011, UTOPIA refinanced the existing 2008 variable rate bonds 
and replaced them with a long·term 1·elatively fixed rate debt structure 
(SWAP arrangement). The new debt st1·ucture eliminated the letter of credit 
fee and will r esult in an estimated savings of $117 million over the life of the 
bonds. The new 2011 revenue bonds still have principal payments due 
quarterly commencing in December 2013 and continuing tht·ough June 2040 
with interest payments due monthly commencing in January 2012 and 
continuing through June 2040. 

Net revenues from the communication network will reimburse a debt service 
reserve fund for payments on the bond debt. To the extent that there are 
insufficient net revenues to pay the debt service, the eleven pledged members 
ate requil·ed to reimburse the UTOPIA debt service reserve fund of any 
shortfall by their respective percentages up to a specific dollar amount. Each 
member city has pledged sales tax revenues to pay their respective 
percentage of any shortfall amount. None of the pledge requirements were 
modified by the 2011 bond Tefinancing. The City's liability limit (pledge) for 
the current fiscal year was set at a maximum of $3,039,032. The pledge limit 
has an annual increase which is not to exceed 2%. The Citys total remaining 
maximum pledge amount for all fiscal years thl'Ough 2040 (end of the bond 
term) is $89,007,311. 

The current estimated cost to construct the fiber optic netw01·k in all member 
cities is approximately $400,000,000. 
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5. Otlher Information (continued) 

B. Contingent Liabilities (continued) 

Utah Infrastructure Agency (UIA) 
The City is a member of UIA, an interlocal, nonprofit agency. UIA was 
formed under the Utah Intedocal Cooperation Act by its nine member cities, 
of which the City is one of the eight contracting members. This agency was 
org:anized to provide fo1· the acquisition, construction, and instaUation of 
tel1ecommunication and cable television lines to a customer's premise s using a 
demand utility model. 

The UIA network will be connected to the fiber optic network of UTOPIA (see 
previous page) pursuant to an Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) agreement 
which provides UIA access to certain facilities of and capacity in the UTOPIA 
network. Construction of the UIA network began in May of 2011 and will be 
undertaken in phases and will be paid for by issuing up to $65,000,000 in 
revenue bonds. 

In May 2011, UIA issued $29,390.000 in revenue bonds ($20,27fi,OOO tax 
exempt and $9,115,000 taxable). The 2011 revenue bonds have principal 
payments due annually commencing in April 2012 and continuing- through 
April 2036 with interest payments due semi-annually in April andl October 
beginning in October 2011. The interest rate on these bonds varies between 
3.20% and 5.50%. 

In July of 2013, UIA issued an additional $11,205.000 (all tax el:empt) of 
revenue bonds. The 2013 revenue bonds have principal paym,ents due 
annually commencing in October 2014 and continuing through October 2038 
with interest payments due semi-annually in April and October beginning in 
October 2013. The interest rate on these bonds varies between 2.00% and 
5.25%. 

In Octobex of 2015, UIA issued the remaining $24,295,000 (all tax exempt) of 
revenue bonds. The 2015 revenue bonds have principal paym,ents due 
anmually commencing in October 2016 and continuing through Octo,ber 2040 
with interest payments due semi-annually in April and October beginning in 
Ap:ril 2016. The interest rate on these bonds varies between 1. 00% and 
5.25%. 

Service fee revenues from the UIA network will be used to make the debt 
service payments. To the extent there are insufficient seTvice fee revenues to 
pay a debt service payment, the eight contracting members are required to 
pay to UIA any shortfall by their respective percentages up to a specific 
dollar amount. Each contracting city has pledged franchise tax revenues to 
pay their 1·espective percentage of any shortfall amount. The City's liability 
limit (pledge) is set at $1,223,786. The City did not have to make any pledge 
payments in Fiscal Yeai· 2017. 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

C. Pension Plans 

General I nformation and Plan Description 
The City is an eligible plan participant whose pension plans are administered 
by and provided through the Utah Retirement Systems (URS). URS 
administers the following pension t-rust funds (collectively refened to as '1The 
Systems"): 

• Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System 
(Noncontributory System); Public Employees Contributory Retirement 
System (Contributory System); and the Firefighters Retirnment 
System (Firefighters System). Each of these systems is a cost·sharing, 
multiple·employer1 public employee retirement system. 

• Public Safety Retirement System (Public Safety System). This plan is 
a mixed agent and cost·sharing, multiple-employer public employee 
retirement system. 

• Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Ti.er 2 
Public Employees System) and Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 
Conti·ibutory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 
System). Both of these systems are cost-sharing, multi.ple·employer, 
public employee retirement systems. 

The Tier 2 Retirement Systems became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible 
employees hired on or after July l, 2011, who had no previous service credit 
with any of the Utah Retirement Systems, are members of the Tier 2 
Retirement System. 

The Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of Title 
49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems' defined 
benefit plans are amended statutorily by the Utah State Legislature. The 
Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the administration 
of the Systems under the direction of the Utah State Retirement Board 
(Board), whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems are 
fiduciary funds defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. 
URS is a component unit of the State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code 
grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms. 

URS issues a publicly available financial report which includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the Systems. The 
financial report may be obtained by writing to the Utah Retirement Systems, 
560 East 200 South, Salt Lake City, UT 84102 or by visiting the URS website 
at www.urs .org. 

Summary of Retirement Benefits by System 
The Systems currently provide retirement benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments, disability benefits, and death benefits. 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

C. Pension Plans (continued) 

Summary of Retirement Benefits by System (continued) 
A s ummary of retirement benefits are as follows: 

Final Yeats of Service 
Average required and/or Age Benefit Percentage 

Retirement System Salary Eligible for Benefit Per Year of Service 

Non.contributory System Highest 30 Years · Any Age 2% /Yr · All Years 

3Years 25 Years · Any Age * 
20 Years· Age 60 * 
10 Years · Age 62 * 

4 Years· Age 65 

Contributory System Highest 30 Years · Any Age 1.25% I Yr to June 1975 

5 Years 25 Years· Any Age* or 
20 Years · Age 60 * 2% /Yr from July 
10 Years · Age 62 * 1975 to the Present 

4 Years· Age 65 

Public Safety System Highest 20 Years · Any Age 2.5% I Yr up to 20 Yrs 

3 Years 10 Years · Age 60 and 
4 Years· Age 65 2% /Yr over 20 Yrs 

Fire:fightex:s System Highest 20 Years · Any Age 2.5% I Yr up to 20 Yrs 
3 Years 10 Years· Age 60 and 

4 Years· Age 65 2% I Yr over 20 Yrs 

Tier 2 Public Employees Highest 35 Years · Any Age 1.5% I Yr· All Yetu·s 

System 5 Yeru:s 20 Years· Age 60 * 

10 Years · Age 62"' 
4 Years · Age 65 

Tier 2 Public Safety and Highest 25 Years · Any Age 1.5% I Yr· All Years 

Firefighter System 5 Years 20 Yea.rs · Age 60 * 
10 Years· Age 62 * 

4 Years· Age 65 

* Ac1tuarial reductions apply. 

COLA** 
Up to 4% 

Up to 4% 

Up to 2.5% 
or 4.0% 

Depending 
on 

Employer 

Up to 4% 

Up to 2.5% 

Up to 2.5% 

0 All post·retil-ement cost·otliving adjusLments are non·compounding and a.re based on the original loenefit except 

for J iudges (compounded benefit>. Cost·of·hving adjustments are also limited to the actual Consume·r Price Index 
(CPT) increase for the yeai·. However, unused CPI increases may be Cal"ried forward to subsequent years. 
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C. Pension Plans (continued) 

Contributions 
As a condition of participation in the Systems, the City and/or its employees 
are required to contribute certain percentages of salaries and wages as 
authorized by statute and specified by the URS Board. Contributions are 
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions (where applicable), is expected to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year with an additional amount to finance 
any unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates are as follows: 

Employer Employer Employer 
Employee Paid for Contribution Rate for 

Retirement System Paid Employee Rates 40l(k) Plan 
Noncontributo1·y System 

Local Governmen.tal · Tier 1 NIA NIA 18.47% NIA 

Conti:ibuto!Y System 

Local Governmental · Tier l 6.00% NIA 14.46% NIA 
Local Govemmental · Tier 2 NIA NIA 14.91% 1.78% 

Public Safetv System 

Noncontributory· Tier 1 NIA NIA 38.94% NIA 
Contrjbutory (74) · Tier 1 10.50% NIA 28.95% NIA 
Contributory (122) · Tier 2 NIA NIA 26.67% 1.33% 

Firefighters Svstem 
Division B · Tie1· l NIA L6.71% 6.66% NIA 
Division B · Tier 2 NIA NIA 10.75% 1.33% 

Tier 2 DC Only 

Local Governmental NIA NIA 6.69% 10.00% 
Public Safety NIA NIA 16.00% 12.00% 
Firefighters NIA NIA 0.08% 12.00% 

Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability of the Tier 1 plans. 
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C. Pension Plans (continued) 

Contributions (continued) 
For the. fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the employer and employee 
contributions to the Systems were as follows: 

Retirement System 
Nonconti·ibutory System 
Contributory System 
Public Safety System 
Firefighters System 
Tier 2 Public Employees System 

'Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System 
Tier 2 DC Only 

Tier 2 DC Public Safety & Firefighter System 
Total Contributions 

Employer Employee 
Contributions Contributions 
$ 1,733,503 NIA 

1 36,617 
1,417,4 0 5 

210,460 
402,025 
275.954 

31,690 NIA 
35,813 NIA 

$ 4 ,243,467 $ 
==-===== 

Contributions reported are the URS approved required contributions by the 
System. Contributions in the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the 
unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems. 

Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, Defened Outflows of Resom·ces
1 

and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources related to Pensions 
At June 30, 2017, the City had a net pension asset of $111876 and a net 
pension liability of $14,355,112. 

Proporlionate NetPen$ion Net Pension 
Retirement System Share Asset Liability 
Noncontributo:ry System 1.1669202% $ $ 7,493,056 
Contributory System 4.2142704% 1,382,749 
Public Safety System 7.8307470% 4,880,882 
Firefighters System 3.8179852% 564,747 
Tier 2 Public Employees System 0.3019157% 33.678 
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System 1.3680971% 11,876 

Total Net Pension Asset I Liability $ 11,876 $ 14,355,112 

The net pension asset and liability were measured as of December 31, 2016, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset and 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016, and 
rolled forwa1·d using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion 
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C. Pension Plans (continued) 

Pension Assets. Liabilities. Expense. Deferred Outflows of Resources, and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1·elated to Pensions (continued) 
of the net pension asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer's 
actual contributions to the Systems during· the plan year over the total of all 
employer contributions to the Systems during the plan year. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City had pension expenses of 
$4,269,413. 

At June 30, 2017, the City had deferred outflows 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

and inflows of resources 

Sources 

Differences between expected aud actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Net difference between projected & actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion and <;liffe1·ence between contdbutions 
and proportionate share of cont1·ibutions 

Contributions subsequent to t he measurement date 

Total Deferred Oul.-flows / Inflows of Resources 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 

Resources 
1,748,656 
2,666,365 

4.432,798 

113,397 
1,958,989 

10,920 ,205 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resmu·ces 

$ 893,668 
843,989 

1,289,321 

119,514 

$ 3,146,492 

Contributions made by the City to URS prior to om· fiscal year end but after 
the measurement date of December 311 2016, are reported as deferred 
outflows of resources related to pensions in the amount of $1J958,989. These 
contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the following fiscal year. Other amounts 1·eported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of 1·esources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows~ 

Yeax Ended December 31. 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Thereafter 

-94-

Net Deferred 
Outflows 
(Inflows) 

of Resources 
$ 1,716,214 

1,726, 179 
1,829,994 

254,054 
262,630 

25,651 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

C. Pension Plans (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016, actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement period: 

Inflation 

Salal"Y Increases 

1nvestment Rate of Return 

2.60% 

3.35% to 10.35%, Average, inc]uding Inflation 

7.20%, Net of Pension Plan Investment Expense, 
including Inflation 

Mortality rates were developed from actual experience and mortality tables, 
based on the member's gender, occupation, and age, as appropriate, with 
adjustments for future improvement in mortality based on Scale AA, a model 
developed by the Society of ActuaTies. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2016, valuation were based 
on the results of an actuarial experience study for the five (5) year period 
ending December 31, 2013. 

The long·term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected futw·e real rates of 1·eturn (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long·term expected rate of 1·eturn 
by weighting the expected futurn real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation 
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Equity Sectu-i.ties 

Debt Secu1-i.ties 

Real A-ssets 
Private Equity 
Absolute Return 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Totals 

Inflation 

Tiu-get 

Asset 
Allocation 

40% 

20% 

13% 

9% 

18% 

0% 
100% 

Ex-pected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

-95-

Real Return Long-term Expected 
Arithmetic Portfolio Real 

Basis Rate of Return 
7.06% 2.82% 
0.80% 0.16% 
5.10% 0.66% 

11.30% 1.02% 
3.15% 0.57% 
0.00% 0.00% 

5.23% 

2.60% 

7.83% 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

C. Pension Plans (continued) 

Actua1·ial Assumptions (continued) 
Th,2 7 .20% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation 
rate of 2.60% and a real return of 4.60% that is net of investment expense. 

DiE:count Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 .2,0%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
employee contributions will be made at the cunent contribution rate and that 
corntributions from all participating employers will be made at contractually 
requfred Tates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS 
Boi1rd. Based upon those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected futw·e benefit 
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long·term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
The discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond Index Rate. The discount 
wa:S reduced to 7.20% from 7.50% from the prior measurement periodl. 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and Liability 
to changes in the Discount Rate 
Thi3 proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7 .20%, as well as what the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
1.00% lower (6.20%) 01· 1.00% higher (8.20%) than the current rate is 
presented in the following table: 

1.00% Discount LOO% 
Decrease Rate In(:rease 

Retirement System (6.20%) (7.20%) (8 .20%) 
Noncontributory System $ 15,520.658 $ '7,493.056 $ 794,461 
Contributory System 3,328,753 1,382,749 (256,562) 
Public Safety System 10,114,449 4,880,882 603,896 
Firefighters System 5,390,133 564,747 (3:,415,647) 
Tier 2 Public Employees System 229,238 33,678 (115.093) 
Tier 2 Public Safety & Firefighter System 83,087 (U,876) (84,853) 

Total $ 34,666,318 $ 14,343,236 $ (2:,473,798) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
De1tailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 1s 
av2tilable in the separately issued URS financial report (www.urs.org) . 

Funding and Allocation Method 
The City used each active URS participating employee·s current vvage and 
yeaLTs of service to calculate a weighted amount. These weighted amounts 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

C. Pension Plans (continued) 

Funding and Allocation Method (continued) 
were used to establish a percentage of each system's total applicable net 
liability or asset (as provided by URS). Each employee is then assigned their 
applicable amount based upon the prior calculations and grouped according 
to their job assignment. The total amount for all employees associated with a 
governmental fund is recorded as a governmental activity in the government· 
wide statements. Obligations for these employees are generally liquidated 
through the General Fund. Amounts fo1· all employees associated with a 
proprietary fund are identified and all associated transactions are recorded 
w ithin the applicable proprietary fund. Each proprietary fund is responsible 
to liquidate its own pension obligations. 

D. Employee Retirement Plans other than Pension Plans 

401 k Defined Contribution Plan 
The City's 401 k defined contribution plan is administered by ICMA 
Retirement Corporation (ICMA-RC). The payroll covered by the defined 
contribution plan for the year ended June 30, 2017, was $27,331,667. The 
City's expense for this plan for the year ended June 30, 2017 was 
appI'Oxi.mately $354,000 or 1.29% of the total participants' salary. 

The contribution rates were previously fixed by the City Council and the 
cont1·ibutions were remitted on a timely basis. All employees are fully vested 
for the contributions made by the City. 

In the early 1980's, the City elected to withdraw from the Utah Retirement 
Systems (URS) pension plan and contribute these funds to each employee's 
401(k) account. How,ever, State lawmakers soon mandated that all 
employees were required to join the URS except certain classes of employees. 
The City Council was allowed to identify which employees qualified. They 
elected to allow department heads, the City Manager, and City Council 
members the option of whether or not to participate in the URS. There are 
cunently three employees, the Mayor, and all six City Council members who 
have elected to not participate in the URS. 

The City also participates in the URS 40l(k) defined contribution savings 
plan which is generally a supplemental plan to the basic pension benefits of 
the URS, but may be u sed as a primary retirement plan. Employee and 
employer contributions to the URS 401(k) defined contribution savings plan 
for t he fiscal years ended June 30 were as follows: 

Cont ribution Type 

Employer Contributions 
Employee Contributions 

$ 

$ 
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2017 
167,501 $ 

$ 

2016 2016 
120,495 $ 72,133 

$ 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

D. Employee Retirement Plans other than Pension Plans (continued) 

457 Deferred Compensation Plan 
The deferred compensation plan was created in 1981 as a Social Security 
1·eplacement program for the employees of the City. The deferred 
compensat ion is not available to employees until termination, retii·ement, 
death, or unforeseeable emergency. The City participates in fou1· plans. The 
assets associated with these p lans are not included in the basic financial 
statements, as they are not legal assets of the City. 

All elected officials and permanent employees may also elect to participate in 
the City's defened compensation plan and all t empo1·ary employees are 
required to participate in a defened compensation plan. Under this plan, 
participants defer a percentage of their compensation up to 7.5% for executive 
management personnel and up to 5.5% for all other employees (except for the 
City Manager, whose pai·ticipation in the plan is determined through 
negotiation with the City Council, and employees rnquired to pay Medicare 
insurance premiums) for employees hired prior to March 1986. For those 
hired after March 1986 the percentage is 6.0% and 4.0% respectively. The 
City matches the amount deferred by the participants, not to exceed the 
maximums listed previously or the IRS legal limit. The payroll covered by 
the defeITed compensation plan for the year ended June 30, 2017, was 
$27,331,667. The City's expense for this plan for the year ended June 30, 
2017, was approximately $1,375,780 or 5.03% of the total paxticipants' sala1y. 
The contribution rates were determined by the City Council and the 
contributions were remitted on a t imely basis. 

The City also participates in the URS 457 defined contribution savings plan 
which is generally a supplemental plan to the basic pension benefits of the 
URS, but may be used as a primary retirement plan. Employee and employer 
contributions to the URS 457 defined contribution savings plan for the fiscal 
yeai·s ended June 30 were as follows: 

Cont ribution Type 
Employe1· Contributions 
Employee Contributions 

$ 

$ 

E. Other Postemployment Benefits 

Plan Description 

2017 
103,778 $ 

116,54-8 $ 

2016 
100,665 $ 

110,633 $ 

2015 
96,538 

106,449 

The City provides postemployment healthcare benefits through a single· 
employer defined benefit plan to all employees who retired from the City 
prior to January 1, 2007, and who were qualified to retire from any of the 
Utah State Retirement Systems. The benefit, benefit level, employee 
contributions and employer contributions are governed by City policy and can 
be amended at any time. The plan is not accounted for as a frust fund, as an 
irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the plan. The plan 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

E. Other Postemployment Benefits (continued) 

Plan Description (continued) 
does not issue a separate financial report. 

Employees who retire(d) on or after January l, 2007, are not eligible to 
participate in this plan unless retiTee health insurance is offered as an option 
to an employee under a voluntary separation plan which ar e unusual and 
infrequent. Otherwise, no new entrants to the plan will occm·. 

Funding Policy 
The City currently pays for postemployment benefits othe1· than pensions on 
a "pay·as·you·gd' basis. Contribution amounts for the City and the plan 
members may be amended at any time and for any reason. For the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017, total plan premiums paid were $118,212. The City 
contributed $52,155 (44.12% of total p1·emiurns) and retiree plan members 
receiving benefits contributed $66,057 (55.88% of total premiums). The 
activity of the plan is reported in the City's General Fund and all obligations 
are liquidated through the General Fund. 

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation 
The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the City's 
annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to 
cover normal cost each year and amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities over 
a pe1·iod not to exceed thirty years. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017< the City's OPEB cost (expense) and 
annual required contribution CARCJ were $118,212 and $117,559, 
respectively. 

The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for 
the year, amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's 
net OPEB obligation: 

OPEB 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 
Adjustments to ARC. 

Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 
Contributions 

Decrease in Net OPEB Obligation 
Net OPEB Obligation · Beginning of Year 
Net OPEB Obligation· End ofYeai.· 
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$ 117,559 
653 

118,212 
(118,212) 

431,801 
431,801 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

E. Other Postemployment Benefits (continued) 

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation (continued) 
The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation fol' the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017, and the two preceding fiscal years is as follows: 

Annual % of Annual N et OPEB 
Fiscal Yea1• OPEB City OPEB Cost Obligation 

Ended Cost ContJ:ibutions Contributed For Fiscal Yx 

June 30, 2017 $ 118,212 $ 118,212 100.00% $ 431 ,801 
June 30, 2016 $ (762,787) $ 156,296 120.49% $ 431 ,801 
June 30, 2015 $ 90,419 $ 90,419 100.00% $ 1,350,884 

The Net OPEB Obligation of $4'31,801 has been accrued and is presented in 
the changes in long·term liabilities table on page 83 as an ''other long·term 
liability". 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 
As of January 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 
not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $431,801, and the 
actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (UAAL) of $431,801. The covered payrnll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $26,487, 192, and the ratio of the UAAL 
to the covered pay1:oll was 1.63%. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of 
events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about mo1·tality 
and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded 
status of the plan and the annual required contributions (ARC) of the City 
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the futul'e. The schedule of 
funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to t he financial statements (see page 108), presents multi·year 
trend information about whethel' the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing ove1· time 1·elative to the actuarial accrued liabilities 
for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits fo1· financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the City and the plan membe1·s) 
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and 
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and 
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to 1·educe the effects of short·term 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

E. Other Postemployment Benefits (continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued) 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long·term perspective of the calculations. 

In the January 1, 2016. actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost 
method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment 
rate of return (net of ad:ministrative expenses) and an annual healthcare cost 
trend rate of 6.5% for FY 2017, 7.3% for FY 2018, and 5.5% for FY 2019. The 
assumed rate of inflation was 2.50%. The actua1·ial value of plan assets was 
not determined as the City has not advance funded (nor does it intend to) its 
obligation. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll over a closed ten year and 
six month period. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2016, 
was seven years. 

F. Segment Information for Enterprise Funds 

The City has issued revenue bonds to finance certain improvements to its 
culinary water distribution system, water reclamation plant, and storm 
sewer system. Because each of these activities is accounted fo1· in separate 
funds and all of those funds are reported as major funds in the fund financial 
statements, segment disclosures herein are not required. 

G. Redevelopment Agency of the City of Orem 

For the year ended June 301 2017, the following activity occuned in the City's 
Redevelopment Agency: 

Tax Increment Collected From Other Taxing Agencies For 
The Project Arna Total 

Orem 85·01: Orem Tek Development 

Orem 85·02: Timpanogos Technological Center 
Orem 85·03A: University Parkway Development 
Orem 85·03B: Univel'sity Pal'kway Development 
Orem 85·04: Economic Zone in Central Orem 
Orem 87·10: Boyel' Pl'Oject on Center and State Street 
Orem 90·08: 800 N01·th a,nd State Street Economic Zone 

Total 

Outetanding Loans to Finance RDA P1·ojects 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

377,692 
177,211. 

253,938 
324,982 
126.365 
161,631 
216,037 

1,637,856 
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5. Other Information (continued) 

G. Redevelopment Agency of the City of Orem (continued) 

During th e year ending June 30, 2017, the RDA expended monies in the 
categories below as follows: 

Economic Development 
Capital Outlay 

Total 
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$ 

$ 

1,195,421 

1,708,718 

2,904,139 
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System 

Nonconti-ibutory System 

As of December 31, 2016 

As of December 31. 2015 

As of December 31. 2 0 14 

Con tributory System 

As of Decernbe1• 31 , 2016 

As of December 31, 2015 

As ofDecem be1• 31, 2014 

P ublic Safety Svstem 

As of December 31 .. 2016 

As of December 3 1. 2015 

As of December 3 1, 201 4 

REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

City of Orem 
Schedule of the Proportionate Share 

of the Net Pension Liability 

Utah Retirement Systems (URS) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 1 

Proportionate 

Share of the 

Net Pension 
Proportion Proportionate Liability <Asset) 

of the Share of the as a% of its 

Net Pension Net Pension Covered Covered 
Liability / Liability Employee Employee 

Asset <Asset) Payroll Payroll 

1.1669202% $ 7,493,056 $ 10,377.805 72.2% 

1.1507910% $ 6,5ll,735 $ 10,141,076 64.2% 

1.1640325% $ 5,054,503 $ 10,4.27,520 48.5% 

4.2l tl2704,% s 1,382,749 $ 1,011,168 I36.'i% 

2 .3846854% $ 1,676,087 $ 1,016,082 165.0% 

1.970073 1% $ 568,255 $ 1,055,247 53.9% 

7.8307470% $ 4,880,882 s 4, 114,120 118.6% 

7.6878583% $ 3,751,301 $ 4,043,837 92.8% 

7.8553996% $ 3, 106,282 $ ,i ,163,687 74.6% 

(continued on next page) 

Plan 

Fiduciary 

Net Position 

asa%of 

the Total 

Pension 

Liability 

87.3% 

87,8% 

90.2% 

92.9% 

85.7% 

94.0% 

86.1% 

S7.H% 

89.0% 



System 

Firefighters System 

As of Decembe1· 31, 2016 

As of December 31, 2015 

As of December 31, 2014 

Tier 2 Public Emgloyees System 

As of December 31. 20 rn 
As of December 31, 2015 

As of December 31, 2014 

Tier 2 Public Safety 
and Firefighters Syst,em 

As of December 31, 2016 

As of December 31, 2015 

As of December 31, 20 14 

Total ·AsofDecember3l. 2016 

Total · As ofDecembe1· 31. 2015 

'l'otal · As of Decem bei· :31, 2014 

REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

City of Orem 
Schedule of the Proportionate Share 

of the Net Pension Liability 

Utah Retirement Systems (URS) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 1 

Proportionate 

Share of the 

Net Pension 
Proportion Proportionate Liability <Asset) 

oftbe Share of the as a% ofita 

Net Pension Net Pension Covered Covered 
Liability/ Liability Employee Employee 

Asset <Asset) Payroll Payroll 

3.8179852% $ 56,1,747 $ 3,300.053 17.1% 
3.9201431% $ 667,045 $ 3,306,HlO 20, 2% 

4.1264713% $ (454, 109) $ 3,468,618 -13. ]% 

0.3019157% $ 33,678 $ 2,475,959 1.4% 

0.2589627% $ (565) $ 1.673,317 0.0% 
0.1982677% $ (6,008) $ 972,77 1 -0.6% 

1.3680971% $ (11,876) $ 1,130,354 ·1.1% 

1.2593445% $ (18,399) $ 749,442 ·2.5% 

1.1227061% s (16,608) $ 464,014 ·3.6% 

$ 14,343,236 $ 22,409,459 64.0% 

$ 12,587,204 $ 20,929,914 60.1% 
$ 8,252,3 15 $ 20,551,857 40.2% 

Plan 

Fiduciary 

Net Position 

as a % of 

the Total 

Pension 

Liability 

98.4% 

98.1% 

101.3% 

96.1% 

100.2% 

103.5% 

103.6% 

110.7% 

120.5% 

1 
In accordance with parngraph 81.a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a ten (10) yea,· history of t.h01r proportionate share of the Net 

Pension Liability or Asset in this schedule. However, this sch.ed.u~ will be populated prospectively. 
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S;t:stem 

~Ql!~Dtrill111&!0: Sl'.§!&!D 

As of June 30, 2017 
As of June 30. 2016 
Ae of June 30, 2015 
As o(Juno 30. 2014 

Qsinl!.i!iut2Clr'. Slr'.1il£1!! 
As of June 30, 2017 
As of June 30, 2016 
As of June 30. 2015 
As of June 30, 11014 

f11bl!l. Safiillr'. Slr'.stllm 
As of June 30. 2017 
As of June 30, 2016 
As of June 30, 2015 
As of June 30, 2014 

fic11fighter!l Slr'.Jlt~m 
Ae of June 30, 2017 
As 0£ June 30, 20 J 6 
Aa of June 80, 2016 
Ae of June 30. 2014 

Iii:, 2 fybli!: Em11l2lr'.e11s l:!lr'.tir&m * 
As of June 30, 2017 
AaofJune 30, 2016 
As of June 30. 2016 
All of June ao. 2014 

REQUIRED 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

City of Orem 
Schedule of Contributions 

Utah Retirement Systems (URS) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 1 

Contributions 

in relation to the 

Contractually Contractually Contribution 

Required Required Deficiency 

Contribution Contribution CExceesl 

$ 1,733,603 s 1,733,503 $ 

l ,742,920 s 1,742,920 s 
s l ,785,144 $ ] , 785.144 $ 
$ 1,720,949 $ 1,720,949 $ 

$ 136, 617 $ 136,617 s 
$ 146,149 $ 146,149 $ 

$ 146,645 $ 146,645 $ 

$ 145,300 $ 145,300 $ 

$ 1,417,405 $ 1,417,405 s 
s 1,534,707 $ 1,534,707 $ 
s 1,527,206 $ 1.527,206 $ 
s 1,557,376 s 1,557,876 s 

s 210,460 s 210,460 $ 

$ 219,686 $ 219,686 $ 

~ 220,389 $ 220,389 $ 

$ 160, 554 s 160,564 s 

$ 402,025 s 402.025 $ 
$ 300,882 $ 300.882 $ 

s 185. 143 s 186. 143 $ 

$ 113,677 s llS,677 $ 

(continued on next page) 
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Conttibution 

a.sa%o£ 

Covered Covered 

Employee Employee 

P~roll Payroll 2 

$ 9,986,591 17.36% 
$ 10,082.347 17.29% 
$ 10,274,003 17.38% 
$ 10,573,678 16.28% 

s 944,788 14.46% 

$ 1,010,709 H.46% 
s 1,014,143 11.46% 
s 1,094,124 13.28~ 

$ 3,768,298 37.61% 
$ 4,080,078 37.61% 
s 4,050,464 37.70% 
s 4,247,643 36.66% 

$ 3,160,068 6.66% 
$ 3.249,791 6.76% 
$ 3.344,592 6.69% 
s 3,601 ,278 4.46'6 

$ 2,696,3•18 14.91% 
$ 2,017.989 14.91% 
$ 1.239,243 14 94% 

s 812.657 )3.99% 



REQUIRED 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

City of Orem 
Schedule of Contributions 

Utah Retirement Systems (URS) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 1 

Contributions 

in _relation to the 

Contractually Contractually Contribution 

Required Required Deficiency 

Siatem Contribution Contribution <Excess) 
TI!!i: g fuhlic Safot:t & Fir_gJigh~ers Svstem • 

A~ of June 30, 2:0t7 $ 275,954 $ 275,954 $ 

As of June 30, 2:016 $ 156,487 $ 156,487 $ 

As of ,June 30, 2:015 $ 103,493 $ 103,493 $ 
As of June 30, 2:014 $ 70,564 $ 70,564 $ 

Tin 2 eyllliG EmplQ:t!.les DC Onl:t S:ti.~m * 
As of June 30, 2:017 $ 31,H90 $ 31,690 $ 

As of June 30. 2:0 16 $ 27,955 $ 27,955 $ 

As of June 30, 2:015 $ 20,253 $ 20,263 $ 

AsofJW1e 30, 2:014 $ 9,492 $ 9,492 $ 

Tier 2 ['.uhlic Saf~,~ ~ Fireng!:J~r DQ Qnh: Sirnt~m • 
Afof June 30, 2017 i 35,814 $ 35,814 $ 

As of June 30, 2:016 $ 34,337 $ 34,337 $ 

Aso!June 30, 2015 s 20,094 $ 20,094 $ 

AB of June 30. 2014 $ $ $ 

Tota l · As of.June BO, 2017 s 4,243,468 $ 4,248,468 $ 

Total · As of June ;10. 2016 s 4,163,123 $ 4,163.123 s 
Tota l · As of June HO, 2016 $ 4,008,367 $ 4,008,367 s 
Total· As of June HO. 2014 s 3,777,912 $ 3,777,912 s 

. 

. 

. 

. 

Contribution 

as a% of 

Covered Covered 

Employee Employee 

Pa;)'.roll Payroll 2 

$ 1,415, Hi7 19.50% 

$ 867,683 18.04% 

$ 585,142 17.69% 

$ 366,223 19.27% 

$ 473,700 6.69% 
$ 417,869 6.69% 
$ 300,442 6.74% 

$ 170,441 5.57% 

:ii Z72,236 13.16% 
$ 260,874 13.16% 

$ 137.966 14.67% 

$ 0.00% 

$ 22,717. 186 18.68% 
$ 21,987,340 18.93% 
$ 20,945,985 19.14% 
$ 20,865,939 18.11% 

~ Conlributim,s in Tier 2 tnclude an amortization rate t.o help fund lhe unfunded liabilities \n the Tier l syatcln8. 'l'ier 2 systems we.re crealeri effective 
July I, 20ll. 

1 In accordance with GASB 68 (paragraph 81 b), the City will need lO diacloae u ten (IQ) yea.r huitory 1n t his echedule However, this schedule will be 
populated prospe<:t:ively. 

" Contributions es a percentage of covered payroU may be diJTerent than the Board certified rate due t.-0 roundipg or othe.r administrative i~uea .. 
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Actuarial Actuarial 

Valuation Value of 

Date Assets 

January 1, 2016 $ 

Janua1•y 1, 2014 $ 

January l. 2012 $ 

Januai·y l. 2011 $ 

January 1, 2009 $ 

(a) 

REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

City of Orem 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

Other Postemployment Benefits 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Unfunded 

Accrued 

Actuarial Actuarial 

Accrued Liability Funded 

Liability (UAAL) Ratio 

431,801 $ 431,801 Q,00% 

1,350,884 $ 1,350.884 0.00% 

379,486 $ 379,486 0.00% 

218,692 $ 218,692 0.00% 

1,555.352 $ 1,555,352 0.00% 

(b) (b • a) (a/ b) 
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UAAL 

aaa %of 

Covered Covered 

Payroll Payroll 

$ 26.487,192 1.63% 

$ 25,030,440 5.40% 

$ 26.865.218 1.41% 

$ 27,467.617 0.80% 

$ 27,216.217 5.71% 



NOTES TO REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Utah Retirement Systems Pensions 

Changes in Assl1IJ1ptions 

The following actuarial assumption changes were adopLed January l, 2016: 

The assumed investment return assumption was decteased from 7.50% to 7.20%. 

The assumed inflation rate was decreased from 2.75% to 2.60%. 

The wage inllatioo assumption for all employee groups was decreased from 3.50% to 3,35%. 

' rhere was a modification to the rate of salary mcreases for most groups. The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 
3.25% to :3.10%. 
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Combining Financial Statements 
Nonm.ajor Governmental Funds 

Capital Projects Funds 

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
facilities and equipment other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

Capital P rojects-Energv Lease Fund - This fund is used to account for the acquisition, 
construction , and/or improvement of major capital facilities and equipment of the City as part of 
funding p1·ovided by a capital lease for ener gy saving projects 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special rnvenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally 1·estricted to 
expenditures for particular pUI·poses. 

CARE Tax Fund-This fund is used to account for the preparation and implementation of plans 
to improve, rehabilitate and/or develop cultural arts and recreation facilities within the City. 

Telecommunication Billing Fund - This fund is used to account for billing activities telated to 
the Utopia InfrastructU1:·e Agency (U1A) contract utility enhancement agreements. 

Community Development & Rehabilitation Fund -This fund is used to account for a variety of 
efforts to assist development. It is financed principally by federal entitlements from the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Community Development Block Grants. 
Grants and loans are made from this fund to assist housing reh abilitation, business 
development, and equipment and services that aid the indigent, handicapped, elderly, etc. 

Friends of the Orem Public Library Fund - This fund is primarily used to account for the 
financial transactions of the Timpanogos Storytelling Festival. A volunteer group has the 
p ri.ma'l'.'y responsibility of organizing and operating the festival. While th e group's la rgest 
program is the Timpanogos Storytelling Festival, they may also help with other community 
oriented programs as it sees a need . 

01·em Foundation Trust Fund -This fund is used to account for the financial transactions of the 
Orem Foundation Trust, an approved IRS Section 50l(c)3 charitable organization. All funds 
received are used to support and enhance services and programs provided by the City. 

Senior Citizens Fund - This fund is used to account for th e financial fransactions of those 
activities related to the Senior Citizen Friendship Center and its senior citizen patrons. 
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City of Orem 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmsjor Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2017 

Capital Projects F\lllda Special Revenue Funds 

Capital Tele· Community 

Project&· Communication Development & 
Energy CARE Tax Billing Rehabilitation 

Lease Total Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ $ 17,187 $ 51.430 

Accounts Receivable 
Intergovernmental Receivables 49,155 

Notes Receivable 182,290 

Restxicted Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
Capital Improvement Projects 34 1,478 341,478 1,951,313 

Other Purposes 1,843,223 260,393 

Restricted Receivables: 
Other Purposes 364,303 516,338 303,211 

Total Assets $ 341,478 $ 341,478 $ 4,158,839 $ 633,526 $ 846,479 

LlABILITIES 
Acco\lllts Payable s 1,200 $ 1,200 $ 346,066 $ 482,180 $ G,668 

Accrued Liabilities 336,939 336,939 7,182 

Unearned Revenues 23,083 

Total Liabilities 338,139 338,139 346,066 605,263 13,850 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Revenues - R~ceivables 485,501 

Total Deferred In.flows ofResoun:ee 485,501 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted: 

Parks, Recreation, & Arts 1,878,235 

Land Acquisition 22,345 

Civic Auditorium 1,7 11,142 

Capital Improvements 201,051 

Other Purposes 347,128 

Assigned: 
Capita] Improvements 3.339 3,339 

Community Promotiiin 
Other Purposes 28,262 

Total Fund Balances 3,339 3,339 3,812,773 28,262 347,128 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resourcea. and Fund Balances s 341,478 $ 341,478 s 4,158,839 $ 633,625 $ 846,479 
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Special Revenu.e Funds 

Friends of Orem Total 

the Orem Foundation Senior Nonmajor 

Public Library Trust Citizens Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Total Funds 

$ 568,081 $ $ 243.433 $ 880.131 $ 880,131 

49,155 49,155 

182,290 182,290 

1,951,313 2,292,791 

2,103,616 2,103,616 

1,183,852 1,183,852 

$ 568.081 $ $ 243,433 $ 6,350,357 $ 6,691,835 

$ $ 1,549 $ 836.463 $ 837,663 

7,}82 344,121 

23,083 23,083 

1,549 866,728 1,204,867 

485,501 485,501 

485,501 485,501 

1,878,235 1,878,235 

22,345 22,345 

1. 711,142 l,711,142 

201 ,051 201,051 

347.128 347,128 

3,339 

568,081 568,081 568,081 

241,884 270,146 270,146 

568,081 241,884 4,998,128 5,001,467 

$ 568,081 $ $ 243,433 $ 6,350,357 $ 6,691,835 
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City of Orem 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Non.major Governmental Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Capital Projects Funds Special Re\>enue Funds 

Capital Tele· Community 

Projects· Communication Development & 

Energy CARE'l'ax Billing Rehabilitation 

Lease Total Fund Fund Fund 

REVENUES 
Sales Taxes $ $ s 2,028,527 i s 
Intergovernmental 

428,710 

Charges for Services 186,321 

Investment Earnings 2,916 2,916 40,886 50,925 749 

Miscellaneous Rev\lnues 180 815 

Total Revenues 2,9 16 2,916 2,069,413 51.105 616,595 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

~nomic and Physical De11elopmem 39.15 1 384,314 

Parks, Recreation and Arts 992,080 

Debt Service: 
Principal Retirement 65,000 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 43,9 16 

Capital Outlay 5,379,700 5,879,700 1,442,714 

Total Expenditures 5,379,700 5,379,700 2,434.794 39,15 1 4-93,230 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over (under) Expenditures (5,376,784) (5,376, 784) (865,381) ll ,!154 123,365 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

TJ:ansfers In 
65,886 

Transfers Out (25,042) (188,662) 

Tota.I Other Financing Sourcesand (l}ses) (25,042) (123,276) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (5,876,784) {5,376,784) (890,423) 11,954 89 

Fund Balances • Beginning 5,380,128 5,380,123 4,203,196 16,308 347,039 

Fund Balances · Endin_g $ 3,339 $ 3,339 $ 3,812,773 $ 28,2.62 $ 347,128 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Friends of Orem Total 

the Orem Foundation Senior Nonmajor 

Public Library Truat Citizens Governmental 

Fund F'und Fund Total Funds 

iii $ s $ 2,028,527 $ 2.028.527 

~28,710 428,710 

75,797 20.394 282,5 12 282,5 12 

6.489 2,751 ]()1,800 104.716 

U.895 17,8 19 30,709 30.709 

9•1, 18 1 •10,964 2,872.2118 2,875, 174 

423,465 423.,465 

244.338 20,215 1.256,633 1,256.633 

65,000 65,000 
43.916 43.9 16 

1,442,714 6,822,414 

24Jl,338 20,215 3.231.728 8,6 11,-128 

(150,157) 20 749 (359,470) (5,7t-l6.2M) 

65,386 65.386 
(2 13,704) (213,704) 

( 1,18,318) (148,318) 

/ J50,J57) 20, 7'l9 (507,788) (5,88-1 .572) 

718,238 221.135 5,505,9 16 10,886,039 

$ 568,081 s $ 241,8S4 s 4,998,128 $ 5.001,467 
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Combining Financial Statements 
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 

Recreation Fund - This fund is to account for the services provided by the City's 
Fitness CEmter. The Fitness Center complex includes an indoor swimming pool, indoor 
track, basketball court, handball courts, 1·acquetball com·ts, an outdoor swimming 
pool/water park (Scera Park), and other facilities. A variety of classes and open play 
are made available to residents and non:1·esidents on a fee basis. 

Solid Waste Fund - This fund is to account for the collection of 1·esident.ial garbage 
within the City. Residential garbage collection services are provided by at private 
contractor through a contract with the City. Businesses and commercial concerns 
witbf n the City are not serviced, but may contract with private firms for these same 
services. 

Street Lighting Fund - This fund is to account for providing the residEmts and 
businesses of the City with a new street lighting system. Lease Revenue Bonds were 
issued to cover the purchase and installation of the system. Payment and costB of these 
bonds aTe not accounted for here, but are in the Debt Service Fund. 
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City of Orem 
Combining Statement of Net Position 

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2017 

Recreation Recreation 
Fund Fund 

Current Year Prior Year 
ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Ca.sh Equivalents $ 799,506 $ 751,675 
Accounts Receivable (Net of 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts) 11,123 7,704 
Total Cu:rrent Assets 8 10,629 759,379 

Noncurren t As.sets: 
Capital Assets: 

Land 39,822 39,822 
Buildings and Systems 4,125,955 4,125,955 
Improvemi~nts other than Buildings 1,911,903 1,895.601 
Machinel'y and Equipment 11,139 ll, 139 
Infrastructure 

Less Acc;umulated Depreciation (5,266,494) (5,154,687) 
Total Capital Assets (Net of 

Accwnulated Depreciation) 822,325 917,830 

Net Pension Assets 23 
Total No:nc.urrent Assets 822,325 917,853 

Total Assets 1,632,954 1,677,232 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 176,984 128,319 

Total Defe:rred Outflows of Resources 176,984 123,319 

Total Assets & .Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,809,938 $ 1,800,551 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilites: 

Accounts Payable $ 42,807 $ 45,229 
Accrued Liabilities 85,471 74,164 
Accrued Vacation Leave 33,308 33,880 
Unearned R1~venues 318,803 378,900 

Total Cu1'l'ent Llabilites 480,389 532,173 
Noncmrent Liabilities: 

Accrued Vacation Leave 1.753 1,783 
Net Pension Liability 230,665 186,652 

Total Noncun·ent Liabilities 232,418 188,435 
Total Liatbilities 712,807 720,608 

DEFERRED INll<'LOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 50,501 33,951 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resow·ces 50,501 33,951 

NET POSITION 
Net Investllleut. in Capital Assets 822.325 917,830 
Restricted for ·Pensions 23 
Unrestricted 224,305 128,139 

Total Net. Position 1,046,630 1,045,992 

Total Liabilities, Deferrnd Inflows of Resomces, 
& Net Position $ 1,809,938 $ 1,800,551 

-118-

Solid Waste Solid Waste 
Fund Fund 

Current Year Prior Year 

$ 1,055.0313 $ 798,931 

403,910 391,485 
1,458,948 1,190,416 

1,458,94:3 1,190,416 

$ 1,458,94:3 $ 1, 190,416 

$ 269,301 $ 258,871 

269,301 258,871 

269,301 258,871 

1, 189,64:2 931,545 
1.189,64:2 931,546 

$ 1,458,94:3 $ 1,190,416 



Total Total 
Nonmajor Nonmajar 

Street Lighting Street Lighting Proprietary Proprietary 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year 

$ 740,603 $ 430,926 $ 2,595,142 $ 1,981,532 

99,031 97,164 514,064 496,353 

839,634 528,090 3,109,206 2,477,885 

39,822 39,822 
4,125,955 4 ,125,955 
1,911 ,903 1,895,601 

94,609 94,609 105,748 105,748 

1,709,340 1,518,150 1.709,340 1,518,150 
(440,667) (396,329) (5,707,161) (5,551,016) 

1,363,282 1,216,430 2,185,607 2,134,260 

23 

1,363,282 1,216,430 2,185,607 2,134,283 

2,202,916 1,744,520 5,294,813 4,612,168 

22,552 15,324 199,536 138,643 

22,552 15,324 199,536 138,643 

$ 2,225,468 $ 1,759,844 $ 5,494,349 $ 4,750,811 

$ 201 $ 35,012 $ 312,309 $ 339,112 

4,706 3,391 90, 177 77,555 

9,064 8,246 42,372 42,126 
318,803 378,900 

13,971 46,649 763,661 837,693 

477 434 2,230 2,217 

29,392 23,202 260,057 209,854 

29,869 23,636 262,287 212,071 

43,840 70,286 1,025,948 1,049,764 

6,435 4,216 56,936 38,167 
6,435 4,216 56,936 38,167 

1,363.282 1,216,430 2,185,607 2,134,260 
23 

811,911 468,913 2,225,858 1,528,597 
2, 175,193 1,685,343 4,411,465 3,662,880 

$ 2,225,468 $ 1,759,844 $ 5,494!349 $ 4,750,811 
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City of Orem 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Recreation Recreation Solid Waste 
Fund Fund Fund 

Current Year Prior Year Current Year 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for Services $ 1,616,772 $ 1,583,108 $ 3,571,929 
Other Revenues 501 369 

Total Operating Revenues 1,617,273 1,583,477 3,571,929 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Personnel Services 1,287,933 1,283,466 
Supplies and Maintenance 215,873 229,724 97,649 
Administrative Fee 27,325 26,988 183,863 
Utilities 271,129 325,570 
Contract Services 16,316 16,371 2,911,328 
Equipment Lease and Rentals 
Insurance 25,000 25,000 
Depreciation 111,807 111,807 
Miscellaneous 7,612 4,832 90,470 

Total Operating Expenses 1,962,995 2,023,758 3,283,310 
Operating Income (Loss) (345,722) (440,281) 288,619 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
AND EXPENSES 
Investment Earnings 9,096 6,184 9,582 

Total Nonoperating Revenues & Expenses 9,096 6,184 9,582 
Income <Loss) before Transfers (336,626) (434,097) 298,201 

Transfers In 402,000 175,000 
Transfers Out (64,736) (65,507) (40,104) 

Change in Net Position 638 (324,604) 258,097 

Total Net Position - Beginning 1,045,992 1,370,596 931,545 

Total Net Position · Ending $ 1,046,630 $ 1,045,992 $ 1,189,642 
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Total Total 
Nonmajor Nonmajor 

Solid Waste Street Lighting Street Lighting Proprietary Proprietary 

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 
Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year 

$ 3,515.859 $ 902,547 $ 916,241 $ 6,091,248 $ 6,015,208 

92,933 72,240 93,434 72,609 

3,515,859 995,480 988,481 6,184,682 6,087,817 

135,171 141,171 1,423,104 1,424,637 

76,917 37,701 54,421 351,223 361,062 

180,047 49,954 56,191 261,142 263,226 
224,968 413,973 496,097 739,643 

2,844,498 40 2 ,927,644 2,860,909 

680,181 685,181 680,181 685,181 
25,000 25,000 

44,338 43,961 156,145 155,768 

72,980 1,787 1,832 99,869 79,644 

3,174,442 1,174,100 1,396,770 6,420,405 6,594,970 

341,417 (178,620) (408,289) (235,723) (507,153) 

4,665 13,078 7,006 31,756 17,855 

4,665 13,078 7,006 31,756 17,855 

346,082 (165,542) (401,283) (203,967) (489,298) 

700,000 660,000 1, 102,000 835,000 
(39,545) (44,608) (40,488) (149,448) (145,540) 

306,537 489,850 218,229 748,585 200,162 

625,008 1,685,343 1,467,114 3,662,880 3,462,718 

$ 931,545 $ 2,175,193 $ 1,685,343 $ 4,411,465 $ 3,662,880 
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City of Orem 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Non.major Propretary Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Recreation Recreation 
Fund Fund 

Current Year Prior Year 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 1,613,854 $ 1,575,773 
Payments to Suppliers (596,209) (568,995) 
Payments for Personnel (1,272,547) (1,252,062) 
Payments for Interfond Services Used (27,325) (26,988) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating 
Activities (282,227) (272,272) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfers fn 402,000 175,000 
Transfers Out (64,736) (65,507) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital 
Activities 337,264 109,493 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of Capital Assets (16,302) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and 
Related Financing Activities (16,302) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 
Investment Earnings 9,096 6,184 

Net Casb Provided (Used) by Investing 
Activities 9,096 6,184 

Net lncl'ease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 47,831 (156,595) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents · Beginning 
of Year 751,675 908,270 

Cash and Cash Equivalents· End of Year $ 799,506 $ 751,676 

Reconciliation of Operating Income <Loss) to Net 
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Operating Income <Lose) $ (345,722) $ (440,281) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income 

to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating 
Activities: 
Depreciation Expense $ 111.807 $ 111,807 
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables (3,419) (7,704) 
Uncreasc) Decrease in Pension Assets (53,642) (91,392) 
Increase <Decrease) in Accounts Payable (2,422) (2,493) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilitjes 11,307 19,271 
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue (60,097) 31,844 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vacation Leave (602) (2,750) 
Increase <Decrease) in Pension Liabilities 60,563 109,426 

Total Adjustments 63,495 168,009 
Net Cash Pl'ovided (Used) by Operating 

Activities $ (282,227) $ (272,272) 
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Solid Waste Solid Waste 
Fund Fund 

Current Year Prior Year 

$ 3,559,504 $ 3,507,514 
(3,089,017) (2,987,989) 

(183,863) (180,047) 

286,624 339,478 

(40,104) (39,545) 

(40,104) (39,545) 

9,582 4,665 

9,582 4,665 

256,102 304,598 

798,931 494,333 
$ 1,055,033 $ 798,931 

$ 288,619 $ 341,417 

$ $ 
(12,425) (8,345) 

10,430 6,406 

(1,995) (1,939) 

$ 286,624 $ 339,478 



Total Total 
Nonmajor Nonmajor 

Street Lighting Street Lighting P roprietary Proprietary 
Fund F und F unds Funds 

Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year 

$ 993,613 $ 989,019 $ 6.166,971 $ 6,072.306 
(979,448) (1.197,289) (4,664,674) (4, 754.273) 
(131,814) (121,681) (1.404,361) (1,373,743) 

(49,954) (56,191) (261.142) (263,226) 

(167,603) (386,142) (163,206) (318.936) 

700,000 660,000 1,102,000 835,000 
(44,608) (40,488) (149,448) (145,540) 

655,392 619,512 952,552 689.460 

(191,190) (84,269) (207,492) (84,269) 

(191, 190) (84,269) (207,492) (84.269) 

13,078 7 .006 31,756 17,855 

13,078 7,006 31,756 17,855 

309,677 156,107 613,610 304,110 

430,926 274,819 1,981,532 1,677.422 
$ 740,603 $ 430,926 $ 2,595,142 $ 1,981.532 

$ (178.620) $ (408,289) 
-'-----'--~-.;... 

(235,723) (507 .153) ___ ..;.__...;__~ 

$ 44,338 $ 43,961 156,145 155,768 
(1,867) 538 (17,711) (15,511) 
(7,228) (15,162) (60,870) (106,554) 

(34,811) (41,842) (26,803) (37,929) 
1,315 321 12,622 19,592 

(60,097) 31,844 
861 7,222 259 4,472 

8,409 27,109 68,972 136,535 
11,017 22,147 72,517 188,217 

$ (167,603) $ (386,142) $ (163,206) $ (318,936) 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
S1CHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

CAPITAL PROJECTS-ENERGY LEASE FUND 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
CARE TAX FUND 

TELECOMMUNICATION BILLING FUND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & REHABILITATION FUND 

FRIENDS OF THE OREM PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND 
OREM FOUNDATION TRUST FUND 

SENIOR CITIZENS FUND 
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City of Orem 
Debt Service - Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and .Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts :E'inal Budget 

REVENUES 
Property Tax,~s $ 1,913.813 $ t ,913.813 $ 1,912,911 $ (902) 
Special Assessments 23,788 79,987 38,820 (41,167) 
Investment Earnings 10,177 10,177 

Total Revenues 1,937,601 1,993,800 1.961,908 (31,892) 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt Service: 

Principal Retirement 3,450,873 3,450,873 3,450,873 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 3,529.548 3,529,548 3,475.024. 54,524 
Bond Issuance Costs 35.650 (35,650) 

Total Exp,enditul'es 6,980,421 6.980,421 6,961,547 18,874 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over (under) Expenditures (5,042,820) (4,986,621) (4,999.639) (13,018) 

OTHER FINANCI NG SOURCES (USES) 
Issuance of B,onds 2,898, 000 2,898.000 
Payment to Bond Refundmg Agent (2.861,199) (2,861,199) 
Transfers ln 5.042,820 4,986,621 4,986.621 
Transfers Ou1t 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,042,820 4,986,621 5,023,422 36,801 

Net. Chang1i in Fund Balance 23,783 23,783 

Fund Balance - Beginning 1,099,458 1,099,458 1,099,458 

Fund Balance - Ending $ 1,099,458 $ 1,099,458 $ 1.123,241 $ 23,783 
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City of Orem 
Capital Projects - Capital Projects Fund 

Sched.ule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts ]Final Budget 

REVENUES 
1ntergoven1tt1ental. $ $ 200,000 $ $ (200,000) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 270.000 270.000 404,666 134,666 

Total Reve1nues 270,000 470,000 404,666 (65,334) 
EXPENDITURJ~S 

Current: 

Capital Outlay 231,385 11,628,001 2,688.786 8,939,215 
Economic a.nd Physical Development 5,000 1,50 1,781 229,221 1,272,560 

Total Expenditu1•es 236,385 13,129,782 2,918,007 10,211,775 
Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues 

over (unde1,) Expenditures 33.615 (12,659,782) (2,513.341) 10,146,441 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from Asset Disposals 6,978 6, 978 
Trn.nsfers In 3.674,000 3,674,000 
Transfers Out (33,615) (33,615) (33,615) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (33,615) 3,640,385 3,647,363 6,978 
Net Changi? in F und Balance (9,019,397) 1,134,022 10,153,419 

Fund Balaoce · Begiruung 9,253,719 9,253,719 9,253,719 

Fund Balance · Ending $ 9,253,719 $ 234,322 $ 10,387,741 $ 10,153.419 
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City of Orem 
Capital Projects· Energy Lease · Capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Pinal Budget 

REVENUES 
Investment E,arnings $ $ 2,940 $ 2,916 (24) 
Miscellaneows Revenues 

Total Reve11mes 2,940 2,916 (24) 

EXPENDITURl~S 
Current: 

Capital Out lay 5,382,940 5,379,700 3,240 
Total Exp enditures 5,382,940 5,379,700 3,240 

Excess !(Deficiency) ofRevenues 
over (under ) Expenditures (5,380.000) (5,376,784) 3, 216 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 
Transfers Ouit. 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Net Change in F und Balance (5,380,000) (5,376,784) 3,216 

F und Bala.nee - Beginning 5,380,123 5,380,123 5,380,123 

Fund Balance · Ending $ 5,380,123 $ 123 $ 3,339 $ 3,216 
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City of Orem 
CARE Tax · Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts :E'inal Budget 

REVENUES 
Sales Taxes $ l.900.000 $ 1,900,000 $ 2.028,527 $ 128,527 
Investment Earnings 20,000 20,000 40,886 20,886 

Total Revenues 1.920,000 1,920,000 2,069,413 149,413 
EXPENDITURE:S 

CwTent: 
Arts and Recreation Development 1,895.000 1,022,292 992,080 30,212 
Capital Outlay 3,395,088 t,442.714 1,952,374 

Total Exp,enditures 1,895,000 4,417,380 2,434.794 1,982,586 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over (under) Expenditures 25,000 (2,497,380) (365,381) 2,131,999 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

'J'ransfers ln 
Transfers Out (25.000) (25,042) (25.042) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (25,000) (25,042) (25,042) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,522,422) (390,423) 2,131,999 

Fund Balance · Beginning 4,203,196 4,203,196 4,203,196 

Fund Balance · Ending $ 4.203,196 $ 1.680,774 $ 3,812,773 $ 2,131,999 
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City of Orem 
Telecomm unication Billing Fund · Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Ch anges in F und Balances · Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

REVENUES 
Investment Earnings $ 56,000 $ 56,000 $ 50,925 $ 

Miscellaneous Revenues 4,000 4,000 180 

Total Revenues 60,000 60,000 51, 105 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Miscellaneous Expenditures 60,000 60,000 39, 151 

Total Expenditui·es 60,000 60.000 39, 15 1 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over (under) Expenditures 11,954 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance ll ,954 

Fund Balance · Beginning 16,308 16,308 16,308 

Fund Balance · Ending $ 16,308 $ 16,308 $ 28,262 $ 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

(5,075) 
(3,820) 
(8,895) 

20,849 

20,849 

11,954 

11,954 

11,954 



City of Orem 
Community Development and Rehabilitation · Special Revenue Fund 

Sched.ule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Acitual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 803,000 $ 803,000 $ 428,710 $ (374,290) 
Chru:ges for S,ervices 6,000 6,000 186,321 l 80,321 
Investment Earnings 750 750 749 (1) 

Miscellaneoui; Revenues 815 815 
Total Revenues 809,750 809,750 616,595 (193,155) 

EXPENDITURE~S 
Cw·rent: 

Economic a·nd Physical Development 479,130 548.922 384.314 164,608 
Capital Out:lay 100,000 85,000 85,000 

Debt Service: 

Principal R,ath•ement 65,000 65,000 65,000 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 42,344 43,916 43,916 

Total Expenditures 686,474 742,838 493,230 249,608 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over (under) Expendi~ures 123,276 66,912 123,365 56,453 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 50,489 65,386 65,386 

Transfers Out. (173,765) (188,662) (188,662) 
Total Othet· Financing Sources (Uses) (123,276) (123,276) (123,276) 

Net Change, in Fund Balance (56,364) 89 56,453 

Fund Balalltce · Beginning 347,039 347,039 347.039 

Fund Balamce - Ending $ 347,039 $ 290,675 $ 347,128 $ 56,453 
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City of Orem 
Friends of the Orem Public Library · Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Origjnal Final Amounts 

REVENUES 
Charges for Serv1ces $ 185,000 $ L85,000 $ 75,797 $ 

lntergovernmentaJ Revenues 40,578 

Investment Earnings ,J,000 4,000 6.489 
Miscellaneous Revenues 90,000 90,000 1 l.895 

Total Revenues 279,000 319,578 94, 181 

EXPENDITURES 
CtuTent= 

Library Pl'ograms 289,000 344,352 244,338 
Total Expenditures 289,000 341,352 244,338 

Excess (DefiCJency) of Revenues 
over (under) Expenditures (IQ,000) (24,77 1) (150.157) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
'l'ransfel's In 10,000 10,000 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Pinancmg Sources (Uses) 10,000 to,000 

Net Change in Fund Balance 04,774) (150,157) 

1-'und Balance - Beginning 718,238 718,238 718,238 

Fund Bal-a.nee - Ending $ 718.238 $ 703,464 $ 568.0SL $ 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

(109,203) 
(40,578) 

2,489 
(78,105) 

(225,397) 

100,014 
100,014 

(125,383) 

(10,000) 

(10,000) 

(135,383) 

(135,383) 



City of Orem 
Orem Foundation Trust · Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
MlsceUaneous Revenues $ 10,000 $ 10.000 $ $ (10,000) 

Total Revenues 10,000 10,000 (10,000) 
EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

City Programs 
Total Expendi tures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Hevenues 
ovet· (mnder) Expenditures 10,000 10,000 (10,000) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers ln 
Transfers Out (JO,OOU) (10.000) 10,000 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (10,000) Cl0.000) 10,000 

Net Change rin Fund Balance 

Fund Balance · Beginning 

Fund Balance · Ending $ $ $ s 
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City of Orem 
Senior Citizens · Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounta Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Charges for Services $ 19,500 $ 19,500 $ 20.39<1 $ 894 
fovestment Earnings 750 750 2,751 2.001 
Miscellaneous Revenues 3 1.000 31,000 17,819 03.181) 

Total Revenues 5J ,250 51,250 40,964 (10,286) 
EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
Dances JO, 7nO 10,750 2,li 17 8,133 
Tours 25,000 25,000 9,651 15,349 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 15,600 15.500 7,947 7,553 

Total Expenditm·es 5 1,250 51,250 20.215 31,035 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over' (under) E:q>enditures 20,749 20,749 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

'Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change m Fund Balance 20,749 20.749 

Fund Balance · Beginning 22 l, 135 22'1,135 221,135 

Fund Balance· Ending $ 221,135 $ 221,135 $ 241,884 $ 20,749 
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Internal Service Funds 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services 
p1·ovided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the 
government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Fleet Maintenance Fund - This fund accounts for the repair and maintenance of 
vehicles and equipment fo1· all City opeI'ations. Itis financed by charges made to other 
funds for use of its services. Supplies and materials are charged at cost to the specific 
fund. Pe1·sonnel, administration and overhead costs are charged on an estimated basis 
established at the beginning of each fiscal year. 

Purchasing/Warehousing Fund - This fund accounts for the central purchasing and 
warehousing functions for the City. It provides the service to all governmental and 
proprietary funds. It is financed by charges made to the other funds. Funds are 
charged for supplies and materials at cost. Personnel, administrative and overhead 
costs are charged on an estimated allocation basis established at the beginning of each 
fiscal year. 

Self·Insurance Fund - This fund accounts for the costs of insurance premiums and 
claims made against the City. Monies are accumulated in this fund to pay premiums 
for liability and property damage insm·ance and other claims. The City participates in 
the Utah Risk Management Mutual Association for its liability and property damage 
insurance. Insurance for large vehicles and equipment is purchased from private 
insurers. The fund also accounts for the insurance benefits of employees (i.e., state 
unemployment insurance, workers compensation insurance). The fund is financed by 
allocated charges made to the other funds for liability and p1·operty damage insurance. 
It is based on an allocation established at the beginning of each year for potential 1·isk 
and prior experience. Charges for employee insurance benefits ai•e made directly to 
each fund as a part of the payroll system. Another function of the self-insurance fund 
is to accumulate resources to pay the long·term portion of the compensated absences 
liability of the general fund . See footnote 5.A. for additional information regarding this 
fund. 

Information Technology Fund - This fund accounts fo1· the technological needs of the 
City including. but not limited to, computers, servers, netwmks, telephone systems, cell 
phone services, software, internet services, and all maintenance needs related thereto. 
It provides these services to all governmental and p1·oprieta1·y funds. It is financed by 
charges made to the othe1· funds. Funds are charged for supplies and materials at cost. 
Personnel, administrative and overhead costs are charged on an estimated allocation 
basis established at the beginning of each fiscal year. 
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City of Orem 
Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2017 

F leet Purchasing / Self· Information 
Maintenance Warehousing Insurance Tecb.nology Total 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 255,627 $ 38,790 $ 2.705,854 $ 778.o7 l $ 3,778,342 
l nventories 418,842 418.842 
Prepatds 

TotaJ Curre_at Assets 255,627 t57,632 2,705,854 778,071 4,197.184 

Noncurrent Assels: 
Capital Assets: 

Buildings 150,000 150,000 
Machinery and Equipment 200.578 31,064 101,190 332,832 
Oonsn·uction in Progi·ess 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (131.044) {91,564) (J,205) (223,813) 
1'otal Capital Assets (Net of 

Accumulated Depreciation} 69.534 89,500 99.985 259,019 

Net Pension Assets 
Tot!*I Noncurrent Asset.s 69,534- 89,500 99,985 259,019 

Tota I Assets 325.161 547,132 2,705,854 878,056 4,456,203 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 89,562 136,493 20,889 606,760 853,704 

Total Deferred Outllowe of Resources 89,562 136.493 20,889 606,760 853,104 

Total Assets & Defened Outflows of Resources $ 114,723 s 683.625 $ 2,726.743 $ 1,-t84,816 $ 5,309.907 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabillties: 

Accounts Payable $ 1,737 $ 2,470 $ 22.490 $ 11,631 s 38,328 
Accrued Liabilities 16,103 10,468 3,161 43.0J9 72,751 
Acct•ued Vacation Leave 32,537 25,777 1.384 93,086 152,734 
Claim,s and Judgmems 323.333 323,333 
Capital Lease Payable · Current Port.ion 1,000 1.000 

Total Current Liabilities 51,377 38,715 350,cl68 147,686 58S, 146 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Accrued Vacation Leave 1,712 1.357 3,522 4,897 11,488 
Claims and Judgments l,086,895 1,086,895 
Capital Lease Payable· Long· term Portion 24,807 24,807 
Net Pension Liability l 16.727 177,893 27,225 790,794 l .112,639 

Total Noncul'rent Liabilities 143,246 179,250 1.117,642 795,691 2.235.829 
Total Liabilities 194,62:3 217,965 1,468,010 943,<177 2,823,975 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 25,556 38,947 5,960 li3,134 243,597 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resource,; 25,556 38,947 5,960 173, 134 243,597 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 43.727 
Rest1·icted for Pensions 

89,500 99,985 233,212 

Un.res trlcted 150,8 17 337,213 1,252,773 268,320 2,009, 123 
Total Net Pos ition 194,544 426.713 1,252,773 368,305 2,242,335 

Total l,1abilities, Deterred fnllows of 
Resources, & Net Pos1tiou $ -ll4, 723 $ 683,625 $ 2,726,743 $ 1,484,816 $ 5,309,907 
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City of Orem 
Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Fleet Purchasing/ Self· Information 
Maintenance Warehousing Insurance Tecb_nology 1'otal 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Services to Other Funds $ 710.000 s 285,000 $ 1,767,700 $ 2.000,000 $ 4.762.700 
Other Revenues 180 8,136 8,3 16 

Total Open1tiog Revenues 7 10,000 28:'i, 180 1.767,700 2,008,136 1,771,016 

OPERATlNG EXPENSES: 
P1,rsonoel Services 4-11.()70 244,682 86.363 1,2-17.679 2.019,79-l 
Supplies. Maintenance and Claims 151.<144 98.628 2.180,889 636,203 2,967,164 
Depreciation Expense 8.188 G.000 1,205 15,393 

'fatal Ope1•ating Expenses 600,702 349,310 2,267,262 1,785,087 5,002,351 
Operating J ncon,e (Loss) 109,298 (64.130) (499,552) 223,049 (231.335) 

NONOPERATJNG REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
1 nvestment E:arnings 
Gain (Loss) on Sales of Fixed Assets 1,260 500 l,760 
Interest Bxpense and Fiscal Charges 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (E,q,ensesl 1..260 500 1,760 
lm:ome (Loss) before Operating 

Transfers 109,298 (fi2,870) (4.99.552) 223,549 (229,575) 
1'ram•fers In 
Transfers Out (44,829) (,J4..82H) 
Change in Net Position 64,469 (62,870) (499,552) 223.549 (274/ !04) 

~'otal Net Position - BegiJmiog 130,075 1189.583 1,752,325 L44.75G 2.5 l6, 739 

TotaJ Net Position· E nding $ 194,544 $ 426,713 $ 1.252,773 $ 368,305 $ 2.242.335 
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City of Orem 
Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Fleet Purchasing / Self· Information 

Maintenance Warehousing lnsw-ance Technology Total 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPE:RATTNG ACTIV1T1ES 

Receipts &·om Interfund Services Provided s 710,000 .$ 285,180 $ 1,767.700 $ 2,008,J.36 s 4,771.016 
Payments to Suppliers (147,162) (UM,468) (1,617,530) (509.'l,29) (2,398.589) 

Payments for Personnel (1182,936) (251,21 6) (85,,J60) (1,204.S,60) (!,974..!72) 

Net Cash Provided (U,,ed) by Operating Activities 129,!)02 (90,504) G,t, 710 293,EW. 7 397.955 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FrNANCING 

ACTIVITIES: 

Transfers In 

Transfers Out (H,829) (44.829) 

Net Cash Provided ru1sed) by Noncapital 

Financing Act.ivities (44,829) (44.829) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAP'ITAL & RELATED 

FINANCING ACTIVITIE:S: 

Acquisition of Capital Assets (:13,287) (33.287) 
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Asse~ U!60 (i,00 l.760 
Proceeds from Capital Loases 26,287 26.287 
Principal paid on Outsta ncling Debt (480) (480) 

Net Cash Provided (U:,ed) in Capital 

'F'inancing Activities (7,480) 1,260 5,00 (5,720) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

lnvemment Earnings 

Net Cash Pl'Ovided (U,;ed) by Investing 

Activities 

Net Tncrease (Decmase) 1.11 Cash and Cash 

Equivalents 77,593 (89,244) 64.710 294,347 347,itOG 

Cash and Cas.h Equivale1ots · Beginning of Year 178,034 128,034 2,64 l.1411 483.724 3.430,936 

Cash and Cash Equivale1nts · End of Year $ 255,627 s 38,790 $ 2.705.854 $ 778.071 $ 3,778,342 

Reconciliation of Oper ating Income CLoss) to Net 

Cash Pr ovided (Used) by Operating ActiVities: 

Operating Income CLo,is) $ 109, 298 $ (64, 130) $ (,199.552) $ 223,049 s (231.335) 
AdJustments to Reconcile Operating lncotne (Loss) 

to Net Cash Provided. <Used) by Opet·ating Activities: 

Depreciation Expem,,e 8,188 6,000 1,205 15.393 
(Increase) Decrease 1in [ nventory (27,067) (27,067) 
(I nc:rease) Decrease im Prepaids 16.884 16,384 
Oncrease) Decrease im Pension Assets (27,872) (26,597) (6,931) (106,317) 067, 717) 
fncrease <.Decrease) iin Accounts Payable 550 (966) 22,312 7,925 29,821 
Increase (Decrease) im Accrued Liabilities 3,732 2,193 459 2, ,LG5 8.849 
Increase <Decrease) it11 Accrued Vacation Leave l,05(l (lit4) (376) 80,598 84.134 
Increase <Decrease> i1n Pension Liabilities :n.950 20.207 8.210 68.538 128 .. 905 
Increase (Decrease) i,n Claims and Judgment'S 540,588 540,588 

Total Adjustments 20,604 (26,37'1) 564,262 70,798 629,290 
Net Cash Provided (Used) b'y Operating Activities s 129,902 $ (90,504) $ 64,710 $ 293.847 ~ 397,955 
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SCHEDULES OF 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

USED IN THE OPERATION 
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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City of Orem 
Schedules of Capital Assets Used in The Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedules By Source· Comparative1 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

Governmental Funds Capital Assets: 
Land $ 
Buildings 
Improvements other than Buildings 
Machinery and Equi,pment 
Infrastructure 
Construction in Progress 

Total GoveTnmental Funds Capital Assets $ 

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source: 
General Fund $ 
Capital Projects Fund 
Federal Grants 
State Road Funds 
Redevelopment 
Community Development 

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 

' This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. 

Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the 

above amounts. Oenerally, the capital assets ofinternal service funds are included as 
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 
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2017 

65,181,847 
32,731,587 
34,543,266 
21,788,417 

119,133,397 
2,185,715 

275,564,229 

236,891,097 
16,583,250 

' 656,761 
13,893,776 

3,958,709 
3,580,636 

275,564,229 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2016 

63,445,925 
32,664,607 
30,113,287 
20,353,319 

112,745,796 
2,528,136 

261,851,070 

225,853,972 
16,359,799 

644,161 
13,162,511 
2,249,991 
3,580,636 

261,851,070 



City of Orem 
Schedules of Capital Assets Used in The Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedule By Function and Activity1 

June 30, 2017 

In11.provements 
Other Than 

Function and Activity Land Buildings Buildings 
General Governm1mt: 

Executive $ $ 2.,075 $ 81,479 
Personnel Administration 
Administrative Services 26,263 
Legal 10,100 
Development Se:rvices 
Gene1·al Government 1,710,203 3,841,058 4,186,967 
Engineering 
Redevelopment 1,700,048 85,080 
Community Development 8, 105 1,337,700 

Total General Government 3,410.25 1 3,851,238 5.727,589 

Public Safety: 
Administration 5,377,906 9,407 
Police Protectiom 87,345 
Fire P1·otection 174,096 2,486,089 820,972 
Emergency Services 1,580 

Total Public Safety 174,096 7,865,575 917,724 

Highways and Strt~ets: 
Administration & Enginee1·ing 33,550 71874,114 363,324 
Street System 51,190,789 69,298 3,518.362 
Street Lighting 1,421,853 

Total Highways and Streets 51,224,339 7,943,412 5,303,539 

Parks and Recreation 10,150,816 8,252,592 21,378.560 
Library 222,345 4.818,770 1,215,854 

Total Government1al Funds Capital Assets $ 65,181,847 $ 32.731,587 $ 34,543,266 

1 This schedule prese:nts only the capital asset balances related to governmental funtls. 

Accordingly. t.he capital assets reported io internal se1-v-i.ce fonds are excluded from the 
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal sernce funds are mcluded as 
gove1·nmental activitiies in the statement of net assets. 
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Machinery Construction 
and ID 

Equipment Infrastructure Progress Total 

$ 1,015,879 $ $ $ 1,099,433 
8,013 8,013 

366,622 10,226 403,111 
21,49.8 31,598 

216,755 216,755 
135,605 291,428 10,165,261 
433,9316 433,936 

7,8010 2,165,780 3,958,708 
2.234,832 3,580,637 

2,206, 10:S 4,692,040 10,226 19,897,452 

1.249,01:3 6,636,326 
5.841,8 113 286,603 6,215,764 
5,599.184 247,027 847,780 10,175, 148 

77,07:2 78,652 
12,767,08/j 247,027 1,134,383 23.105,890 

411,12G 8.682,114 
3,075,967 112,601,165 53,710 170,509,291 

1,136,156 2,558,009 
3,487,09:3 113,737,321 53,710 181,749,414 

2,699,298 457,009 723,538 43.661,813 
628,83B 263,858 7,1L19,660 

$ 21 ,788,4 Vi $ 119,133,397 $ 2,185,715 $ 275,564,229 
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City of Orem 
Schedules of Capital Assets Used in The Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity1 

For The Year Ended J une 30, 2017 

Governmental Govern.mental 
Funds Capital Funds Capital 

Assets Assets 
Function and Activity June 30, 2016 Additioll!I Deductiona June 30, 2017 

General Government: 
Executive $ 1.063.453 $ 35.980 $ $ 1,099,433 
Personnel Administration 8.013 8.018 
Administrative Services 378.303 4-0,671 (15,863) 403,111 
Legal 20,G90 10,908 31,598 
Development Services 173,951 59,311 (16,507) 216.755 
General Government 8,253.388 5,320,593 (3. 408,720) 10,165,261 
Engineering 433.936 433.93G 
Redevelopment 2,249,990 1,708.718 3,958,708 
Community Development 3,580,637 3,580,637 

Total General Govemment 16.162,361 7,176.181 (3,441,090) 19,897.452 

Public Safety: 
Admi nistration 6.636.326 6,636,326 
Police Protection 5,484,1(;7 789,269 {57,672) 6,215,764 
Fire Protection 9,530.511 644,637 10,175,148 
Emergency Servic,es 69,124 9,528 78,652 

Total Public Safety 21. 720,128 1,443,434 (57,672) 23,105,890 

Highways and Streets: 
Administration & Engineering 8.682.114 8,682,114 
Street System LG4,448,410 O.O('l0,881 170.509,291 
St1·eet Lighting 2,834,118 (276,109) 2,558,009 

Total Highways and Streets 175,964,642 6,060,881 (276,109) 181.749,414 

Parks and Recreation 40,887,905 2,773,908 43.661,813 
Library 7,116,034 33,626 7,149,660 

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 261,851,070 $ 17,488,030 $ (3. 774,871) $ 275,564,229 

'This schedule pre~ent.« ouly the capital asset balances related to governrnental funds. 

Accordingly, the capital a1,seta reported in in ternal se1·vice funds are exclt1de.d fro·m the 

above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal servic« funds at•e included as 

governmental act;ivitie>< 10 i he statement of net assets. 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaudited) 

'Phis section of the City of Orem's comprehensive annual financial report p1'esents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the 
financial statements, note disclosu1·es, and 1·equi.red supplementai·y information says 
about the Cityis overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend infor mation to help the reader 
understand how the city's financial perfo1'mance and weil·bein g 
have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
factors affecting the City's ability to generate its property and sales 
taxes. 

Debt Capacity and Other Debt Information 

These schedules present .information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the City's cur1·ent levels of outstanding debt and the 
Citv's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help 
the reader understand the environment within which the City's 
financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over 
time and with other e-overnments. 

Operating and Other Information 

These schedules contain information about t he City's operations 
and resources to help the 1'eader understand how the City's 
financial information relates to the services the city provides and 
the activities it performs. 

Page 

146 

154 

166 

177 

182 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from 
the· comprehensive annual financial 1·eports for the relevant year. Information related 
to any new GASB pronouncements required to be included within these statements is 
shown prospectively except in those cases in which prior year information was readily 
available. 
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2008 

Governmental Activities: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 117,130,313 $ 

Restricted: 

Debt Service 2,747,418 

Capital Improvements 1,931,411 

Pensions 

Community Development 22,636 

Subtotal · Restricted 4,701,465 

Unrestricted 27,564,080 

Total Governmental Activities Net Position 149,395,858 

Business-type Activities: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 51,848,628 

Restricted: 

Debt Service 

Capital Improvements 

Pensions 

Subtotal · Restricted 

Unrestricted 8,709,036 

Tota] Business-type Activities Net Position 60,657,664 

Primary Government: 

Net. Investment in Capital Assets 168,978,941 

Restricted: 

Debt Se1'Vice 2,74.7,418 

Capital Improvements 1,931,411 

Pensions 

Community Development 22,636 

Subtotal · Restricted 4,701,465 

Unrestricted 36,273,116 

Total Primary Government Net Position $ 209,953,522 $ 
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City of Orem 

Net Position by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

<Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2009 2010 

120,836,719 $ 117,860,004 

2,853,975 2,727,121 

2,041,001 1,741,829 

26,745 69,306 

4,921,721 4,538.256 

24,022,927 28,287,115 

149,781,367 150,685,375 

51 ,508,253 51,418,176 

4,223,890 

57,723 

4,281,613 

10,772,961 6,880,629 

62,281,214 62,680,318 

172,344,972 169,278.180 

2,863,975 6,961,011 

2,041,001 1,799,552 

26,745 69,306 

4,921 ,721 8 ,819,869 

34,795,888 35,167,644 

212,062,581 $ 213,265,693 

2011 

$ 120,200,518 

5,213,847 

11.343,346 

4,511,078 

21,068,271 

11,301,287 

152,570,076 

50,282,917 

3,696,467 

372,691 

4,069,158 

8,249,962 

62,602,027 

170,483,435 

8,910,314 

11,716,037 

4,511,078 

25,137,429 

19,551,239 

$ 215,172, 103 



Fiscal Year 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 118,628,873 $ 116,156,331 $ 119,632.622 $ 125,400,639 $ 126,818,760 $ 131,968,221 

5,243,669 3,321,577 3,962.783 4,397,812 3,276,616 3,124,343 
12,514.381 14,939,254 13,182,105 13,746,082 14,968,717 12,172,402 

474,700 18,819 11,876 
4,969,244 5,238,370 2,077,923 2,325,070 1,966,450 2,465,412 

22,727,294 23,499,201 19,222,811 20,943,664 20,230,602 17,774.033 

12,619,271 15,467,624 18,050,956 14,694,051 22,000.259 23,803,593 

153,975,438 155,123,156 156,906,389 161,038,354 169,049,621 173,545,847 

51,205, 188 52,401,013 51,205.761 55,221,666 56,904,569 59,715,600 

2,140,970 2,035,413 2,415,159 1,658,404 2,448,592 1,860,333 
103,510 44,000 66,000 88,000 110,000 

2,025 145 
2,244,480 2,035,413 2 ,459,159 1,726,429 2,536,737 1,970,333 

11,483,226 13,503,553 17,867,439 18,391,654 20.298.964 27,455,917 

64,932.894 67,939,979 71,532,359 75,339,749 79,740,270 89,141.850 

169,834,061 168,557,344 170,838,383 180,622,305 183. 723,329 191,683,821 

7,384,639 5,356,990 6,377,942 6.056,216 5,725,208 4,984,676 
12,617,891 14,939,254 13,226,105 13,812,082 15,056,717 12,282,402 

476,725 18,964 11,876 
4,969,244 5,238,370 2,077,923 2,325,070 1,966,450 2,465,412 

24,971.774 25,534,614 21,681,970 22,670,093 22,767,339 19.744,366 

24,102,497 28,971,177 35.918,395 33,085, 705 42,299,223 51,259.510 

$ 218,908,332 $ 223.063.135 $ 228,438,748 $ 236,378,103 $ 248,789,891 $ 262,687,697 
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City oCOrem 

C~ ln Not Pooh.ion 

Lnt Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual &.la or Accou.ntlng) 

(t/naw!Ited) 

FiacalYur 

2008 2009 2010 2011 20U 2018 
ExpellBOS 

Govefllll>ent.al AC!ivi~ .. : 

General GovernmOJll i; 14 ,002 762 s Ll!,896,604 $ 10, l7S.033 s 10.878.27f> s 11, 164,306 R 11,634.649 
Public Safety 19.491 191 20.a52,a66 20,987,642 21.030,800 21,611,770 2 1 305-692 
Aigbways ,na Public Improvements 8.64(,,5'19 8.299.238 7.677.709 8,146,666 7,!)l!1,U2 7,485,469 
Parks. Recreation Md Atu 9.411>.719 9,474 ,718 9.291.122 9,018,719 9.266,2 )8 8.961,377 
EooMmio Md Phyti,:a! Oevelo))inonl 3.t21.673 1.886,214 l,868,880 1,8Sl,62a 1,664-.674 778.954 
Redovolopmeot 693,288 1.o:!6,908 !.030,308 1.039.966 1,651,667 1,217.886 
lnteroat on Loog·term Debt 2217625 2171793 2,130,686 1857626 3654 187 6 16] 718 

Tot.al Govemlllbnt.al Activm .. Ei<i,eraes 67 649 602 66,048,481 63.169280 64,102,673 56,989,961 67,436,646 
Bw,iness·tl'l)e AcLivitiea: 

W:111Dr 8,388.236 8,849,126 9,790,683 9.726,()()3 9,939,601 l0,405,264 
Waler Rocla.ma.tion 5,982.610 6,996,131 5,963,812 6,924,068 6.173.983 6, !6,l,4()6 

St.o·rm. Water 2,004,281 2,260,279 2,312,019 2,,272,163 2,336.612 2-338.213 
Recroat.ion 1,617,687 1,695.721 1.766,296 1,765.365 l,818,9S6 1.758.026 
Solid Wute 3,0U,70'/ 3. 128.66<1 3.211.021 3,180.647 3,189.138 2,999.632 
Street Ughtlng I 244 305 1,260.380 1.275.827 1,282,288 1,231,494 J 260 609 

Tot.al 8UAilleu·t,ype Activiti.,, l::.pollse$ 22.251,726 23,170,201 24,319 668 24,150,41' 24,688,669 24,926 05o 
Total Primary Government EiQ,enses 79 901 328 79,218,632 77,478,838 78,262,987 81,678 624 82,361.695 

Prognm Revouuet 

Governmenta.J Activities: 
Charge,, for Services, 

GoooraJ Oove.mmcnt 11.697,008 9.687,642 7,68l!, 108 8,778.383 l),943,923 9,624.404 
PubficSafel,)' 3.339.720 4.928,986 4,609,279 4,246,902 4, I Hi, 110 4,306.443 
Patb Recreation and Arts 646,132 621,116 654,474 818,0IO 899.488 1!20,453 
Eoooomic and Physical Dwelopment 277,(13 306.039 33,632 9,571 78, 19ff 11,·3,099 

Operating Cranl.S and Contributions 1,433,884 1,369,082 1,595,969 2,264,633 2.077.014 1,273, 162 
Capital Grants aod ContributiOO$ ~127,289' 2,881836 3074 396 2:966.474 2,686,504 ~613.082 

Total Govefllllll>ni.l ~ties PrO§l'am R.w•nuas 21 425,146 19 794.699 
a.,.,.,.,....t)'ll(f A<\ivities 

17,660,848 19,07~87S 19,6]~39 18,800,6,13 

Chargoo R>r Serv,cco: 

w~w 9.331 ,098 9,402,862 8.468.089 9,237,211 \1,040.897 1 l,O'll,745 
Water Redamation 6.073.791 6.060,236 6,448,1)57 6,697.342 6.ij)l.766 7. 1~6.608 
S1<>rm Wator 2.649.082 2,688,822 2,819.300 2,639,270 2,9<4,361 3.0lll ,807 
Recreatwn 1.511S894 1,610.947 1.690.568 1,656;084 1,704,847 1,650,645 
Solid Wast.e 2,9/il, 104 2.999,129 3.084, 768 8,102.999 3, 180.937 8.287.659 
Street Lighting 68~;!.43 742,629 866, l:34 864.928 869,312 897,672 

Opor:111.ing Gr..,lt and Cont,;lbutiooo 

Cap it.al Grant.a and Contn'b"tions 926 500 313 622 112 480 73400 !!94 507 
Total Bw:ioess-l}'pe Aciivitio,; l'rogtam Revenues 24 119,812 23,504,624 23,690,644 24 210 314 26.625610 .27,440,448 

Tot.al Primary Qovemmoot 15,wram Rov8'-'ue/! 46,544,958 43,299,328 41 141392 48,™,181 46,239,749 46,241.086 

Not (Expelli!e) Rovonw, 

Government.al Activities (36,224,456) (36,263,732) (3M08,432) (35,028. 700) (a7.375.722l (Ss.635.002) 
8uain<!$$·typc Activities 1868.086 334,42.! (729,014) 69900 I 936-,847 2,614 393 

Total Primary Government. NeL CF..xpem1e) k.:venun $ (34,356,370) $ (35,919,309) $ (36,387,446) s CS4.~800) ~ (35,438,876) s (86 120.609) 

C..noral Reveow,g and Other Cb&lla•• io Not Position 

Gove:nunonta.l Aclivil1••· 

Tuxes: 

Sale• Taxes 20.616.691 17.989.671 16,779,J78 17.096,224 18. 106.273 18,944.647 
Prope~y 1'ax0$ S.082,9'J2 10,243.870 10,820.412 I0,893.480 ll .008,739 11,517.710 
Franchise Taxes 7,291,044 7.342.725 7,6"!1,26'7 7,301.384 7,437,757 7.816.921 
Vehicle and Other Taxes l. ll~.817 1,038,934 1,506.864 1.sag,s95 l.963. 792 1,686,215 

UDl'Olllru,t,,d lnv .. lmQnt EamJng• l .468,5l4 1,017,692 212,169 180.840 288,930 27(462 
Gaw on Sale of Cal/Jtal Aasol:8 fl6ij,()63 8.591 74.794 17.405 73,893 4.8,37] 
Transfe"' (1,036,106) (1,002,14!0 (68 020) 91933 {98,040) (399 606) 

Totlll Government.al Activlll0$ 39.204,215 36,639,241 36,467,6.S<l 36,918.401 38,781,084 39.782 720 
Businou·type Acuvic.1es: 

Unre-a:trktec1 lnvesuuent Earning& ~43,870 807,064 92,654 80.038 125,167 90,661 
Gaw on Salo or Capital As8ot.s 131,104 79,916 10, 156 <26,296) 170.813 2,455 
Tranaf.orB 1,086,106 1.002 148 68020 (91938) 98,040 399606 

Total Busu.,,,.·typ• ActiYlti .. l,611,0SO 1389 127 170730 (38,191) .394.020 492692. 
'rot.a.I Primary Government ~0,816,295 38,028,368- 86,688,384 36.876.210 39,175,104 40 275 412 

Change In Net Poeitlon 
Govemmem.aJ Activities 2,979.759 385,509 &59.222 1,884,701 1,405.362 l , 147,7-ul 
Businoss·type Activities 3,479,166 1,723.550 i668J!!4) 2J 709 2.330 867 3.(J07 085 

'l'otal Primary GovernlDcnt $ 6,468,925 s 2 109.059 $ aD0938 s 1,906,4!0 s 3 736.229 s 4, 164.803 
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Fiscal Year 

2014 2015 2016 201'7 

.s 1~.398.14:l 10,948,663 s fl 148,210 s 13, l60. 163 

20,927,444 :!O :1~!l.8;Jfi 21 750059 ~a.678.2Wl 
1.5sa.11a 7.:mo.or,o 7.,126.758 7,086,62J 

8.Ho.399 H HH.663 S, 701.800 9,,171.88~ 

815.708 6l:S.S65 8417.172 960,630 

1 306271 1,320, 100 187.497 1.:186.498 
6.686.839 3.900.71•1 ;1624.749 3.696.ll<l~ 

58,l);J l,2 17 n2.945.771 63.709.246 59,129.915 

10,766.:120 10 460,SOa 10.a~o,616 I l,IJ21,ll'/1l 

f. 697, 101 ,,,268.592 (1,7 16,546 6 ,723.,194 

2 401 .066 2.4H.269 2,460.64(1 2.:m.!l-11 
l ,71Cl..t00 I 9~9.301 2 023,168 l.962.996 
3 207,627 3. 1:19.68!1 a.11,1.,1112 ~.288.,110 
1.283.895 1.297 06-1 J.:l!X,.770 l L74 . lll0 

26.971A99 ~5.rn>9.'7 J7 :?6 107,G"/2 is.!\36, 526 

84,002,716 78.li06.488 79,816.917 85.6ll6.440 

10. 180 619 I t,R68.3G(J Ul(Jl8,l02 9718, 116 
,1.:no ~22 U29 1£,8 6.904.2115 5168 190 

856.832 761.427 9:Jli,415 ~.1>08 377 

76,768 118,984 117.~a,I lllll.321 
1.:171 755 1.3~i.soo I ;J33.'l!l6 I 1()5,663 
2A 13.00'J 4,017.111 2 789.074 :),17 1,9:)8 

19,076.701, 23.317,954 21,098.656 32.U-IR.610 

I 3.:!01.526 laA25,701 1:1,336, 792 Ir. 6 17,ol,1 

7.620.700 8.007 161 7,281,870 K,!\ l90!1ll 
3, IO:l,768 3 170.6 15 :1A6H,';I 4,00J,972 

1.,1~9.:Jr.7 1.646.991 1.583.,177 1,~17.273 

a.~cm.122 3AIKl.:lo.'l ~516859 a.5'71.929 
1.011 ,739 985.291 !)8~481 995.180 

7:!~.964 591.88~ 5 IO. ta8 1.:168.925 
30,300.782 3 Llt8.tKH !lfl.668. 168 35.737 222 
19!177 487 &1,4A~.9"8 61 7!16.n4 57. 7115.ll:lt 

(:l8.9M.o 12) (29,627.8171 (:12,llltl.689) (.~7.0SL,;«)6\ 

4,:l:19,:!113 6.568.287 4.560,496 9.m'.1.697 
s (!)1,625.229) s (24.069.530) s (28.060.193) $' (27.llllO 808) 

19.SIK,9(;7 :!O 727,657 ~1 .405.7:la "22,750, 70H 
11.060,i;22 8.839.669 9. 22s. 7o• 9 . M l S2~ 
7,956,780 7.698.687 7 863, 7:13 7,894.110 

1402.481 828,lH I 1,(122,0~~ 881 179 
421 721 402,:!46 688.3114 603.liOO 

M.728 'l fiAA,:mo J9. lt7 103.~S:J 
600.6'19 5a~tsoa 403. L87 :l02.2:l0 

~1 .i:I0.848 '12.569,39~ <IO.Oit .956 4 1.577.f>:l l 

98.093 122,:!71 176.9:1:l zao.161 
lll 73'J 85,2'1'1 67,:!79 n7.~62 

(600.64U) \fi~2 903) MO:l 187) C:!02.230) 

(3lll.1123) (;l25,288) 06.9,97/;) 200.88/l 
I0.829.025 42.24,1.106 40.41;1.~8 I •I t.178.4 t•l 

2 266 ~36 12.041.576 81111,:!67 ,.4;,r.,i2t, 
~.!1~7.400 6 :M~.999 4.400.621 9.401.580 

s 6.208.796 s 18. 184 .676 s lt.411,788 s 13.897,806 
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General Fund 

Nonspendable $ 

Resti·icted 

Committed 

Assigned 

Unassigned 

Total General Fund 

All Other Governmental Funds 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Assigned 

Total All Other Governmental Funds 

Total Governmental Funds 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Assigned 

Unassigned 

Total Governmental Funds $ 

City of Orem 

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

22,636 $ 26,745 $ 51,604 $ 107,041 

1,635,185 1,743.596 4,345,683 5,439,904 

497.768 

1,226,527 

10,962,112 6,773,200 5,410,613 3,471 ,493 

12,619,933 8,543,541 9,807,900 10,742,733 

1,442,352 3,406,170 

7,519,224 9,670,532 9,746,056 12,115,156 

109,753 

6,008,984 5,972,530 4,433,744 1,158,818 

13,528,208 15,643,062 15,622,152 16,789,897 

22,636 26,745 1,493,956 3,513,211 

9,154,409 11,414,128 14,091,739 17,565,060 

607,521 

6,008,984 5,972,530 4,433,744 2,385,345 

10,962,112 6,773,200 5,410,613 3,471,493 

26,148,141 $ 24,186,603 $ 25,430,052 $ 27,532,630 
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Fiscal Year 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 97,590 $· 183,807 $ 146,343 $ 70,707 $ 57,122 $ 51,517 

5,367,461 5,721,516 5,554,462 6,057,938 6,484,410 7,292,911 

75,000 75,000 75,000 

2,145,703 1,500,374 1,893,107 3,125,711 3,562,553 2,844,275 

3,396,016 6,092,838 10,073,358 12,747,875 11,474,137 12,829,323 

11,081,770 13,573,535 17,742,270 22,002,231 21,578,222 23,018,026 

4,341,351 2,473,532 1,000 

12,920,892 15,120,346 lS,522,006 14,340.319 13,653,867 10,416,729 

5,380,123 

2,487,021 3,518,562 2,380,417 6,546,914 11,071,273 12,327,020 

19,749,264 21,112,440 15,902,423 20,887,233 30,105,263 22,744,749 

4,438,941 2,657,339 146,343 70,707 57,122 52,517 

18,288,353 20,841,862 19,076,468 20,398,257 20,138,277 17.709,640 

75,000 75,000 75,000 5,380,123 

4,632,724 5,018,936 4,273,524 9,672,625 14,633,826 15,171,295 

3,396.016 6,092,838 10,073,358 12,747,875 11,474,137 12,829,323 

$ 30,831,034 $ 34,685,975 $ 33,644,693 $ 42,889,464 $ 51,683,485 $ 45,762,775 
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Revenues 

Truces and Specia.l Assessments $ 

Licenses and Permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for Services 

Fine& and Forfeitures 

Charges for-Services· Other Funds 

Interest Income 

Miscellaneo\lll Revenue 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Highways and Public Improvements 

Parks, Recreation and Arts 

Economic and Physical Development 

Redevelopment 

Debt Service: 

Principal Retirement 

interest and Fiscal Charges 

Capital Lease Payments · Principal 

Capital Lease Payments · Interest 

Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues ove:r 

(under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Issuance of Bonds & Other Debt. 

Payment to Bond Refunding Agent 

Proceeds from Asset Disposals 

Proceeds from Lease Relinquishments 

Capital Leases 

Transfers In 

Transfers Out 

Total Other Fin!Ulcing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 

Debt Service as a percentage 

ofNoncapital Expenditures 

City of Orem 

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

<Modified Acqrual Basie of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

-2008 2009 2010 2011 

38,517,744 $ 37,312,000 $ 36,955, 125 $ 36,999,164 

1,596,935 1,027,151 1,080,748 l,213,994 

4,325,215 3,836,399 4,670,355 5.221,007 

4,832,559 5,819,384 5,621,965 5,744,989 

580,510 608,103 618,992 1,073,523 

3,1l21,l54 4,081,747 4,347,299 4,239,346 

1,321,190 732,409 209,311 25.9,816 

1,64-2,446 1,523,945 2,756,608 1,892,299 

56,737,763 54,941.138 56,269,403 56,644,137 

ll,620,136 11,483,442 10,843.565 11,562,870 

17,851,249 19,338,116 19,729,088 20,098,988 

4,107,184 4,188,647 5,322,963 4,285,166 

7,807,327 8,052,037 7,785,452 7,510,159 

1,998,675 676,049 667,883 630,073 

677,702 939,909 940,879 950,536 

3,260,950 6,860,871 4,200,905 4,877,852 

2,146,891 2,436,375 2,197.450 1,983,792 

68,361 87,660 37,200 34,028 

5,824 4,755 2,259 1,718 

10,520,814 5,985,800 3,606,664 4,712,497 

59,965,113 60,003,661 55,334,308 56,647,174 

(3,227,360) (5,062,523) 925,095 (3,037) 

7,290,169 6,926,936 4,809,811 1,915,000 

(5,760,946) (2,905,000) (4,703,082) 

669,351 17,044 221,820 25,000 

90,783 34,977 73,078 

o,648,353 6,902.301 12,735,609 4,018,147 

(7,038,634) (7,875,273) 0 2,790,690) (3,925,610) 

l909,076 3,100,985 273,568 2,105,615 

(1,318,284) $ (1,961,538) $ 1,198,663 $ 2,102,578 

10.8% 17. 1% 12.3% 13.0% 
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2012 

$ 40,286,108 

1,093,859 

4,642,518 

5,789,061 

1,343,329 

4,478,369 

340,126 

2,256,723 

60,230,092 

10,348,586 

20,371,289 

3.707,727 

7,730,925 

1.588, 116 

1,562,238 

3,834,888 

3,821,259 

31,132 

1,989 

4,435,299 

57,433,393 

-Z,796,699 

1,814,000 

(1,785,000) 

45,598 

626,147 

5,933,470 

(6,031,510) 

501. 705 

$ 3,298,404 

14.3% 



Fiscal Year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 40,595,860 $ 40,004,715 $ 43,549,348 $ 39,473,431 $ 40,80,i,822 

1,147,855 1,437,173 2,!524,794 1,745,483 1,815,943 

3.886,244 3,685,664 5,350.019 4,122,570 4,367,601 

6,026,996 6,387,452 7,621,838 7,671,801 7,944,803 

1,358,345 1,587,870 1,792,829 1,588,994 1,699,609 

4,447,898 4,498,406 4,042,299 3,666,672 3,739,141 

274,439 420,619 397,648 691,037 602,736 

1,889,659 1,557,414 t,587,285 1,670,552 2,254,504 

59,627,296 59,579,313 66,869,060 60,630,540 63,229,169 

11,093,324 11,609,569 11,539,358 12,143.760 12,810,872 

20,332,951 19,951,315 19,847,226 21.144,586 21,752,711 

2,974,008 2,934,326 2,828,824 2,9l22,708 3,029,415 

7,558,171 7,016,106 7,485.247 7,512,284 7,593,094 

707,403 707,759 886.236 788.526 862,478 

1,128,457 1.215,842 1,231,600 99,182 l, 195,421 

8.130,714 3,814,621 5,486,955 4,369,370 3,515,873 

6,233,296 6,706,815 4,201.272 3.802.678 3,554,590 

98,213 108,318 108,376 114,173 109,494 

12,099 10,218 9,177 7,037 4,540 

1,963,153 7,180,569 7,573.606 6,0•14,338 15,109,224 

55,231,789 61,255,458 61,197,877 58,948.642 69,537,712 

4,395,507 (1,676.145) 5,671,183 1,681,898 (6,308,563) 

10,174,331 2,898,000 

(9,792,760) (2,861,199) 

48,275 107,760 42,869 19,127 103,983 

2.f,00,000 

26.454 64,113 6.739,000 

7,199,980 7,452,857 11,483,900 12,998,035 11,857,495 

(7,788,821) (6,952,208) (10,898,865) (12,644,039) (11,610,436) 

(-540.566) 634.863 3,573,588 7,11.2,123 387,843 

$ 3,854,.941 $ (1,041,282) $ 9,244,771 $ 8,794,021 $ (5,920,710) 

17.4% 19.2% 18.0% 15.3% 12.9% 
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City of Orem 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited.) 

Taxable Assessed Value 

Primary Other Commercial 

Calendar Residential Residential & Industrial Agricultural 
Year1 Property Property Property Property 
2007 $ 2,826,766,252 $ 3.979,753 $ 1,274,663,047 $ 507,506 

2008 2,843.159, 747 5,025,651 1,540,471,628 505,940 

2009 2,531,397,498 88,201,742 1,625,957,618 927,232 
2010 2,442,893,252 69,047,883 1,665,301,399 477,597 
2011 2,319,187,515 60,784,441 1,551,035,553 446,286 

2012 2,284,573,816 4,073,304 l.451,256, 784 544,039 
2013 2,372,218,303 4,459,944 1 ,455,891,528 528.035 
2014 2,625,764,385 7,388,684 1,540,311,362 486,609 
2015 2.843,531,994 8,234,684 1,591,591,049 496,907 
2016 3,107,389,501 11,331.034 1,666,181,801 936,304 

Source: Utah State Tax Commission - Property Tax Division 

Notes: Property in I.he City of Orem is reassessed once every five years, on average. The county 
assesses property at approximately 55 percent of actual value for residential property and lOO percent 
of actual value for all other categories. Estimated actual taxable value is calculated by dividing 
taxable assessed value by those percentages. 

1 
Assessed values are reported by the county on a calendar year basis rather than July 1 to June 30 fiscal year 

-154-

Unimproved 

Real 

Property 

$ 21,832,436 

19,916,072 

5,171,123 

3,173,671 

3,599,142 

136,586,644 

127,808.953 

147,878,177 

145,565,291 

160,189,356 



Personal 

Property 

$ 253,305,890 

277,909,182 

292,671,778 

275,721,406 

294,715,129 

310,397,550 

328,234.567 

322,456,519 

299,822,251 

302,375,000 

Total Total Estimated 

Taxable Direct Actual 

Fee in Lieu Assessed Tax Taxable 

Property Value Rate Value 

$ 32,014, 012 $ 4,413,068,896 $ 0.001670 $ 6,729,133,809 

29,177,534 4,716,165,754 0.001578 7,046,499,261 

25,501,802 4,569.828, 793 0.001676 6,713,137,262 

33,596,021 4,490,211,229 0.001739 6,545,435,794 

43,727,917 4,273,495,983 0.001879 6,220,745,765 

43,171,491 4,230,603,628 0 001921 6,103,133.090 

44.814,165 4,333,955,495 0.001871 6,278,510,424 

43,654,474 4,687,940.210 0.001716 6,842,338,176 

45,221,895 4,934,464,071 0.001652 7,267,727,717 

46,114,051 5,294,517,047 0.001550 7,846,197,485 

Taxable Assessed Value as a % of Actual Taxable Value 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Calendar Year 
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Taxable 

Assessed Value 

as a Percentage 

of Actual 

Taxable Value 

65.58% 

66.93% 

68.07% 

68.60% 

68.70% 

69.32% 

69.03% 

68.51% 

67.90% 

67.48% 



Calendar 

Year2 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

City of Orem 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

I.ast Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited) 

City of Orem Direct Rates Overlapping Rates 1 

Central Utah 
Debt Total Alpine Water 

General Service Direct School Utah Conservancy 
Fund Fund Rate District County District 

0.0011 54 0.000516 0.001670 0.006937 0.001000 0.000302 
0.001091 0.000487 0.001578 0.007057 0.001105 0.000286 

0.001166 0.000510 0.001676 0.007541 0.001203 0.000400 

0.001220 0.000519 0.001739 0.008220 0.001294 0.000421 

0.001325 0.000554 0.001879 0.008812 0.001342 0.000436 

0.001355 0.000566 0.001921 0.008828 0.001324 0.000455 

0.001324 0.000547 0.001871 0.008699 0.001259 0.000446 
0.001217 0.000499 0.001716 0.008096 0.001149 0.000422 

0.001188 0.000464 0.001652 0.008177 0.001098 0.000405 

0.001123 0.000427 0.001550 0.007718 0.001049 ().000400 

Source: Utah State Tax Commission · Property Tax Division 

Metropolitan 

Water 

District 

of Orem 

0.000035 

0.000033 

0.000035 

0.000036 

0.000039 

0.000040 

0.000039 

0.000036 

0.000035 

0.000033 

Notes: The City's basic property tax rate is primarily increased by: 1) a majority vote of the City Council af'te.r holding 
public hearings, 2) the approval of general obligation debt by a majority of e.he City's residents, 3) through a judgment 
levy due to a court ordered reduction to an entity(s) property tax, and 4) the overall assessed pmperty values of the 
City's residents are reduced by the County Assessor. Rates for debt service are set based on each year's requirements. 
The tax rate is applied directly to the taxable value of the property. 

1 Overlapping rates are those oflocal and county governments. These 
rates apply to all property owners within the City of Orem. 

• Ta.-xes are collected and reported by the County on a calendar year basis rather than July l to June 30 fiscal year. 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
Calendar Year 2016 

CUWCD 
Utah County 3.7% 

9.8% JJ[?Metro Water 
of Orem 

0.3% 

~ ~City of Orem 
Alpine_., 14.4% 
School 
District 
71.8% 
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Total 

0.009944 

0.010059 

0.010855 

0.011710 

0.012508 

0.012568 

0.012314 

0.011419 

0.011367 

0.010750 



Taxpayer 

University Mall 

TCU P roperties 

Pacificorp 

Timpanogos Regional Hospital 

Questar Gas 

University Crossing Shopping Ctr 

Carillon Squar~ LLC 

Boyer Lake Point Shopping Ctr 

Retail Trust Ill (W almart) 

Village Park Apartments 

Pinnacle Apartments 

Dickson Properties LLC 

CenturyLink (Qwest Corp.) 

Greater Growth Properties (GGP) 

Wolverine Crossing LLC 

Nordstrom 

Dayton Hudson Corporation 

Orem Eastpointe LLC 

Total 

$ 

City of Orem 

Principal Property Tax Payers 

Cur.rent Year and Nine Years Ago 

(Unaudited) 

Calendar Year 

2016 

Percentage 

of Total 

Taxable Taxable 

Assessed Assessed 

Value1 Rank Value 

149,190,700 1 2.82% 

56,292,300 2 1.06% 

48,767,025 3 0.92% 

41,697.700 4 0.79% 

26,175,918 5 0.53% 

23,354,400 6 0.44% 

21,883,600 7 0.41% 

17,765,100 8 0.34% 

17,523,500 9 0.33% 

17,399,000 10 0.33% 

15,106,685 11 0.29% 

14,530,700 12 0.27% 

$ 451,686,628 8.53% 

Calendar Year 

2007 

Taxable 

Assessed 

Value1 Rank 

$ 79,163,341 1 

19,613,850 4 

22,998,270 3 

19,000,000 5 

13.355,406 10 

14,778,667 8 

23,224.025 2 

17,723,800 6 

16,295.050 7 

14,000,000 9 

12,600,000 11 

12,220,395 12 

$ 264,972,804 

1 Assessed values are repotted by the County on a calen<.iar year basis rather than July 1 to June 30 fiscal year. 
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Percentage 

of Total 

Taxable 

Assessed 

Value 

1.79% 

0.52% 

0.43% 

0.30% 

0.33% 

0.53% 

0.40% 

0.37% 

0.32% 

0.29% 

0.28% 

6.00% 



Calendar Total 

Year1 Tax Levy 

2007 $ 6,797,960 

2008 6,760,841 

2009 6,953,441 

2010 7,075,315 

2011 7,301,643 

2012 7,370,522 

2013 7,374,914 

2014 7,387,198 

2015 7,529,322 

2016 7,686,065 

City of Orem 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Calendar Years 

(Unaudited) 

Percent of 

Current Tax Current Taxes 

Collections Collected 

$ 6,247,920 91.91% 

6,077,279 89.89% 

6,216,940 89.41% 

6,381,759 90.20% 

6,644,493 91.00% 

6,788,600 92.10% 

6,815,131 92.41% 

6,793,773 91.97% 

6,935,505 92.11% 

7,059,043 93.05% 

Delinquent 

Tax 

Collections 

by Tax 

Levy Year 

$ 483,271 

596,016 

638,316 

594,240 

558,514 

480,274 

439,124 

492,965 

506,462 

472,609 

1 'l'ruces are levied, collected, and reported by the County on a calendar or tax levy year basis 

rather than a July 1 to June 30 fiscal year. 
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Total Tax 

Collections 

$ 6,731,191 

6,673,295 

6,855,256 

6,976,999 

7,203,007 

7,268,874 

7,254,255 

7,286,738 

7,441,967 

7,531,652 



Outstanding Ratio of 

Ratio of Delinquent Outstanding 

Total Tax Taxes Delinquent 

Collections to by Tax Taxes to 

Total Tax Levy Levy Year Total Tax Levy 

99.02% $ 66,769 0.98% 

98.71% 87,546 1.29% 

98.59% 98,185 1.41% 

98.60% 99,316 1.40% 

98.65% 98,636 1.35% 

98.62% 101,648 1.38% 

98.36% 120,659 1.64% 

98.64% 100,460 1.36% 

98.84% 87,355 1.16% 

99.28% 54,413 0.72% 
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2008 

Genera1Merchandise and Groceries $ 4,598,711 

Building Materials, Hardware, and Tools 2,922,582 

Auto Dealers, Supplies, and Accessories 2,603,405 

Home Furnishings, Applian<:es, & Electronics 1,973,203 

Eating and Drinking Establishments 1,045,771 

Clothing, Apparel, and Accesso1·ies 1,516,201 

Professional Equipment and Supplies 974,911 

Arts, Crafts, and Specialty Items 454,428 

Amusement and Recreation 576,829 

All Other Categories 2,018,648 

Subtotal· City Direct 18,684,689 

Cultural Arts & Recreation Enhancement (CARE) 1,932,202 

Mass Tl·ansit · Additional 

Total City Sales Taxes $ 20,616,891 

Total City Sales Tax Rate 1 
1.10% 

% Increase (Decrease) from prior year ·3.34% 

% Increase (Dec1·ease) from prior year, 
excluding non·City Direct 'fax amounts -2.77% 

$ 

$ 

City of Orem 

Sales Taxes by Category 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2009 2010 

4,651,651 $ 4,660,428 

1,978,366 1,512,797 

2,191,650 2, 111,247 

1,587,587 1,452,814 

1,037,920 1,002,978 

1,405,704 1,319,296 

898,478 906,171 

408,061 305,719 

564,190 563,129 

1,690,771 1,442,919 

16,414,378 15,277,498 

1,575,193 1,501,679 

17,989,571 $ 16,779,177 

1.10% 1.10% 

·12.74% ·6.73% 

·12.15% ·6.93% 

Source: Internally generated, but based upon sales tax amounts reported to t he 
City by the Utah State Tax Commission. 

1 See sales tax rate breakdown on page 164 for additional infomiation regarding this rate. 
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2011 

$ 4,712,411 

1,499,525 

2,141,910 

1,428,452 

1,097,571 

1,352,740 

933,040 

338,630 

540,342 

1,494,365 

15,538,986 

1,557,238 

$ 17,096,224. 

1.10% 

1.89% 

1.71% 



$ 

$ 

2012 2013 

4,959,192 $ 5,030,506 

1,589,790 1,576,835 

2,338,347 2,769,371 

1,560,747 1,614,843 

1,200,356 1,104,646 

1,435,943 1,397,682 

1,031,773 1,207,903 

312,424 291,241 

559,763 551,462 

1,465,414 1,688,683 

16,453,749 17,233,172 

1,652,524 1,711,475 

18,106,273 $ 18,944,647 

1.10% 1.10% 

5.91% 4.63% 

5.89% 4.74% 

$21,000,000 

$19,000,000 

$17,000,000 

$15,000,000 

$13,000,000 

$11,000,000 

Fiscal Year 

2014 2015 

$ 5,140,689 $ 5,277,987 $ 

1,661,997 1,801,399 

2,874,555 2,899,382 

1,685,399 1,786,258 

1,168,448 1,245,543 

1,464,384 1,528, 112 

1,378,551 1,429,657 

322,670 359,128 

578,775 650,710 

1,732.104 1,852,879 

18,007,572 18,831,055 

1,8 11.395 1,888,230 

8,272 

$ 19,818,967 $ 20,727,557 $ 

1.10% 1.10% 

4.62% 4.58% 

4.49% 4.57% 

Total Sales Taxes by Fiscal Year 
(excluding non-City Direct Taxes) 
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2016 2017 

5,338,279 $ 5,637,951 

1,952,417 2,299,711 

2,979,991 3,151,370 

1,822,364 1,964,207 

1,314,508 1,499,483 

1,573,936 1,552,018 

1,526,283 1,554,830 

382,199 377,497 

656,716 674,845 

1,921,222 2,002,205 

19,462,915 20.714,117 

1,934, 153 2,028,528 

8,665 8,062 

21,405,733 $ 22,750,707 

1.10% 1.10% 

3.27% 6.28% 

3.36% 6.43% 



City of Orem 

Other Sales Tax Revenue Information by Category 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 2017 

Number Percentage Sales Tax 

of Filers of Total Revenue 

General Merchandise and Groceries 803 13.96% $ 5,921,190 

Building Materials, Hardware, and Tools 367 6.38% $ 2,429, 161 

Auto Dealers, Supplies, and Accessories 368 6.10% $ 3,281.173 

Home Furnishings, Appliances. & Electrnn ics 266 4.63% $ 2,058,032 

Eating and Drinking Establishments 269 4.68% $ 1,594,366 

Clothing, Apparel, a nd Accessories 214 3.72% $ 1,627,501 

Ptofessional Eq uipment a nd Supplies 1,178 20.48% ii; 1,970,3111 

Arts, 01'afts, and Specialty Items 277 4,.82% $ •175,202 

Amusement and Recreat10n 216 3.76% $ 751,034 

A1J Other Categories l,798 31.18% $ 2,642.705 

Total 5,751 100.00% $ 22,750,!i07 

Fiscal Year 2008 

Number Percentage Sales Tax 

of Filers of Total Revenue 

General Met•chandise and Grnceries 257 9.60% $ 4,784,139 

Buildin~ Materials, Hardware, and Tooia 164 6.12% $ 3,040.910 

Auto Dealers, Supplies, a nd Accessories 268 10.01% $ 2,796,770 

Home Furnishings, Appliances, & Electronics 232 8.66% $ 2, 140,593 

Eating and Drinking Establishments 174 6.50% $ l, 171,314 

Clothing, Apparel, and Accessories 168 6.27% $ 1,637,415 

Professional Equipment and Supplies 321 11.99% $ 1,206.515 

Arts, Crafts, and Specialw ltems 283 10.57% $ 658.615 

Amusement and Recreation 132 4,93% s 672,068 

All Other Categories 679 25.35% $ 2,508,553 

'l'otal 2,678 100.00% $ 20,616,891 

Source: lnt.ernally generated, but based upon sales tax amounts reported to the 
Cit,y by ~he Utah State Tax Commission.. 
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Percentage 

of Total 

26.03% 

10.68% 

14.42% 

9.05% 

7.01% 

7.15% 

8.66% 

2.09% 

3.30% 

11.62% 

100.00% 

Percentage 

of Total 

23.20% 

14.75% 

13.57% 

10.38% 

5.68% 

7.94% 

5.85% 

3.19% 

3.26% 

12.17% 

100.()0% 



Taxpayer 

Costco Wholesale Corporation 

Wal·Mart Supercenter 

Brent Brown Toyota 

Target 

RC Willey Home Furnishings 

Winco Foods 

Pacificorp (Utah Power & Light) 

Smith Food & Drug 

Lowes Home Centers LLC 

Harmons 

Ken GarffNissan of Orem 

Best Buy Stores LP 

Mountainland Supply Compan_v 

Macey's, Inc. 

Ken Garff Honda of Orem 

Questar Gas 

Geneva Rock P1•oducts 

Total $ 

Source: Utah State Tax Commission. 

City of Orem 

Principal Sales Tax Payers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

(Unaudit.ed) 

Fiscal Year 

2017 

Percentage 

of Total 

Sales Sales 

Taxes 1 Rank Taxes t 

NIA 1 NIA 

NIA 2 NIA 

NIA 3 NIA 

NIA 4 NIA 

NIA 5 NIA 

NIA 6 NIA 

NIA 7 NIA 

NIA 8 NIA 

NIA 9 NIA 

NIA 10 NIA 

NIA 11 NIA 

NIA 12 NIA 

6,084,988 29.38% 

Sales 

Taxes 1 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

$ 5,145,206 

1 Dt1e to confidentiality issues, the amounts and percentages of the ten largest revenue payers cannot be 
displayed. However, the aggregate total js displayed along with the indi\1idual rankings in an effort w 
provide the reader with information as to where the City's sales tax base originates. 
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Fiscal Year 

2008 

Percentage 

of Total 

Sales 

Rank Taxes 1 

1 NIA 

2 NIA 

4 NIA 

3 NIA 

6 NIA 

7 NIA 

8 NIA 

5 NIA 

9 NIA 

10 NIA 

11 NIA 

12 NIA 

27..54% 



City of O i:em 

Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates 

Last Ton Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

City Direct Sales Tax Rates Overlapping Salee Tax Rates 

City Total 

City Cultural City County 
Fiscal Direct Arts &Rec Direct Direct 
Year Rate Rate I Rate Rate 
2008 1.00% 0.10% 1.10% 0.26% 

2009 1.00 O. LO 1.10 0.25 

2010 l.00 0.10 1.10 0.25 

201J 1.00 0.10 1.10 0,25 

2012 l,00 0 .10 l.10 0.25 

2013 1.00 0 .10 1.10 0.25 

2014 1.00 0.10 1.10 0.25 

2015 1.00 0.10 l.10 0.25 

2016 1.00 0.10 1.10 0 .25 

2017 1.00 0.10 1.10 0.25 

Source: Utah State Tax Commission 

1 This additional sales tax rate., titled CARE tax, was voted on by the 
citizens of Orem and went into effect on April 1. 2006. 1t was 
reauthoriU!<l by citizen vote in November 2013 to continue for another 
ten years. 

2 This additional sales tax rate was voted on by the citizens of Utah 
County and went into effect on April l, 2007. 'Phe additional tax is to be 
used to fund highways, fixed guideways, or systems for public transit. 

8 This additional sales tax rate was voted on by the citizens of Utah 
Co1.1nty and went into effect on January 1, 2009. The additional ta..x is to 
be used to fund airport, highways, or public transit proje.cts or services in 
tbe county. 

4 The total sales tax rate for non·prepai-ed food and food ingredients was 
set at 3.00% statewide (LOO% City Direct Rate, 0.25% County Direct 
Rate, and 1. 75% State Dil'ect Rate) and went into effect on January 1, 
2008. 
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County 

County Airport, 

Mass Highway, & State 
Transit Public Tunsit Direct 
Rate 2 Rate 5 Rate 
0.30% 4.65% 

0.30 0 .2;i 4.70 

0.30 0.25 4.70 

0 .30 0.25 4.70 

0.30 0.25 4-.70 

0.30 0.26 4..70 

0 .30 0.25 4.70 

0.30 0.25 4.70 

0.30 0 .26 4.70 

0.80 0.25 4.70 

State 

Mass Total 
Transit Sales Tax 

Rate Rate 4 

0.25% 6.55% 

0.25 6.85 

0.25 6.85 

0.25 6.85 

0 .25 6.85 

0 .25 6.85 

0.25 6.85 

0.2-5 6.85 

0.25 6.85 

0.25 6 .85 



Fines & Forfeitures 
3.0% 

Charges for Services 
10.2% 

Intergovernmental 
7.0%, 

City of Orem 

General Fund · Revenues and Expenditures 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

(Unaudited) 

I GENERAL FUND . REVENUES I 
Charges for Services · 

Other Funds 
6.6% 

Investment Earnings 
0.7% 

Franchise & Other 
Taxes 

Business Licenses 
1.3% 

14.3% 
Building Penn.its 

2.0% 

I GENERAL FUND. EXPENDITURES I 

Property Taxes 
11.4% 

Capital Outlay 
8.1% 

Debt Service 
0.2% Personnel Services 

66.5% 

Contract Services 
1.9% 

Materials, Supplies, & 
Other Operational Coats 

23.3% 
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City of Orem 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Governmental Activities 

Sales Franchise 
General G.O. Bonds Special Tax Tax 

Fiscal Obligation Issuance Assessment Revenue Revenue 

Year Bonds Premiums Bonds Bonds Bonds 
2008 $ 19,960,000 $ 280,734 $ 2,675,000 $ 9,985,000 $ 

2009 18,825,000 379,497 6,338,000 9.405,000 

2010 17,665,000 349,032 5,806,000 8,790,000 4,375,000 

2011 16,460,000 318,566 7, 229,000 8,115,000 3,875,000 

201 2 15,210,000 288,101 5,925,000 7.434,000 3,375,000 

201 3 13,900,000 257,636 5.444,000 6,688,000 2,850,000 

2014 12,550,000 227,170 4,446.000 5,848,000 2,300,000 

2015 11,830,000 695,160 1,155,000 4,995,000 1,750,000 

2016 10,200,000 611,762 165,000 3,930,000 1,150,000 

2017 8,535,000 528,364 155.000 2,898,000 525,000 

Business-type Activities 

Water Water & Revenue Total 
Quality Storm Sewer Bonds Business· 

Fiscal Revenue Revenue Issuance Capital type 

Year Bonds Bonds Premiums Leases Activities 
2008 $ 1,505,757 $ 24,593,000 $ 7 27,434 $ 21,210 $ 26,847,401 

2009 1,311,757 23,859,000 685,626 1,556 25,857,939 

2010 3,0 19,757 23,043,000 643,817 26,706,574 

2011 10,312,757 22,190,000 6 02.009 33,104,766 

2012 12,578,757 21 ,300,000 560,200 34.438,957 

2013 11.762,757 20,383,000 518,391 32,664,148 

201 4 10,938,757 21,535,000 476,585 32,950,342 

2015 10,107,000 20,307,000 ,134,776 30,848,776 

2016 9,513. 000 19,040,000 392,965 28,945.965 

2017 8,91 9,000 17,019,000 1,0 14,797 26,952,797 

Notes: Details rega rding the city's out standing debt can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements. 
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Revenue 

Lease Bonds 

Revenue Issuance 

Bonds Premiums 

$ 7,343,000 $ 161,828 

6,222,000 150,887 

380,000 558, 906 

493,615 

428,323 

363,031 

297,740 

232,449 

167.158 

101,867 



Total 

Notes Capital Governmental 

Payable Leases Activities 

$ 7,476,274 $ 140,400 $ 48,022,236 

3,691,403 81, 166 45,092,953 

2,964,498 43,447 40,931 ,883 

1,339,146 82,4,97 37,912,824 

1.268,313 576,512 34,505,2.49 

1,199,599 478,299 31, 180.565 

1.122,977 396,436 27, 188,323 

1,045,022 352,173 22,054,80'1 

960,652 6,977,000 24,161,572 

869,779 6,893.313 20,506,323 

Total Primary Government 

Percentage Direct 
Total of City Debt. 

Primary Personal Per 

Government Income Capita 

$ 74,869,637 4.55% $850 

70,950.892 4.43 804 

67,638,457 4-.65 766 

71,017,590 4.75 801 

68,944,206 4.42 772 

63,844,713 3.67 713 

60,138,665 3.47 667 

52,903,580 2.84 565 

53, l07,537 2.65 554 

47,459, 120 2.19 487 
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City of Orem 

Ratios of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Taxable Gross Debt Service 

Fiscal Assessed Bonded Monies 

Year Population 1 Value Debt Available 2 

2008 88,073 $ 4.413,068,896 $20,240 .. 734 $ 655.990 

2009 88,196 4, 7l6, 165,754 19,204,497 3,278,577 

2010 88,256 4,569,828,793 18,014,032 2.475,955 

2011 88,697 4,490,211 ,229 16,778,566 4-9,299 

2012 89,279 4,273,495,983 15,<198.101 1,282,169 

2013 89,584 4,230,603,628 14,157,636 1,654,406 

2014 90,154 4,333,955,495 12,777,170 399,982 

2015 93,601 4,687,940,210 12,525,160 1,557,040 

2016 95,788 4,934,464,071 101811,762 861,873 

2017 97,499 5,294,517,047 9,063,364 1,098.713 

1 Populatio1t estimates were based upon census data and building activity within the City. 

' Debt service mo1'1.ies available are net of reserves dedicated to other deb~ 1~sue;;. 1.e .. re.venue. 

bouds and capital leiise~. 
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Net 

Bonded 

.Oebt 

$ 19.584,744 

15,925,920 

15,538,077 

16,729,267 

14,215,932 

12,503,230 

12,377,188 

10,968,120 

9.949,889 

7,964,651 

Ratio of Net 

Bonded Debt Net 

To Taxable Bonded 

Assessed Debt Per 

Value CaEita 
0.44% $222 

0.34 181 

0.34 176 

0.37 189 

0.33 159 

0.30 140 

0.29 137 

0.23 117 

0.20 104 

0 .15 82 



City of Orem 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities D ebt 

June 30, 2017 

(Unaudited) 

Total Percentage 

Governmental Applicable to 

Activities t he Cit izens 

Debt of the 

Jurisdiction Outstanding City of Orem 1 

Direct Debt: 

City of Orem $ 20,506,323 100.0000% 

Overlapping Debt: 

Alpine School District 491,269,589 23.63 18% 

Utah County 15.0826% 

Central Utah Water Conservancy District 225,509,359 4.0697% 

Total Overlapping Debt 716.778,948 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 737,285,271 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt Pe r Capita 

Sources: Assessed value data tised to calculate applicable pereentages was provided 
by the Utah State Tax Commission. 

Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide with the geographic 
boundaries of the city_ This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of 
those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the 
City of Orem. This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue 
and repay long-term debt, the entire debt bU1·den borne by the residents and 
businesses should be taken into account. Howeve1·, this does not imply that every 
taxpayer is a 1·esident (and therefoTe responsible for repaying the debt) of each 
overlapping government. 

1 This pe1·centage uses taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were 
calculated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable assessed 
value that is within the City's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable 
assessed value. 
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Amount 

Applicable to 

the Citizens 

of t he 

City of Orem 

$ 20,506.323 

116,095,930 

9,177,638 

125,273,568 

$ 145,779,891 

$ 1,495 



Ge!}eral P Y11!oses (4 %} 

Debt Limit $ 

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 

Legal Debt Margin $ 

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 
as a Percentage of Debt Limit 

Water, Sewer, & Lighting (4%} 

Debt Limit $ 

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 

Legal Debt Margin $ 

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 
as a Percentage of Debt Limit 

Total (8%} 

Debt Limit $ 

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 

Legal Debt Margin $ 

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 
as a Percentage of Debt Limit 

City of Orem 

Legal Debt Margin Infor mation 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 

269, l61$',352 $ 281,859,970 $ 

(19,304,010) (15,54.6,423) 

249,861,342 s 266,313,547 $ 

7.17% 5.52% 

269,165.352 $ 281,859,970 $ 

269,165,352 $ 281,859,970 $ 

0.00% 0.00% 

538,380,704 $ 563,719,940 $ 

(19,304,010) (15,546,423) 

519,026,694 $ 548,173,517 $ 

3.59% 2.76% 

2010 

268,525, 490 

(15,189,045) 

253,336,445 

5.66% 

268,525.490 

268,525,490 

0.00% 

537,05-0,980 

(16,l89.046) 

521,861.935 

2.83% 

L The 8% debt limitation applies only to general obligation bonded debt. The City is limited to 
4% for general purposes with the other 4% and any remaining unused general purposes portion 
being availabe for use for water, sewer, and lighting purposes. 

2 Debt service monies availaole are net of reserves dedicated to other debt issues G.e. revenue 
bonds and capital leases). 
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2011 

s 261,817,432 

(16,410,701) 

$ 245,406,731 

6.27% 

$ 261,817,432 

$ 261,817,432 

0.00% 

$ 523,634-,864-

(16,410,701) 

$ 507,224,163 

3.13% 



Fiscal Year 

2012 2013 2014 

$ 248,829,831 $ 244.125,324 $ 251.140,4 17 

(13,927.831) (12,418,290) (15,781,4-33) 

$ 234,902.000 $ 23 l, 707,034 $ 235,358,984 

5.60% 5.09% 6.28% 

$ 248,829.83 1 $ 244,125,324 $ 2s 1,140,,u 1 

$ 248,829,831 $ 244,125,324 $ 251,140,1J.J7 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

$ 497,659,662 $ 488,250.648 $ 502,280,834 

(13,927.831) 02,418.290) (15, 781.•133) 

$ 483, 73J,831 $ 475.832,358 $ 486,499,401 

2.80% 2.54% 3.14% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2017 

Assessed Valuations: 

Taxable Value 

Estimated Market Value 

Legal Debt Margin: 

Debt Lu:nitation · 8% of Estimated Market Value 1 

Debt Applicable to Ljrnitation: 

Total General Obligation Bonded Debt 

Less: 

Assets in Debt Service Funds Available 

for payment of Principal 2 

Total Debt Applicable to Lu:nitation 

Legal Debt Maxgin 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 
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2016 2016 

273.693,527 $ 290. 709,109 

(8,722,156) (7,964.651) 

264,971, 371 $ 282,144,458 

3.19% 2.74% 

273.693.527 $ 290. 709, J 09 

273,693.527 $ 290. 709,109 

0.00% 0.00% 

5'17,887,054 $ 581.418,218 

(8,722, 156) (7.964,.651} 

538,664,898 $ 578,453,567 

1.59% 1.37% 

$ (9,063,364) 

1,098,713 

2017 

$ 313.847,899 

(7,964,651) 

$ 305,883.24,8 

2.54% 

$ 313,847,899 

$ 313,847,899 

0.00% 

$ 627,695,798 

(7,964,651) 

$ 619,731,147 

1.27% 

$ 5,294,517,047 

$ 7,846,197,485 

$ 627,695,799 

(7.,964,651) 

$ 619,731,148 



Fiscal Sales 

Year Taxes 

2008 $ 20,(>16,891 

2009 l 7,989,571 

2010 16.779.178 

2011 17,096,224 

2012 18.106,27;{ 

2013 18, 94;1,647 

2014 19.818,967 

2015 20,727,557 

2016 21 ,405,733 

2017 22,750,706 

Fiscal Franchise 

Year- Taxes 

2008 $ 

2009 

2010 7,6113.257 

2011 7,30Ul84 

2012 7,437,757 

2013 7,816,920 

2014 7,956,780 

2015 7.698.CJ87 

2016 7,853.723 

2017 7.894.110 

City of Orem 

Pledge,;l.·Revenue Coverage 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

<unaudited) 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

Special 

Debt Service Assessment 

Princieal Interest Covera~e Collections 

s 530,000 $ 485.915 20.29 $ 415,963 

580, 000 449.044 17.'18 1$6,654 

616.000 -124.-157 16.14 470.980 

675, 000 396.907 15.95 7116,111 

710.000 367.6 19 16.80 2,810,5'17 

7'16,000 268, 182 18.68 1.,na.179 

840.000 256,669 18.()7 259,058 

853,000 2,rn,4--1 ,1 18.90 3,618,683 

1,065,000 216,2711 16.71 

1.125,000 106,824 18.47 38.820 

Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds 

Debt Service 

Principal Interest Coverage 

s $ 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1100.000 178.378 0.00 

500,000 163,875 0.00 

525.000 152.625 11.54 

550,000 133,219 11.65 

550.000 111 ,219 11 .64 

600,000 83.031 U.50 

625.000 53, 03 l l J.G,J 

Notes: Details regarding the city's outstanding de b t can be found i.n 
the notes to the financial statements. 

Operating expenses do not include depreciation, in tetest. or 
amortization expenses. 
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Special Assessment Bond.s 

Debt Service 

Princieal Interest Coverage 

s 265,000 $ 147,000 1.01 

280,000 133,750 0.33 

532.000 256,697 0.60 

492.000 290,109 0.95 

1,304,000 372,537 1.68 

,181.000 316,172 1.78 

998,000 2S0.147 0 .20 

3,291,000 206,00,1 1.03 

990,000 83.600 0.00 

10.UOO 12,788 1.70 



Water & Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds 

Utility Less: Net 

Service Operating Available Debt. Sei:vice 

Chaxges E!}!enses 1 Revenue P:rinciEa.l Interest Coverage 

S 11,050,437 $ 7.659.539 $ 3,390,898 $ 707,000 $ 762.092 2.31 

11,170,969 7,797,841 3,373,128 734,000 999.616 J.95 

11,072,855 8,743,966 2,328,889 816,000 056,696 1.8 l 

11,745,056 8,586,094 3,158,962 853,000 988,788 1.72 

12,(i44,643 8,851,011 3,693,632 890,000 972,772 1.98 

12,864.8(i9 !),256,350 3.608,509 917,000 9'10,512 1.911 

13,927,292 9 ,814,494 4,112,798 944,000 792.25G 2.37 

14,141,170 9,588,439 4,552,740 1,228,000 619,984 2.4(j 

111,847,401 9,468,250 5,379.15 1 l.267,000 578,638 2.91 

11.169,942 10.000,616 7.169.326 1.326,000 il,12.011 '1.13 

Water Quality Revenue Bonds 

Utility Less: Net 

Service Operating Available Debt Service 

Charges Expenses 1 Revenue Principal Interest Coverage 

$ 5,678.134 $ 4.572.648 $ 1.105.486 $ 181,000 s 65,590 4.48 

5,682,018 4,864,370 817.648 187.000 59.247 3.32 

5, 77;.J,2-55 4,964,995 808,260 194,000 52.702 3.28 

5,857,61\5 4,905,989 951.666 200.000 45.91.2 3.87 

6,201,588 4,Sn,165 1,329,423 207,000 35,893 5.47 

6,380,841 5,014,836 t.366,005 816,000 24,142 1.63 

6.449,844. 5,016.883 1.433,46 l 824.000 16.3i2 1.71 

6,44.4.975 4,700,320 1,744,655 831,757 8,321 2.08 

6,437,198 5,086,210 1.350.988 594,000 2.27 

7,858,574 5,019,509 2,839,065 594,000 4.78 
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City of Orem 

Long·term Bonded Indebtedness Paid By Primary Government 

Schedule of Bonded Indebtedness 

June 30, 2017 

(Unaudited) 

Issue 

Interest Rate Date 

Governmental Activities: 

General Obligation Bonds: 

Series 2004 Road Bonds · Refunding 3.00% · 4.00% 12/22/04 

Series 2009 Road Bonds · Refunding 2.75% · 5.00% 03/24/09 

Series 2014 Road Bonds· Refunding 0.25% · 3.00% 11/05/14 

Total General Obligation Bonds 

Special Assessment Bonds: 

Northgate · Special Improvement District 

Bonds · Series 2010 7.75% 11/02/10 

Total Special Assessment Bonds 

Revenue Bonds: 

Sales 'T'ax Revenue Refunding Bonds · Series 200'7 3.80% · 5.00% 10/17/07 

Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2010 2.13% · 5.13% 03/16/10 

Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds · Series 2017 1.94% 02/23/17 

Total Revenue Bonds 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 

Revenue Bonds: 

2005.B Water and Storm Sewer Reventie Bonds 1.48% 03/17/05 

2008 Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Bonds 3.25% · 5.25% 03/13/08 

Water Quality Revenu e Bonds 0.00% 02/16/10 

2013 Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds 2.18% 07/02/13 

2016 Water and Storm Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds 2.00% · 4.50% 10/25/16 

Total Revenue Bonds 

Total Business·type Activities 

Total P1·imary Govemment Long·term Bonded lo.debtedness 
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Annual 

Term of Terms of 

Bonds Serial Bonds 

2004·2016 Various 

2009·2018 Various 

2014·2024 Various 

2010·2025 Various 

2007·2023 Various 

2010·2018 Val'ious 

2017·2023 Vai·im.1S 

2005·2025 Various 

2008·2028 Various 

2010·2032 Vai·ious 

2013·2025 Various 

2016·2028 Various 



Principal Interest 

Retired Expense Payable 

Original Balance Year Ended Year Ended In Future 

Amount 06/30/17 06/30/17 06/30/17 Years 

$ 3,975,000 $ $ 460,000 $ 8,625 $ 

$ 2,865,000 665,000 315,000 36,300 32,000 

$ 9,645,000 7,870.000 890,000 201,938 897,088 

8,535.000 1,665,000 246,868 929,088 

$ 1.915,000 155,000 10,000 12,788 65,255 

155,000 10,000 12.788 65,255 

$ 5.720,000 3,930.000 106,824 

$ 4,375.000 1,150,000 600.000 83,031 74,031 

$ 2,898,000 2,898,000 151,254 

4,048,000 4,530,000 189,855 225,285 

12,738.000 6,205,000 449,506 1,219,628 

$ 3,000,000 1,459,000 151.-000 23,828 110,068 

$ 5,590,000 5,150,000 132.469 

$ 11,889,000 8,919.000 594,000 

$ 12,801,000 11,180,000 1, 100.000 255,714 1,126,187 

$ 4,380,000 4,380,000 38,122 1,665.025 
25,938.000 6,995,000 450,133 2,901,280 

25,938,000 6,995,000 450,133 2,901,280 
$ 38,676,000 $ 13,200,000 $ 899.639 $ 4.120,908 

-175-



City of Orem 

Other Long·term Liabilities Paid by Primary Government 

Last Three Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2015 2016 

Governmental Activities: 

Compensated Absences $ 1,769,182 $ 1,902,302 

Net Pension Liabilities 7,566,352 10,347,717 

Claims and Judgments 659,759 869,640 

Other Post·employment Benefits (OPEB) 1,350,884 431,801 

Total Governmental Activities 11.346,177 13,551,460 

Business-type Activities: 

Compensated Absences 242.609 273,712 

Net Pension Liabilities 1,162,689 2,258,451 

Total Business-type Activities 1.405,298 2,532.163 

Primary Government: 

Compensated Absences 2,011,791 2,176,014 

Net Pension Liabilities 8,729,041 12,606.168 

Claims and J"udgments 659,759 869.640 

Other Post·employment Benefits (OPEB) 1,350,884 431,801 

Total Primary Government $ 12,751,475 $ 16,083,623 
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2017 

$ 1,972.013 

11,887,107 

1,410,228 

431,801 

15,701,149 

304,891 

2,468,003 

2,772,894 

2,276,904 

14,355,110 

1,410,228 

431,801 

$ 18,474,043 



City of Orem 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Per Per 

Capita Household 

Fiscal Personal Personal 

Year Population 1 Households 2 Income Income 2 

2008 88,073 25,363 $ 1,646,524,735 $ 18,695 $ 

2009 88,196 25,440 1,601 ,021,988 18,153 

2010 88,256 25,517 1,'187,996,160 16,860 

2011 88,697 26,970 1.495,165,329 16,857 

2012 89,279 27,533 1,559,347,014 17,466 

2013 89,584 27,515 1,738.556,688 19,407 

2014 90.154 27,486 1,734,833,422 19,243 

2015 93,601 28,520 1.863,502,309 19,909 

2016 95,788 29,534 2,005,130,204 20.933 

2017 97,499 29,594 2,170,912,734 22,266 

City K·l2 uvu 
Fiscal Median Unemployment Student FTE Student 

Year Age Rate Population 3 Population 4 

2008 26.6 3.70% 16,521 16,135 

2009 26.7 6.00 16,398 17,910 

2010 26.7 8.00 16,112 19,670 

2011 26.2 8.50 16,304 21,825 

2012 26.3 6.40 16,359 22,448 

2013 26.3 5.30 16,437 21 ,617 

2014 26.4 3.90 16,275 20,697 

2015 26.5 3.50 15,757 21,335 

2016 26.5 3.90 15,787 22,591 

2017 26.6 3.70 15,668 23,706 

1 Population estimates were based upon census data and building activity within the Cily. 

~ Data is based upon federal income tax return data provided by the Utali State Tax Commission. 'l'he data for 

the cwTent fiscal year is estimated as the federal data is not avai lable at, the tjme t}11s t'eport ts issued. 

:i Data was provided by the Alpine School District. 
1 Data t·epresents fall semester counts based on the Ut11h Valley University (UVU) fact book. 

On July 1, 2008 the school began operating as !l university instead of a i.tate college. 
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Personal 

Income 

64,918 

62,933 

58,314 

55,438 

56,636 

63.186 

63,117 

65,340 

67,892 

73,357 



City of Orem 

Other Demographic Statistics 

(Unaudited) 

Census Population Count 

Percent 
Year PoEulation Increase Increase 
1890 435 
1900 692 257 37.14% 
1910 1,064 372 34.96 
1920 1,664 600 36.06 
1930 1,915 251 13.11 
1940 2,914 999 34.28 
1950 8,338 5,424 65.05 
1960 18,394 10,056 54.67 
1970 25,760 7,366 28.59 
1980 52,399 26,639 50.84 
1990 67.561 15,162 22.44 
2000 84,324 16,763 19.88 
2010 88,328 4,004 4.53 

Ag,e Distribution of Population 1 

Total Male Female 
Age Number Percent Number Percent Numbe1· Percent 
0·4 8,940 10.12% 4,82.2 5.46% 4,118 4.66% 
5·9 8,314 9.41 4,685 5.30 3.629 4.11 

10 · 14 6.5 l2 7.37 3,421 3.87 3,091 3.50 
15 · 19 7,145 8 .09 3,457 3.91 3,688 4.18 
20 · 24 10.694 12.11 5,211 5.90 5,483 6.21 
25 · 29 10.485 11.87 5,106 5.78 5,379 6.09 
30 · 34 5,453 6.17 2,879 3.26 2.574 2.91 
35 • 39 5,360 6.07 2,702 3.06 2,658 3.01 
40 · 44 3,326 3.77 1,660 1.88 1,666 1.89 
45 · 49 3,771 4.27 1,893 2.14 1,878 2.13 
50 · 54 3,728 4.22 1,797 2.03 1,931 2.19 
55 · 59 3,884 4.40 1,697 1.92 2 .187 2.48 
60 · 64 3,359 3.80 1,498 1.70 1,861 2.11 
65 · 69 2,332 2.64 1,097 1.24 1,235 1.40 
70 · 74 2,025 2 .29 1.020 1.15 1,005 1.14 
75 · 79 1,269 1.44 492 0.56 777 0.88 
80 · 84 1,037 1.17 298 0.34 739 0.84 
85 · 89 466 0.53 264 0.30 202 0.23 

90+ 228 0.26 70 0,08 158 0.18 
TOTAL 88,328 100.00% 44,069 49.89% 44,259 50.11% 

1 Source: 2010 Census 
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City of Orem 

Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2017 

Percentage 

Number of Number 

of Total City of 

Taxpayer Em,Eloyees Rank Employment Eml!loyees 

Utah Valley University 2,775 l 8.02% J,832 

Alpine School District 1.437 2 ~' t5% 1,316 

Blue Host 1 nc. 560 3 1.62% 

City of Orem 535 4 1.55% 541 

Timpanogos Regional Hospital 477 5 138% 542 

U.S. Synthetic Corporation 420 6 1.21% 590 

Wa l·lVlart 378 7 1.09% 540 

Wayfair 376 8 1.09% 

Cleru:link Technologies, LLC 353 9 1.02% 

Security Metrics 828 JO U,95% 

Convergys Corporation 600 

StoresOnline, Inc. 478 

Mity·Lite Inc. 360 

Costco 305 

'l'otal 7,639 22.07% 7.104 

Source: Orem City's business licensing database and personal communicat-ions with certain 
governmental entities by 01·em City personnel. 
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Fiscal Year 

2008 

Percentage 

of 

Total City 

Rank Em_Eloyment 

5.10% 

2 3.67% 

6 1.51% 

5 1.51% 

4 1.64% 

7 1.50% 

3 1.67% 

8 1.33% 

9 t.00% 

10 0.85% 

19.79% 



General Government 

Public Safety: 

Police P1·otection 

Fire .Protection 

Highways and Public Improvements 

Parks and Recreation: 

Parks and Recreation 

Library 

Cemetery 

Economic and Physical Development 

Watel' 

Water Reclamation 

Storm Water 

Recl'eation 

Street Lighting 

Total 

City of Orem 

Full·Time· Equivalent City Government Employees 

by Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 

124 115 107 

141 143 141 

59 71 69 

3 2 2 

36 39 35 

53 54 51 

6 6 5 

1 2 2 

26 30 28 

31 31 28 

11 11 11 

48 50 50 

2 3 3 

541 557 532 

Source: City of Orem - Human Resource Department 

Notes: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per yeru· (including vacation 
and sick leave). Full-time equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total labor 
hours by 2,080. 
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2011 

115 

140 

70 

1 

36 

50 

5 

2 

26 

30 

10 

56 

3 

544 



Fiscal Year 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

llO 102 107 105 113 122 

136 131 130 133 135 137 

70 65 68 68 67 68 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

36 29 35 36 32 33 

43 45 45 46 44 46 

5 5 5 5 5 5 

3 4 4 3 3 3 

27 26 27 26 26 24 

30 29 30 30 27 30 

10 10 11 11 11 11 

49 53 53 54 54 54 

2 2 2 2 2 2 

521 501 517 519 519 535 
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Geheral Government. 

Building Permits Issued 

Public Safety: 

Police Protection; 

Physical Arrests 

Traffic Citations 

Fire Protection: 

Emergency Responses 

Ambulance 1'tunsports 

Other Public Safety Services: 

Emergency Oiapatch Calls 

Highways and Public Improvements: 

Asphalt Used · Streets (Tons) 

Concrete Used· Sidewalks (Yards) 

Parks and Recreation: 

Recreation Programs Participants 

Library · Volu.Jlles in Collection (approx.) 

Cemetery • Interments 

Economic and Physical Development: 

Public Service Organizations Assisted 

Housing Reh-ab/RLF Loans/Grants Added 

Major Project lmprovements Completed 

Water! 

Number of Consumers 

Average Daily Conaurnption (MGO) 

Water Reclamation'. 

Number of Service Connect.ions 

Average Daily Treated (MGD) 

Storm Water: 

Number of Sumps Added 

New lnfrastrncturc (Feet) 

'Recreation; 

.f'itness Center Admisa,ons 

Fitness Center Class Participants 

Scera Park Pool Admissions 

Sce(a Park I'ool Class Participants 

Solid Waste: 

Annual Waste Tonnage 

Avg Annual Waste per Household (Tons) 

Street. Lighting: 

Number of Street Lights Added 

Source: Various city departments 

City of Orem 

Operating Indicators by Function/ Pl'ogram 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

l,242 784 837 945 

6,454 6,215 5,538 5.439 

14,238 16. 128 9,762 15, 009 

4.650 4,350 5,230 6.556 

3,246 2.780 2,514 2,500 

38,043 40,187 41,253 39.443 

4,290 4,615 5,047 5,903 

1,443 1,344 1.164 1.134 

14,059 15.054 17,331 16. 790 

297,067 295.029 297,376 313.001 

303 266 267 297 

13 15 16 14 

7 7 9 14 

1 l 0 

21,197 21,543 21,626 21,807 

25.0 23,0 23.3 24.2 

20,678 20,fl78 20,678 20,678 

8.5 8.5 8.2 8.2 

24 8 17 0 

12.114 7,669 18,727 0 

442.281 369,844 367,941 378.543 

5,515 4,923 4,466 4,231 

34.468 47,778 48,045 46,999 

2.46] 2.455 1.,848 l,768 

26,566 26,924 25,631 25,4$6 

1.45 I 45 1.37 1.44 

149 75 67 93 
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2012 

899 

6,016 

10,042 

7.628 

2.320 

39,405 

fi,965 

1.020 

16,700 

320.703 

294 

16 

1 1 

l 

21,965 

26.7 

21,088 

8.2 

8 

40,656 

384.895 

3,926 

43,183 

1,661 

24,832 

1.26 

88 



Fisca l Y eaJJ 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

817 1,064- 1.301 1.429 1,518 

4.338 3,335 3,621 3 .842 4,145 

16,042 18,116 12,487 12,064 12,022 

9,058 8.105 9,448 10,442 10,471 

2,434 2,461 2,709 2,963 2.949 

37,867 24-,906 27,251 28,023 27.02<1 

5,287 4,725 4,332 4,060 3,633 

796 821 80/i 750 575 

12,276 12,984. 12.486 l2.702 13.974 

326,253 329,204 366,500 374,190 368,754 

252 322 323 333 344 

16 16 16 22 16 

6 6 4 2 5 

l 0 2 0 0 

22.107 22,176 22,492 22,771 22,949 

26.9 24.7 24.7 24.5 24,3 

21,226 23,232 23,670 24,723 2,J,422 

7.9 7,9 7.9 8.2 8.6 

4 3 () l 2 

29,040 0 250 •150 () 

369,068 353,657 304,020 326,726 361,515 

4,236 5,051 3,188 2,596 2,822 

39,545 39,286 47.785 ~g.434 40,517 

3,180 2,912 2,786 l ,360 1,481 

26,527 28,503 27,636 29.008 28,986 

1.39 1.36 1.38 1.46 t.45 

29 13 36 409 
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General Government: 

Vehicles 

Public Safety: 

Police Protection 

Stations 

Vehicles 

Fire Protection: 

Stations 

Vehicles 

Highways and Public Improvements, 

Streets (miles) 

Traffic Signals 

Parks and Recreation: 

Parks 

Parks Acreage 

Playgrounds 

Walking/Jogging '!'rails (mtles) 

Llbrarjes 

Cemeteries 

Water: 

Water Mains (miles) 

Water Service Lines (miles) 

Wells 

Storage Capacity (thousands of gallons) 

Water Reclamation: 

Sewer Ll nes <miles) 

Treatment Capacity (MGO) 

Storm Water: 

Storm Water Lines (m.jles} 

Sumps 

Recreation: 

Fitness Centers 

Pools 

Baseball / Softball Diamonds 

Socc,.-er I Football Fields 

Street Lighting: 

Street Lights 

Source: Various city departments 

City of Orem 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/ .Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 

176 175 169 171 

l 

121 116 Ill 115 

3 4 '1 4 

26 27 27 29 

239 241 241 241 

26 32 32 34 

22 22 22 22 

333 333 333 383 

18 18 18 18 

85.5 35.5 36.5 35.5 

1 l 1 

349 3<19 351 351 

101 lOl 101 101 

8 8 8 8 

22,440 ~2.440 22,110 22,-140 

280 280 280 280 

12.3 ]2.3 12.3 12.3 

68.2 69.8 70.8 70.8 

1,711 1.715 1,732 1,732 

l 

2 2 2 2 

18 18 18 JS 

18 18 18 18 

4,890 4,926 4,993 5,086 
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2012 

170 

113 

4 

29 

241 

3,1 

22 

350 

18 

.w.o 

351 

lOI 

9 

22,,140 

281 

l3.5 

78.5 

1,788 

2 

18 

18 

5,174 



Fiscal Year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

165 172 169 168 168 

l 

122 107 127 125 127 

4 4 4 4 4 

30 28 29 28 29 

241 242 242 243 243 

84 84 34 34 36 

22 25 26 26 27 

350 363 385 385 388 

18 18 19 l9 20 

40.0 40.0 40.8 40.8 40.8 

1 l l 

l 

374 374 374 382 382 

103 103 103 103 103 

9 9 9 9 9 

22,440 22.440 22,490 21,990 21,950 

286 288 291 294 331 

13.5 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.5 

84.0 M .O 87.l 88.5 88.5 

1,765 1,759 1,759 1,746 1,748 

1 1 l 

2 2 2 2 2 

\8 18 18 18 18 

18 18 21 21 21 

5,175 5,204 5,217 5,253 5,662 
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BUILDING A BETTER OREM

#14 Best City in America

#7 Happiest City in America

#47 Most Livable City in America

- Gallup & National Geographic

- Money Magazine

- USA TODAY
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